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REPORT.

Tax SENATE,
CouMITTEE RooN,
Friday, 2Tth April, 1877,

The Select Committee appointed to enquire into and report,—

1st. As to the difference in length between the line of the Canadian Pacific
Railway from Keewatin westward, and a more southern line by Winnipeg and south
of Lake Manitoba to the nearest point common to both lines.

2nd. As to the cost of construction of each line; also the fitness of land for
settlement along each line respectively, and also for the greater chance of an imme-
diate remunerative line, with power to send for persons, papers and records, and
which was also authorized “ to examine into all the questions relating to the purchase
of the property at Fort William for a terminus to the Canada Pacific Railway and to
send for persons, Eapers and records, to examine witnesses under oath, and to
report thereon to the Senate with all convenient speed this Session; beg leave to
make the following as their First Report on the subject-matter of the latter portion
of the foregoing Order of Reference.

You?ggmmitm having heard certain evidence, find it too late in the Session to
oontinue the investigation, and therefore recommend that all further proceedings in
relation thereto be deferred until next Session, then to be proceeded with in accord-
anoce with instructions from your Honorable House.

All which is respectfully submitted.

M. A. GIRARD,

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

THE SENATE,
CoMurrrax Roox,
Saturday, 81st April, 1877.

Mr, Sanproap FrzMing, Chief Engineer of the Pacific Railway, was called,
Sworn, and examined as follows :—

Q. Was the terminus of the Pacific Railway located at Kamunistiquia by your
&dvice ?—It was fixed on consultation with me ; I made no opposition to it.

Q. Did you recommend it ?—I am not aware of having specially recommended
it; I recommended it in & general way, which I will explain: I am not aware of
having written any reports recommending it.

Q. Are you clearly of the opinion that it is the best site for the terminus on
Thunder B‘t{ ?—I could not answer that question directly without some remarks.
The object that we had in view from the first was to get the shortest line between
the prairie region and the navigation of the St. Lawrence on Lake Suporior. There
are three points that were spoken of: Nepigon, Prince Arthur’s Landing on Thunder
Bay, and Fort William. Of the three, Fort William is the nearest available point to
the prairie region, and on that ground Fort William has been selected. The navi-
glt.lon really extends two or three miles nearer the prairie region than Fort William,

ut it is not accessible by land ; the banks of the river get higher, and we couid not
reach it vuz well by a railway.
1-1 \ } |
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Q. Are you of the opinion, considering tho requirements of the Pacific Railway,
that the point selected is the best?—That is a very broad question. (It is a very
pertinent one.) I am not prepared to give a decided opinion at this moment. I
think Fort William will answer for the terminus very well for many years to come.
I think the day will come when there will be business done at Nepigon.

Q. Speaking of this result from the conference between yoursclf and othors, are we
to understand that there was no influence or pressure brought to bear upon you to
select that terminus ?—No undue pressure.

Q. When was it selected as the point for the terminus ?-—I think it was in the
winter of 1874-5.

Q. In fixing upon that point, did you take into full consideration tho cost of
dredging at the mouth of the river and making the river navigable for such vessel
as navigate Lake Suﬂerior ?—According to the information we obtained from surve
tho river, insido the bar at the mouth, is quite navigable for vessels that navigate the’
lakes. Thero is a bar at the mouth which, it is reported, would not be difficult to
remove, and which has been dpnrtially removed sinco the terminus was adopted.

Q. You took into consideration the removal of the bar and the keeping of the
channel open ?-—Yes ; that was considered.

Q. Is not the river very nurrow at the terminus; too narrow to allow lake
vossels to turn ?—The river is narrow, but it can be widened. There is a branch or
inlet immediately opposite the terminus, which could be increased in size, for turning
vessels or for any other purpose. If you will allow me, I will show you a plan of the
river, made in 1873 before the torminus was tixed upon, and also a plan of the town
plot of Fort William. (Plan produced, with the land purchased for railway purposes
marked in red.)

Q. What is the width of tho river opposite the terminus ?—It is in tho neighbour-
hood of four hundred feet, judging by the eyo.

Q. What is the depth of water ?—It ranges from twelve to twenty feet. 1t is,
according to the soundings on tho plan, thirty foef, immediately opposite the town
plot of Fort William. It is thirty foot in the middle - nd sufficiently deep at the odgo
to allow vessels to come alongside. The river is very deop in some places. I think
it is shallower near the mouth than further up.

Q. Have you made any plans for the widoning of the river ?—Wo havo not.
There is ono place spoken of for a turning basin.

Q. A year ago did not one of the Beatty line of steamers with three hundred
tons of rails run up there 7—I did not see it, but I know wo havo landed a quantity
of rails thére by lake vossels. I fancy that any vessels that would pass through the
locks—even the large locks at Sault Ste. Marie—would turn in this river. 1 speak
of the existing lock, not the new one that is in course of building.

Q. What is the length of that lock ?—I do not know.

Q. Did you make any estimate of the cost of removing the bar at the mouth of
the river ?—I did not.

Q. When Fort Willium was fixed upon as tho terminus, did you expect the

round would cost any considerablo sum ? You saw what it is sai(f to have cost—
over 851,000—did it strike you as boing an oxtravagant price ?—I was very much
surprised to soe it.

. Do you consider Kauministiquia possesses decided advantagos over Prince
Arthur's Landing for the terminus ?—I never favoured Prince Arthur’s Landing for
the terminus, I was more in favour of Nepigon. I think Kaministiquin is much
better than Prince Arthur’s Landing, because it is perfeotly smooth water, sholtered
in every way. Prince Arthur's Landing is on the edge of a large sheet of water,
and there must be some littlo sea there at times.

Q. Do you know if there is anything more than a little soa 7—I know vory well
that the width of Thunder Bay is very much greater than that of Toronto Harbour,
and I know that vessels will be disturbed during a heavy wind at the wharfs in
Toronto Harbour.

Q. What would be the width of Thut‘x(zior Bay at Princo Arthur's Landing ?—It




40-Victoria, ) Appendix (No. 1.) A, 18YY

appears to measure thirteen nautical miles from Thunder Cape to Prince Arthur's
Landing, on the map which I have before me. The width between Thunder Bay and
Pie Inland measures on the map five miles, and the distance through that opening of
ﬁ\{? miles to Isle Royale is, a8 I measure it, on the map twenty-seven or twenty-eight
miles.

Q. Making a total to Prince Arthur’s Landing of how much ?—Twenty-seven or
twenty-eight miles from Isle Royale.

Q. Have you any personal knowledge of Prince Arthur's Landing ?—I have

.boen at Thunder Bay and at Prince Arthur's Landing. I have not seen it during &
storm, but I imagine that the water is acted upon by the wind there the same as in
any other part of the world.

Q. Would the winds from the wost affect Prince Arthur’s Landing P—The wind
from the west and north would not disturb the water there, but the winds from the
east would have about.fifteen miles or a greater distance to pass over.

Q. What is the country lying east; is it clovated or low ?-—Part of it is high and
part of it is somewhat low, r%hat part between Black Bay and Thunder Bay is, [
understand, somewhat low. That is a long way off; probably twenty miles to the
east and north-east of Piince Arthur's Landing.

Q. .In reference to Thunder Cape, would gxat not be a protection from the emst
and south ?—It would be no protection from the east, but it would be from the south-
oast.

Q. What is the distance from the Cape to the main land ?—It is, as I measure it,
thirteen miles, if this map is correct.

Q. Is not that thirtoen miles gap partly filled by Pie Island ?—It is not filled by
Pie Island ; Pie Island is out of the way altogether ; it is five miles south-west of
Thunder Cape.

Q. Yes; but the gap is betweon Thunder Cape and Grand Point, on the main
land ?—Grand Point is a long way from Prince Arthur's Landing.

Q. | am speaking of ucross the bay from Thunder Cape to the main land ?—~You
probably refer to the irlands called Welcome Islands; they are about five miles out,

Q. With whom had you those couversations you spoke of in determining the
terminus of the railway *—With Mr. Mackenzie.

Q. Not with any other person ?—Not with any other person 1 remember of.

Q. Who selected the terminus point; who located it ?—The Government
seleoted it.

Q. But who located that particulur point ?—The Government_selected the ter-
minus of the Pacific Railway on Lake Superior.

Q. Who selected the particular piece of ground ?—I did; I recommended that
fmrticular piece of land, shown on the plan before the Committee, colored red, as the

and required for the Pacific Railway.

Q. Did you do that undoer instructions fyom the Government ?—No; the Gov-
ernment selected the spot where the railway should terminate, and I recommeunded
that all this land (pointing to the map where it was colored red) should be secured
f;: r:ei(l‘way purposes. The Government selected the spot where the land should be

ured.

Q. Who staked it out ?—I don’t know ; the land was marked out before ; these
lots had already boen in existence ; the plan of survey had been proviously made by
the Ontario Government,

Q. The town plot was surveyed and laid down on the map; the Government
ﬂnq upon the town plot as the terminus, and Mr. Fleming recommended a certain
Portion of the town that should be taken for the terminus ?—Quite so.

Q. Who did the work ?—1I took the map in my own office and marked out the
Space now shown on the map as the land required. 1t was not practically done by
myself, but it was done under my eye,

Q. Who was it that was up there as your engineer, and who, under your instruc-
tions, completed the location of the terminsl ground ?—I know that Mr. Hazlewood
Was sent up there after the terminus was determined on and when the quantity of
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land was secured, but whether he staked out the land or not I do not know. I donot
really know that it has been staked out to this day by our staff. I presume it was
staked out by the people who laid out the town plot.

Q. What time was it solected ?—1t was sclected by the Government on the 23rd
of January, 1875, when this plan was fyled. That was the dedication of the land for
railway Ipurposes; that is to say, the fyling of this map.

Q. supf)ose after the line had been laid down there it was afterwards sent to
the office ?—1 don’t understand you. There is no line—no railway line laid down,—
it i> simply a plan shewing land required for railway purposes. The railway is
located and the track laid down on the ground. Several engineers had been at it.
Mr. Murdock made, I think, the first survey. That survey was afterwards amendod
under the direotion of Mr. Hazlewood. 'The first survey made in that part was made,
I think, in 1872,

Q. Did you send instructions to Mr. Murdock in the fall of 1874, to selects point
on the river somewhere about that town plot for a terminal point 7—I may have done
80, but I don’t remember.

Q. What is the height of the banks at this particular place ?—1'he banks are not
very high there; that is, the first point where they become low; they inerease in
height as you go back. Immediately on the river the banks are six or seven feet
above the water; a little way back it is probably nearly twenty feet.

Q. Could land have been obtained I{:rther down, which would have suited the
purposes of railway, as well as at Fort William?—I do not doubt it at all. Any-
where on the river would do equally well, except up further, where we could not
reach it by land, on account of the high banks. We would have preferred Point de
Meuron, but we found we could not reach it by railway, the ground was so high. We
could have gone lower down, but we wanted to get the nearest available point to Red
River. If it had been taken down half a mile, it would have lengthened the distance
half & mile. By widening the river, I do not mean it to be inferred it would bo
necessary to widen it all the way down; but it will be neccssary in the future, to
widen a portion of it for turning purposes.

Q. é:mld the reservation have been used for the railway alfmf the bank of the
river, had the terminus been selected half a mile lower down?—Yes; but we would
have to follow the bend of the river.

Q. Could the land have been obtained half a mile lower down, and at what
Erice ?—I do not know. I know parties at Thunder Bay are building a branch to

ort William, and they want to intersect the main line at a point north of the ter-
minus. I have reported against that. The reason they give for desiring to intersect
the main line north of the town plot, is the excessive value of land along the river,
r'enderin]goit expensive to obtain right of way:.

Q. you know what they mean by * excessive ” ?—I do not know ; theoutlay,
they say, would be very great. .

Q. You are not aware that the MoKollar farm could be got for $80 per acre ?—
I do not know.

Q. By the route you recommond for the railway to Prince Arthur's Landing,
what would the distance be 7—It would, I think, be some six miles from the terminus
to Prince Arthur's Landing.

Q. Havo they not constructed the railway by their own favorite route ?—No,
they have applied for rails to construct it. .

Q. And 1t is a different route 7—Yes.

Q. How far is the town plot from the mouth of the river ?—It must be about
three miles—somewhere about three miles.

Q. Why did you think it necessary to take up the south-easterly section of the
land marked in red on the map ?—Because it is easier to get it now than it would be
fifty years hence. .

' (g Did you relect nll this land on your own mere motion ?—I have recommended
the selection of the land shown in red on the map, on my own motion. I was asked
by Mr Mackenzio if it was not too much, and I said that I thought it would be

|
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better to err on the safe side and get plenty, as it would be much easior getting it
now than in the future, when it would be probably all occupied by buildings, 1

felt the inconvenience more than once of guving 8 cram terminus for a railway,
and I instanced Halifax, where too little land had been taken up in the first place,
and the Government had been compelled subsequently to purchase more at an enor-
mous cost. The land at Halifax, I think, originally belonged to the Government,
and they very unwisely reserved too little for the terminus there.

Q. At the time you reserved this land at the town plot you thought it could be
obtained for a nominal price ?—I thought it would cost very little compared with
what it would years hence, and what it actually did cost.

Q. You say you selected this land after conference with Mr. Mackenste ; did r)u
ever express an independent opinion as regards this terminus ?—I am not very clear
on that point ; but I think I have expressed myself the same as I have done to-day,
to the effect that this was a better point than Prince Arthur's Landing.

Q. Did Mr. Mackenzie show any special desire to have Kaministiquia selected
in preference to Prince Arthur's Landing P—Not that I know of.

Q. You say the main reason for selecting it was, it was the shortest available

int ?—It was the point on the navigation of the lake nearest the prairie region of
e west, which we could reach by rail. We have navigation at noarer points, but
we cannot reach them.

Q. Did Mr. Mackenzie suggaest that it was desirable to have an extended water
frontage ?—I suggested that myself. I am inclined to think that Mr. Mackenxie
objected to taking so much land at first; but he yielded to my views after a time,
when I pointed out to him how much easier it would be to obtain the land now than
hereafter, and if it was not required in the future it could be easily disposed of.

Q. Do you know whether that land could be disposed of—any surplus of it—at
a l:i'?her figure P—I think it could be very easily disposed of, but it wouid be very
unwise to give it up for the present or for a long time to come.

’

SANDFORD FLBMING.

Orrawa, April 37th.
The Committee met at noon,
Mr. Wa. Murpook, C.E., was called, sworn, and examined as follows :—

Q. Were you the engineer in charge of the surveys made in the selection of the
Pacific Railway terminus at Fort William ?~—I was.

Q. At what time was that ?—In 1874.

Q. When did you first become aware of the Government having determined %o
select that place as the terminus ?—In June, 1874.

¢ OtQ. Where did you become aware of that ?—From instructions which I received

a tawa.

Q. Did you become aware of that from Mr. Fleming, or whom ?—Both from Mr.
Flomin Mr. Mackenzie.

Q. gIn the spring of 1874 ?—In June, 1874.

Q. At what time did  you receive instructions formally to locate the terminal
point ?~—In June, 1874.

Q. Did you locate the station grounds ?—No.

Q. What instructions did you receive in referenoe to it ?—My instructions were
L n the location from the head of navigation on the Kaministiquis River.

. Look at this map gﬁlm of the town plot produced) and see if the head of
nviﬁution has been selected acoording to the instructions which you received ?—No ;
Itold Mr. Mackensie that the head of navigation on the Kaministiquia was the upper
ond of the town plot of Fort William, laid out by the Government of Ontario,
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Q. And lz'om' instructions then were to select the head of navigation ?—Yes; to
begin from the head of navigation.

Q. Did you recommend any particular course to be pursued with reference to
the selection of the lands ?—None whatever; I recommended that the line should bo
brought further down towards the mouth of the river.

n%' What object had you in view in making that suggestion ?—My objects were,
a8 set forth in the report made to Mr. Fleming, in September, 1874, for the better
facilities it afforded for dockage and later navigation in the fall of the year.

Q. What is the elevation of the bank at %ort William town plot above the level
of the river ?—The elevation at the point where we began the location was 27 feet
above the level of the river.

Q. What was it further down—say, for instance about mid way ?—It slo
gradually down to the mouth of the river, and at the mouth it is only about one foot
above the level of the water—it is a gradual slope all the way down.

Q. "ow far is it below the town plot to the mouth of the river ?—I should say at"
least a mile and three quarters to two miles to the mouth of the river—that is from
the lower end of the town plot. I cannot say exaoctly.

Q. How far is it above the Hudson Bay Company's old Fort ?—Withoyt measuring
it I could not tell ; I should say it would be about a mile and & half to the lower en
of the town plot. I walked over it often enough, but not with the view of determining
the distance. )

Q. Could this line have been extended further down without disadvantage to the
railway itself? You say you were imstructed to locate from the head of navigation
westward, but that you recommended for a terminus a point further towards the mouth
of thlg rbi;ver ?—Yes; the further you go down the better the facilities for dockage
wou .

Q. Is the Point you recommended higher up or lower down than the Hudson
Bay Company’s Fort ?—Higher up.

Q. Is there any property that you could describe as the point you recommended
between the Fort amf the MoKellar property ? What about the McKellar farm ?—
It almost immediately joins the town plot that might have been used.

Q. Did you recommend that land as the terminus, or did you recommend that
the terminus should be still lower down than the farm ?—No; I did not recommend
any particular place.

5. Was the point that you favoured on the McKellar farm or on the river ?—I
recommended that it should be taken further down.

Q. Had the line been extended further down could land have been obtained
suitable for station grounds ?—Certainly.

Where ?~On the MoKellar farm or on that immediately adjoining; the people
who occwg it keep the post-office, the McVicars,

Q. at could that land have beon obtained for at the time the selection was
made ?—The only information [ can give you on that point is that John MoKellar
came to me about that time and asked me if I knew any one who would be likely to
purchase his land, that he would sell it for $70 per acre.

- 8Q Was that i)efore or after you were there ?—It was about the time I was there
n 1874.

Q. Was ic known at that time that tho Governmont were likely to select this
ﬂuce for the terminus ?—I think they wero all aware of the object of my oporations

one,

Q. Then it was after the Government had made this proposition, Was it known
that the Government had selected this particular place !—They all knew from the
mere faot of my beginning there, that my instructions were to begin looation.

Q. Wae this land worth as much prior to its being known that the terminus was

ing to be located there, as it was after P—A portion of it was cleared land, and
Jndging from the value of ordinary farm lands in Ontario, I should say it was worth
#75 per acre, .
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Q. That farm is a very old one is it not ?—Yes; I think it was cleared thirty or
forty years ago. The people came from the south side of Lake Superior to there.

Q. Does that farm extend down the river ?—Yos; to the edge of the river.

Q. What is the froutage on the river ?-—I could not tell exactly how much front-
age thoy have on the river; they may have two thousand or three thousand foet. It
was pavt of the lands claimed by the Hudson Bay Company.

. Would the situation of that land be as favorable for the work of approaching
the water by the railway as the town plot which is considerably higher up the
river ?—I think it would bo more fhvorabﬁ) as far as dockage is concerned. °

Q. But it would add so much more to the length of the line?—Yes; it would add
80 much more to the length of the railway and cost of equipment of the line.

Q. You would have to buy the right of way ?—Yes; oxcept you took the reserva-
tion along the river or the public highway.

Q. At the time the selection was made, were there any buildings on that property
on the town plot ?—There was one building of Oliver & Davidson's, I should say it
was probably 25 feot b{ 15 feet aquare. It was not occupied. There were also one
or two buildings opposite the mission, log shanties, and also a little place that was
occupied as a tavern by a former cook of mine named McCarrum.

5. Can you describe the streets on which those pmgerties were ?—1I could not.

Q I know it.

Do you know John McLaren's (Place ?——Yes ;
for that building; do you know anything of

Q. 1 see there has been $1,800 pai
that building ?—1I do.

Q. What kind of & building was it ?—As far as my recolloction serves me it was
a log building partially clapboarded on the onds. 1 could not say definitely whether
it was clapboarded altogother or not.

Q. How does the price strike you?—I do not think it would be worth more than
$400 or $500. I was never in the house and I merely speak from my recollection of
the placo ; I passed it often.

Q. I find there was a building purchased from Henmry Delorme who had tiwo
buildings—ono at $150 and one at $125 ?—They could not have been there when the
line was first located. There was, I think, only this man McLaren and another Half-
breed family. The Lorettes occupy the place that was used as a tavern. I think
that was the bost buildinq of the lot. There might have been one or two little
shanties adjoining McLaren's.

Q. I seo by this return also, there was a hotel owned by Warnock & Marks, for
which $1,280 was paid; was that building there when you were there ?—No; there
wore no other buildings there but the ones I have described, and those of two other
Half:-breed families further down the river.

Q. I soe by this return also, that there was $5,029.36 paid for a hotel built and
owned by Davidson, known as the Nebing Hotel ?-—I never saw it.

Q. %hat I understand you to ::iy with véspect to the location of the line and
the land, is this: you were instructed to begin the location at the head of navigation ?
—Yes. .

Q. That you began at the upper end of the town plot ?#—Yes.

Q. Did you stake it out thero ?—No; I did not.

Q. That you recommendod a site further down tho river, below the town plot,
for the terminus, on account of the greater facilitios for dockage afforded by it ?—Yes;
and also for longer navigation in the fall of the year.

Q. That you understood—in fact you had it from the ownor of the property
;éljoining this—that he would sell his tarm for $756 an acre ?—Yes; from John Me-

ellar,

Q. That was after he know you had selocted that place for the terminus ?—I
cannot state whether it was after or at the time. It was when I was there, during
the time I was engaged on the surve{:.

Q. Do you suppose there would be any difficulty in keepitw open the course of
that river, supposing the terminus was locatod on its bank? Would the passing of
vessels keop it free from ice in the fall ?—I should say it would be necessary to keep



40 Victoria. Appendix (No. 1) ) A 18T

& harbour tug running there night and day to keep it open in the fall as long as
Prince Arthur's Landing.

Q. Was this land the in town plot, at that time of any greater value than the
MoKellar farm for the purposes of the railway ?—I recommended the lower place for
railway purposes from the fact that the land slopes a great deal towards the mouth
of the river, and the river freezes at leust ten days or a fortnight earlier than in
Thunder Bay at some seasons.

Q. Would not dockage be hard to find, when the bank is twenty-seven feet back ?
—The land at the west end, where the location was commenced, is twenty-seven feet
above the water, and the place of suitable heiil:t was somewhere about the centre of
the town plot. In order to reach the lower bank, it would be necessary either to
make a cutting, or fill to reach it,

Q. What is the width of the river there?—I measured it with Mr. Hasglewood,
the engineer who was sent up to supersede me. My memory does not serve me to
ng the exact width, but it is about 310 or 315 feet—I am not sure which. That is
where we measured opposite the little dook that Oliver had at that point.

Q. Does it attain & greater width opposite the bend of the river ?—Yes.

Q. What sized steamboat could turn there?—The Chicora could be twrned by
snubbing with the stern line, and turning with the stream; but she could not turn
with her machinery. My reason for chosing this point was, it was utterly impossible
to take any steamer more than one hundred feet along beyond this point. I had
nothing at all to say with regard to the fixing of the station grounds; it was taken
out of mg hands.

Q. Did you stake out the plot as it now stands, or did you simply put in the ter-
minal point t—I simpl{ put in the terminal point at the western boundary.

Q. Did you put in a stake at the lower end ?—No; I simply carried out my
instructions as regards the nav‘ijgation. I did not mark out the ﬁne, as Mr. Hasle-
wood returned in the spring to do it. I was with him a portion of a day in running
the ljne from the western terminal point down some distance.

b. Were the surveys first commenced to be made from the Landing or from
Kaministiquia ?7—They were first commenced from Prince Arthur's Landing. I

n my surveys there first from Thunder Baf' :

Q. What time was that ?~—In November, 1872.

Q. You had no instructions from the late Government or the Eng:neer-in-Chief
to make surveys at Kaministiquia ?—I was not instructed to locate, but to make
preliminary surveys in 1872, and report on Prince Arthur’s Landing.

WILLIAM MURDOCH.
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REPORT.

TaE SENATR,
Comuirrss Room, 26th April, 1876,

The Select Committee of the Senate appointed to enquire into and report :—

1st. As to the difference in length between the line of the Canadian Pacific
Railway from Keewatin westward, and a more southern line by Winunipeg, and south
of Lake Muanitoba to the nearest point common to both lines.

2nd. As to the cost of construction of each line; also the fitness of land for
settlement along each line respectively ; and also the greater chance of an immediate
remunerative line, ¢ with power to send for Fersons, papers and records,” and who
were also authorized “to examine into all questions rolating to_the purchase of
property at Fort William for a terminus of the Canadian Pacific Railway, and to
sengefor persons, papers and records, to examine witnesses under oath, and to report
thereon to the Senate with all convenient speed, this Session,” beg leave to submit
the following as their

THIRD REPORT.

Your Committee have devoted much time and patient attention to the
investigation of the subject submitted to them by the Order of Reference; they have
examined numerous witnesses, Chief Engineers and Land Surveyors; amongst tho
former was the Government Kngineerin-Chief, Mr. Sandford Fleming ; and your
Committee beg to report herewith the evidenee of said witnesses, and

1st. With reference to the line between Keewatin and Selkirk, your Committee
premise that the work being under contract, and some portions of it far advanced
towards completion, and $260,000 expended thereon, no change is recommended.

2nd. As to the difference in length between the located line from Keewatin to
line as well as to the more Southern route, which, it is supposed, might prove more
eligible as being shorter, easier of construction, and ing through a country more
fertile and attractive. Your Committee repoxt that the exact length of the located
line is known; it is 619 miles; but the length of the suggested line can only be
estimated by measuring air lines over the map; and that if an estimate made on
that basis 1s adopted (without allowing for curvature), it would appear that the
length of the two lines is nearly equal. “ One statement submitted to your Committee
gives the length of the located line as 50B miles from Selkirk to Caerlaverock, at the
north elbow of the Saskatchowan, and of the suggested line as 503 miles; another
statement makes the difference of length in favor of the Southern route, 11 miles,

8rd. As to the cost of construction of the respective lines, it is impossible to
speak with precision, inasmuch as the projected southern line has not been located.
o instrumental surveys south of the Little Saskatchewan cart trail have been
undortaken, in consequence of the unfuvourable indication presented in that locality,
the line now located was therefore adopted. Much ovidence, howover, has been
takon by your Committee, which leads them to believe it possible that a favourable
route may bo found yassing through a desirablo country, and unobstructed by many
of the difficulties which induced the Kngineer-in-Chief to relinquish the idea of
finding an available route south of Lake Manitobs.

4th. As to the comparative fitness of the land in the vicinity of the realpootivo
lines for settlement your Committee can only venture to speak in very goneral terms.
That there is a large area of settied lands and lands available for settlement, of
unsurpassed fertility in the Province of Manitoba, is well known, and the bost of
those would be intorsected by the suggested line ; but boyond and westward of the
Sottled and surveyed distriots much variety of soil exists,



40 Victoria ’ Appendix (No. 1.) A. 1877

On the located line some fortile land is reached beyond Selkirk, and considerable
tracts are found about the north-west shores of Lake Manitoba, Dauphin Lake, and
the valley of Swan River ; much useful timber is also growing between Selkirk and
Northcote, while further west the line traverses a region of great extent and
adapted for settlement.

6th. Your Committee observe that the Engineer-in-Chief retains his opinion that
the located line is, on the whole, the best that can be chosen ; without ¢ a.llenging
the accuracy of that opinion, but in view of the fact that a southern route woul
intersect a fertile district inhabited by prosperous settlers who would contribute
much to the successful working of the line, and whose intergst, so far as they are
com?atible with those of the public, ought not to be lost si%flt of; in view also of
the fact that the said route might possibly prove less costly than the located line.

Your Committee advise that an instrumental survey of the southern route
orossing the Little Saskatchewan from 10 to 18 miles south of the *Cart Trail”
thence westerly and north-westerly to the Assiniboine, at a point above the junction
of the Qu'Appele River, thence in & north-westerly direction through the Touchwood
Hills to the elbow of the North Saskatchewan at Caerlaverock on the located line bo
made during the ensuing summer ; and your Committee foel they are justified in
making this suigestion in conformity with the wishes of the people of Manitoba,
inasmuch a8 the Engineer-in-Chief has stated that such & survey might be
accomplished by two parties of Engineers in one season at & moderate cost.

All which is respectfully submitted.
M. A. GIRARD,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.

TuuRsDAY, 22nd March, 1877.
The Committoe mot at noon; Hon. Mr. GIRARD in the Chair.

Mr. S. FLeMiNg, Chief Engineor Pacific Railway, was called and examined as
follows :—

By Hon. Mr. Aikens : —

Q. You are the Chief Engineer of the Pacific Railway ?—Yes; I have been so for
RiX years.

yQ,. 1 think I understood from you the other day that Cross ILake might be con-
sidered a common point whethor you wanted to go to Selkirk or Winnipeg ?—At one
time it wonld have been considered a common point, but a good deal of money haas
since then been expended on the line towards Selkirk. We have spont between
$200,000 and $300,000 on that route. If you go back two or three years, Cross Lake
would have been considered a common point.

Q. Would there be any greater dificulty in constructing a line to Winuipeg from
Cross Lake than to Selkirk ?—There would be no great difficulty either way.

Q. Why was Solkirk selected 7—Itis in a very direct line to Northcote, and it
connects with tho navigation of Lake Winnipeg.

Q. Did the navigation of Lake Winnipeg influence you in the choice of that
route ?----It did.

Q. What trade did you expoct. from that district ?-~There werc other reasons as
woll as tho trade. The neighbourhood of Selkirk has never been known to have
been flooded, whilst the country whereo Winnipeg stands has been flooded several
times to tho dopth of threo or four feet all over the surface.

Q. What trade did you expect for the railway in forming connection with Iake
Winnipog 9-—-Such trade as is usually pmught by water on any of our lakes.

Q. Is the ceuntry on the north side of Lake Winnipeg rocky and rugged ?-~-1
helieve it is not a vory desirable country to the eastor north of Lake Winnipeg.

Q. What is the wost like 7—The west of the Lake isa better country.

Q. 1s there any Iland inviting for sottlement on the west sido until you
approach near to Rod River ?--The bost land of the country is not there; Winni-
peg, howover, is a large shoet of wator, not much less in area than Lake Ontario,
and possibly the trade of tho Saskatchewan may go there some day or other.

Q. Then the impression you were under in locating the line there, was that we
Might get that trado some day ?--I thought it decidedly important to take advantage
of that navigable water,extending as it does some hundreds of miles. Thore is no
great trnde there at present—probably none-—-but we do not know what trade may
Spring up there in the future.

(g re you aware that no vessel can pass into the Saskatchewan from Lake
Winnj ey at prosent ?—1 am quito aware that at one time no vessel could pass from

ake Ontario info tho St Lawrence as far as Montreal, for the same reason—want of
ocks and improvements.

. Q. Did you think that by orossing the Red River further up—that is, nearer
Winnj eg —thore would be difficulties in tho navigation P—The rapids in the river
8bove Solkirk render the river unnavigable during the summer season. This could
bho got over, 1 prosumo, by the construction of locks, or the deepening of the channel
he river,

h Have you ever been over the line, as located, from Selkirk to Shoal Lake ?—No,
ave not,
1—1
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Q. Then the information you have respecting the character of the soil from
Selkirk to Shoal Lake is merely from others?—The whole of this information you
are trying to get from me is embraced in a report that I have been proparing for six
months past; and the information is much more fully given in it than 1 could possibly
givo you now.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Wiil that report be in our hands this sossion ?—Yes. It is now in the
printers’ hands, and will be out very shortly. It cannot be expected that I can give
you facts and figores as precisely, or as accurately, as 1 can doliberately write thom
at my dosk. I would prefer to read the report to the Committeo from the manu-
seript, if the Government would permit. The answers I give you now cannot be ro
satisfuctory either to you or to myself as if I read them from my report.

Q. What porcentage of land is availablo for settlement from Red River to Shoal
Lake ?*—In the dpcument I am getting out the fullest possible information is given.
It will cover two or throe hundrod pages, and it includes reports trom Professor
McConn, Mr. Dawson, and others, with rogard to the agricultural capabilities of the
country, the economic minerals, and everything else. I havo not been over the
whole ground mysclf, although T have been through the country a good deal.

Q) Then from Shoal Lake westward you have not heen over the route -—I have
crosaed the line in soveral places bofore it was locuted, but not since.

Q. Who located the }ino ?—1It has heon located by different parties. From
Selkirk wost to the crossing of Lake Manitoba was locuted by Mr, H. McLeod.

Q. How far west did he go ?—He wont through Yellow Head Puass at various
times.

Q). Who were tho engincers undor him ?—Messrs. Lucasand Ruttan ; neither Mr.
Lucas nor Mr. Ruttan have been on the portion betweon Lake Manitoba and Selkirk.
From the Narrows, west, Mr. Cunningham, who is now in Princo ldward Island, and
Mr. Lmcas had boen over that section, and the roports of those gentlemen will be
ombodied in minc.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne : —

Q. Could you inform the Committoe at what poeriod thix survey which forms the
basis of this enquiry, was commenced ?—We commenced oexploratory surveys in 1871,
the instrumental surveys did not commenee tor probably a couplo or three ycars
aftor that.

Q. Wore the first explorations made with a view to obtain the best line 2—VYes.

Q. Could you ntate what particular time you came to the conclusion that the line
solocted from Solkirk vid Northcote was the best ? —1 cannot charge my memory, but
the dato is given in the report I referred to—tho very month and yoar.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. You say one of the reasons for selecting the present route was to accommodato
tuture trado by Lake Winnipeg. Has the country on tho shores of Lake Winnipeg
boen thoroughly explored ?—I think not; the impression in my mind is that tho -
northern shore. at all events, and the eustern shoros are not adapted for agrienltural
purposes; it may be valuable for mineral resources, so far as I know, but there is
nothing known beyond the coast line, '

Q. I understood you to say that there are difficulties in the way of' trade by the
Suskatchewan falling into Lake Winnipeg ?—Yos.

Q. Serious difficulties ?—Yes.

Q. Du you think, supposing the Canada Pacitic Railway to be built on the line
located, that any considerable amount of trafic under the most favourable circum-
stances, will ever find its way along the Suskatchewan and into Lake Winnipeg ?—I
am not propared to give an opinion on that point.

(). 1llave you formed an opinion on that point 7—No; the difficulties in tho way
are not vory scrious, nothing like difficultics that have boen overcome in other purts
of Canada. :

Q. How deep is the water of the Sask;tchewan ?—The Saskatchowan with few
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exceptions, is navigable for light draught steamers for many hundreds of miles above
the rapids near its mouth, for vessels ot three or four feet draught.

Q. In the lowest water ?—Yes; in low water from three to four feet. There
would be difficultios in the lowest water, in the present condition ef the river for
instance : Tobbin’s rapids, Coal rapids, and perhaps some other points where there
are boulders in the way, and which would roquire to be taken out.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :—

Q. Why select this northerly route through the narrows, instead of going south
of Lake Manitoba ?—Because it is a good deal shorter,

Q. What is the distance between Seikirk and Caerlaverock ?—-It is 271 miles
from Selkirk to Livingston; from Livingston to Saskatchewan, 196 milos; and to
Caerlaverock, about 40 more; in all 507 miles.

Q. Could not a shortor line bo had wsouth of Lake Manitoba and the Riding
Mountains ?—The line south of Lake Manitoba would be a very costly line, from
what 1 have scen of it myself. 1 am quite satistied that the located line is the
shortest betwoen those two points, and by tar the cheapest and the best. 1t may not
be shorter than an air line drawn between the two points; but you could not possibly
construct an air line through that country,

Q. llave you over been over the country from Solkirk to the Little Saskatche-
wan ?—1 have.

Q. What is the quality of the soil ?—It is most excellont.

Q. Aro you }wepurod to say what the distance is ?~—I1 do not remember.

By the Ion. Mr. Haythorne : —

Q. Aro thogenoral foutures of the country levol ?—Yes, slightly rolling. When

you got to Little Saskatchewan it is not so level,
By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :—

Q. Have you ever examinod for the purpose of a railway, the crossings of the
Little Suskatchowan ?—I1 have. I have had photographs of it takon.

Q. Which way did you examine, north or south of the cart trail 2—The Tittlo
Saskatchewan has a deep wide valloy, oxtonding up and down as far as the eye can
reach. I did not take time, nor had I tire, to examine it for a groat distance on
oither side of the crossingon the cart trail. 1 could only judge of what 1 saw within
tho range of my vision, which covered a great many milos. 1 had parties oxploring
in various divections to the right and to the loft, not when I wax thore mysolf, but at
other times.

Q. Who wero the partios that explored right and left ?—Messrs. Moberley,
Ioretsky, Nichol and Krmatinger.

Q. You are not prepared to say how far those gentlomen extended their observa-
tions north or south ¢—They extended them through the country. The information
acquired was of a genoral nature; the whole country was new to us; we did not
know any one of' those particular points you are now referring to at that time.

Q. Vo the difticulties to which you refer grow out of the streams coming from
tho Riding Mountains ?—The Little Saskatchewan is the principal but not tho only

jnt whore the ditHculties aro great.  Kvory stream flowing from the north seems
tdrun in very deop, wide valleys.

* Q. Do they tuke their origin in the Riding Mountains 2—Yes; the elovation of
these mountains is 1,600 feot above tho sea.

Q. What is the olevation of Lake Winnipeg, above the sen? - Lake Manitoba is
781 feet ; Lko Winnipog 710, and Lake Winnipegoosis 770. The Riding Mountains
are 1, 660 feot; nll nbove the same level ; so that the Riding Mountains would be about
900 feet high. Thero is no peak running up; it has morely a plateau or flat top.

Q. Do thoy decline from the highest point towards the south, and join with the
})lains below ?—The olevation to the west is maintained somewhat. To the east they
all off somewhat sbruptly, and to the south they run gradually down to the plain.

By the Hon. Mr. Simpson : — .
. . Q. Aro thoy timbored ?—Somo portions of them are. Thoere is more or less
timber everywhove, but it is not of much value, excopt what you meet in groves.
3

1—1}
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By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

Q. The further south you keep from these mountains, do you not find less diffi-
culty in crossing tho streams descending from them ?—Yes; but you would have to
%g a long way out of the direct course. You would have to go south of the Assini.

ine to get a more level country. I do not think there is much probability of
gotting a satisfactory line the north of the Assiniboine.
By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Are ﬁou aware that there is a valley running betwoen the Duck Mountain
and Riding Mountain ?—There is a slight valley.

Q. You have no particular knowledge of it ?—No; I have no special knowledge
of it.

Q. Have you any special knowledge of tho country along tho base of Riding
Mountain, south side ?——That is the country we have been talking about. Ihave not
been there except on the curt trail.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. I think you stated the other day that by the railway crossing at the Narrows
vossels going northward from the south of Lako Manitoba might connect there with
the trade coming southward from Laice Winnipegoosis ?—Whenever we touch navi-
gable water, such waters will form traffic-foeders to the railway.

Q. Will it require a drawbridge at the Narrows to allow vessels from Lake
Winnipogoosis to pass down to Lake Manitoba ?—I trust a drawbridge will not be
. noeded there. There is certainly no tratfic to require a drawbridge there at the
present time.

Q. If there was navigation botwoen the two lakes it would be interceptod by the
railway bridge, would it not ?—The railway crossing at that point would undoubtedly
interfore with the navigation between the two lakes, unless there is a drawbridge, or
a bridge high enough to allow vessel« to pass under it.

Q. Have you ever heard that in the neighbourhood of the Narrows, on the east
side, the contractors for the Pacitic Telograph Linc were unable to obtain sufficient
solid ground to keep their poles erect, and many of thom had fallen down ?—T never
did. It is perfectly now to me. I hoar a good deal from difterent sources that I do
not pay much attention to.

Q. In passing over the muskegs on the line have tho engincers ever oxamined
them in order to uscertain what the bottom really is ?—Yes.

Q. What was tho result —They reported to me that the bottom is hard.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. At what depth from the surface ?7—At various depths, At no placo is the
depth considered great. 1 do not think the difficulties in laying a railway track
throu%h thom would be any groater than in the construction of the Northern Railway
from Collingwood to Barrie. That was looked upon as a formidable work to go
through there with a railway at one time. The very last time I wont ovor that line
I was surprisod to see the land that I considered, whon the railway was being con-
structed, as being ontirely worthloss, now boaring crops of grain.

Q. Has tho surrounding country been cleared ?—A fire passod through #,
dostroyed the timber,and lot the wind and sun in. Tho owners of tho land du,
ditches, which carried off the water, and converted the soil into arable fiolds,
mention this to show that a country that may be considered of little value now ma
bo ot value in the future. My remarks will apply to the portion of the Pacific Rail-
way in question also, There is a little timber over it, certainly over fifty por cent. of
tho line is timbered. North of Shoal Lake, it is heavily timbered, and {am not sure
but the whole of it is timbered more or less from thore to Livingstone.

Q. Do I understand youto say that these muskogs or swamps are timbered ?—
Some of them are, and some of them are not.

Q. How uare they from Shoal Lake to the Narrows of Lake Manitoba ?—Some of
them are timbered. I would wish it to be understood that the timber in thatsection
is nothing like the timber we havein this part of Canada. It consists for tho most
part of willow, poplar, spruce, and that so:t of wood.
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Q. 1las tho fire ever run over that section of country ?—I am not aware that it

has of late years, but I have no doubt that it will if precautionis not taken to pre-
vent it. ,
Q. What effoct would it have on the roadway where the land is saturated with
water, should the frost penetrate five or six foot into the ground, if it was not drained
to take the water off ?—Unless the road-bod is of sufficient height to provent the
frost from gotting under it would certainly injure it; but if we diz a ditch threo feet
deep, and raise tho roadway three feet, it will be sufficiently nigh to avoid that
danger. Tt ought to bo that high at any rate. The ground is forty feet above the
level of Lake Manitoba, so that there cannot be any difficulty in carrying off the
water.,

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne : —
Q. Then there would be no difienlty in draining it ?—No great difficulty. Some
of thedrains would have to be conducted a considerable distance.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :—

Q. Would you got sufficiont soil out of the ditches to make the road-bed ?—Yes,
quite enough.

Q. Have you ever heard anything about the ice-jams at the Narrows ?—Yos, but
I do not suppose the ice oporates diﬂ%x'ently there from what it does on any other
groat lakos of the country. It will push a little, and it will require some stonework
to protect the roadway.

Q. Is stono accessiblein that section 7—There is stone in that neighbourhood. I
know limestone is reported as existing on the shores of the lake, and it could be
easily bmu&ht by water to that spot. Nearly all the information I am giving you is
second-hand. You asked me to furnish you with the comparative distances of the
located line and the route by Winnipeg, and the estimated cost which I will now
give you. The located line from Northcote to Selkirk is estimated to be twenty-four
miles shorter than a line round the southoerly end of Lake Manitoba running thence
to Selkirk.

. The located line from Northcote to Setkirk is estimated to be 32 miles shorter
gmn a line from Northcote by the south ond of Lake Manitoba to Winnipeg and
elkirk.

The cost of the first, allowing for track, rolling-stock, &c., wonld probably exceed
the cost of the located line by $600,000; but as the located line involves an extension
of the Pembina Branch, twenty miles, that section may, in estimating the first cost,
enter into the aocount; that would reduce the difference to about $100,000 in favour
of the located lino.

To bring the main line round by Winnipeg from Selkirk, and around the south
end of Lake Manitoba, the oxtra thirty-two miles may be estimated at $800,000; or
if the twenty miles of the Pombina Branch be deducted, $300,000.

Tho money spent esst of Selkirk, on located line, to end

of December.....ccccceninvnnns cerererirennas . terenees creenen $260,000
Wost of Selkirk, on located line, up to same period, say 60,000
$320,000

I had some difficulty in estimating the cost, and 1 adopted a rule of proportion.
Ipcluding grading, rails, rolling-stock, etc., I estimate it at $26,000 per mile. The
differenco botween the cost of the two routes is $100,000 in favour of tho located line.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins:—

Q. Do you suppose the cost of construction would be so great, if you had not to
carry the road through such soft ground as that near the Narrows?—I[ am not pre-
Pared to say that there would be any differonce. I would not venture to say that it
would cost any more or less. I would take thom both at the same price.

L]
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By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne : —

Q. Would you have to expropriate any occupied land on the southorn route ?-—
1t is probable tl?\’at we would, and if so, it wouldr,) of course, incronse the cost of the
road, although they might be induced to give the right-of-way for nothing.

By the Hon. Mr. Girard :—

Q. Have not many of the surveys been made in the winter season ?—Yes, Iwe
have boen obliged to make some of them in the winter.

Q. Then the difficulties of the route could not have been seen ?——Wo have found
a great deal of difficulty in making the surveys in winter. It has boen very hard on
the poor fellows who have had to mako them.

Q. Was the $60,000 you speak of as being exponded wost of Selkirk, expended
on the railway 2—No; on the telegraph line.

Q. Is there any settlemont west of Selkirk ?—Thore may be a little at Selkirk,
but none west of that. There is hardly a settler hotween Lake Winnipeg and
Cariboo on the located line, or anywhere in its vicinity.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Are you aware‘that there are settlors on the Saskatchocwan?—I am aware
that thero are a few settlers in that section, but you can hardly call it a settloment.
There are one or two at the Saskatchewan and one or two at other points, but they
are so very few in comparison to the extent of country, that they cannot be called
settloments, Witu regard to the character of the land and some other questions you
have been asking me, 1 have a report of my own to refer to. It isin roply to a letter
sent to the Government by the Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, pointing out that
the line would be very much better if located south of Lake Manitoba. think it
bears on the question, and it may be woll I should read it. It is as follows :—

CaNADIAN Pacrvic RAlLway,
Orrice oF THE ENGINEER-IN-CHIEF,
OrrAWA, 26th May, 1875,

DEeAr Sir,—I send herewith replies to some points in the lettor of the Lieut,
Governor of Manitoba, of date 8th May, 1875, extracts from which you sent me.

I regret to find that the Licutenant-Governor has been seriously misinformed,
both with respect to the quality of the land, and the character of tho country for
railway construction, [ am decidedly of opinion that there could not be a more
fortunate selection of route than between Selkirk and Livingstone. I determined
in the first place to make u trial survey by the Narrows of Lake Manitoba and Swan
River, in order to avoid serious engincering and other objections to the route spoken
of by the Lieutenant-Governor, but I little expected to find that either the country or
the line would prove so favourable. It would, in my judgment, be a great mistake to
chango the location now adopted.

Yours very truly,
gAN DFORD FLEMING,
Engineer-in-Chief.
The Hon. A. MAckENzIE,

MEMORANDUM.

Eaxtracts from Lieut.-Governor Morris’ let- Replies by the Engineer-in-Chief :—
ter, dated 8th May, 1875 : —

1st. I have made a great deal of en-  The Chief Engineer has himself passed
quiry, and am satisfled that you oan over a great part of the country referred
obtain a line running from the crossing to. He has no hesitation in saying that
below the Stone Fort to Portage la Prai- sit would be very much more difficult to
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rie, thence to Whitomud and thence to
the elbow of the North Saskatchewan—
the point yon must make for after reach-
ing KFort Pelly—more directly and with
loss difficulties than the line from the
crossing of the Narrows, and thence to
Fort Pelly. Tho advantages, oo, of the
proposed line aro vory great.

2nd. The line via the Narrows and Fort
Pelly, runs through very inforior country,
and good land is not met till you reach
the lé::t Hills beyond Fort Pelly.

3rd. The country around Fort Pelly is
not adapted for agriculture. I hada visit

esterday from Mr. Watt, Presbyterian

inister, who spent two years there, and
removed, with t’he consent of the church,
to the mountains, because he could raise
no crops owing to constant frost. The
line I suggest, while traversing the sottled
portion of Manitoba, would run through
& wooded and prairie country, well adapted
for settlement.

4th. Another advantage is, that by
running from the crossing up tho wost
side of the Red River, you ocould use that
section both for tho main line and the
Pombina Branch.

Hth. If a line can be had as short, and
through a good country, it should have
the preforence over one through an in-
ferior tract.

6th. There ix no great benefit to arise
from the line to Fort Pelly. It is out of
the way, and will be so for yoars, unless
the railway is built to it.

By the Hon Mr. Aiking :—

construct a railway in the direction ro-
commended. There would be a large
number of deep and wide valleys to
crossed, the cost of bridging which would
be enormous. With regard to the located
line. the bridging is very trifling indeed;
in fact it would scarcely be possible to
find a line in any country more favour-
able, as far as gradients and abridgment
are concerned.

The land in the section of country
betweon Red River crossing and Swan
River barracks, near Livingstone (mot
Fort Polly) is good. Before the survoy
was made the country was described as
all swamp and muskey; this is found to
bo a mistake. There are some portions
of it which require drainage. is will
howover, be furnished by the side drains
of the railway. Much of the country is
reported by our engineers to be very rich
and valuable.

The lino does not pass within ten miles
of Fort Pelly, but passes to the north of
it, and along the side of the Swan River
Valloy, where there is as fine land as any
in the Province of Manitoba. There is
also very fine merchantable timber onand
near the line, in the neighbourhood of
the Duck Mountains.

This would be sacrificing the main line
and unnocessarily increasing its length, in
order to serve local interests, and should
not for a moment be entortained.

This view is correct. According to
the most reliable information obtained,
the located line is the shortest that can bo
had, and it passes through a country in
many respects most valuable.

Winnipeg was at one time out of the
way. Tﬁe railway built botwecn Selkirk
and Livingstone would spoedily bring to
it a much larger population than there is
now in any part of the country north of
the 49th parallel.

Q. Aro we to understand that, in the examination of the country south of the
located line, that an instrumental survey was made ?—Instrumental surveys have
beon made, but not the whole way reforred to by Liout.-Governor Morris. e refers

to a line running through Vert

ills and White Head River, and then from there

to the crossing of the South Saskatchewan.
Q. Hoe roferred to the Fort Pelly route ?—Yes, deprecatingly.
\J
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By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. The only line that has been surveyed instrumentally is the located line ?—I
cannot say that. We have made many surveys that are not shown on the map ; but
the line that has boen most accurately surveyed is tho located line. We have not
run a continuous line through that country, as wo considered it would be a waste of
money.

(i Are you nware that a Hudson Bay Co.’s boat came from the Saskatchewan
into Lake Winnepegoosis, and from there into Lake Manitoba ?—I am not aware of
it. If it is 8o, they must have had a very heavy portage.

Hon. Mr. Simpson :—

Q. What kind of a boat was it—a bark canoo ?
HHon. Mr. Sutherland :—

A. No, a five tons boat,
Mr. Fleming : —

A. ] think you must have been misinformed, as it would be impossible fora vessel
to float all the way. They would have to take it over a ridge forty foet high, if my
recollcction is correct. It must have been hauled over by the crew.

The Committee adjourned at one p.m.

Fripay, March 23rd, 1877.
The Committee met at noon.

Mr. Tuomas Srence, Clerk of the Legislative Az;sembly, Province of Manitoba,
was called and examined as follows :

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens : —

Q. Have you any knowledge of the country about the Narrows of Lake Manitoba
along the located line of the Pacific Railway ?—Yes; my knowledge is principally
acquired from passing from Lake Manitoba into Lake Winnipeg through the Narrows
to go into Lake Winnipegoosis. That is the route to go to the Saskatchewan, it is
the only way of going to that country, by taking advantage of navigation.

By the Hon. Mr.. Macpherson :— .

Q. What sized boats are used ?—Boats drawing from two and one-half to three
feet of water.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins:—

Q. Wore you a resident of the Fairford Mission, a few miles north of the Pacitic
Railway line for some time ?—Yos.

Q. Did you examine the country either north or south of that place ?—Yos; I
was back some tive or six miles on either side of the Mission.

Q. What is the character of the country in the immediate neighbourhood ?—It is
grmcipnlly poor wet land covered with pine and tamarack, a sort of muskeg, a very
ad country to go through on foot,

.. Q. Huve you ever examined the country more than five or six miles on either
side of the Minsion ?—No; it was almost impossible to go that far; it was so wet and
swampy.

Q. Do yon know anythmg personally about the country east of the Narrows ?—
No; my knowledge is derived from the Indians, who say it so swampy that it is
almost impowsible to go through it; I have heard from Indians and alf‘breeds who
were with me in the ﬁoat, that they could hardly go through there; I am not speaking
of tg.:e railway line, but of the country in the vicinity of Fairford Mission, further
eas

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Do you consider it any bottor where the road is located ?—I have not heard,
‘Ihhave always understood that the country was pretty much the same all through

Qre,

8
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By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Do you know whethor tho country near Lake Manitoba is bottor than the

(lz)ountry furthor north ?—1 have sailed along the const, the land and the timber seomed
etter.
By the Hun. Mr. Haythorne : —

Q. You say you made the voynge in July; wuas that the lowost water ?—No; I
should say not. Thore is & great body of water coming down from othor lakes all
the time. I had to pass through the Narrows to get up there.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :—

Q. So far as yon know on cither side of the Narrows, what is the character of
the soil for settlement?—I cannot speak of the soil; I merely passed by on the
water. It is a very narrow pass—very rocky in some places near the Narrows—and
almost porpendicular to the water north of the Narrows.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —

Q. Do you know if there is a groat deal of ice there in the spring ?—1 cannot say
from my own knowledge. 1 have heard othors say it is a very bad place for ice in
tho spring. There is sometimes a strong current passing through the Narrows.

By the Ion. Mr. Scott :—

Q. You do not cross the railway line, as located, at all to go from Lake Winni-
pegoosis into Lake Winnipeg ?—No.

Q. What is the country like north of the railway line, and west of the Narrows ?
—1It is all low and swampy.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :—

Q. You made ralt somewhero in that section of conutry ?—Yes; I made salt up
the Water Hen River for the H{udson Bay Company, and at Lake Winnipegoosis.
The salt springs are on Swan River.

}; the Hon. Mr. Simpson : —

Q. Dili/ you make salt from the springs ?—Yes.

Q. How; by evaporation, or boiling —By boiling, in a primitive way.

N Q. Do you know anything of the country east of Northcote, excopt by hearsay ?
0.

Q. Have you traversod Lake Manitoba ?—Yes; 1 have beon on both xides—south
and west of tho lake.

Q. What is tho quality of the soil to the south of the lake ?—Very good. I have
not sesn nny botter.

Q. What is the quality of the land on the west side ?—To the west of Lake
Manitoba, and south-east of it, below Qak Point, the land isall timberoed very heavily.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmot : —

Q. Whot kind of timber ?—A mixture of everything; almost uscless oxcept for
firowood.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. From your ncquaintance with that country, what aro we to infer as to the
nature of tho soil from that quality of timber 2—1 should say that the =oil might be

ir enough cloro to the lake.  Whero hardwood is growing it cannot be swampy.
he timber is usually oak.

Q. From your acquaintance with the country, would you consider it fit for imme-
diate settlement 7—I should sny not. There are no settlers north of Oak Point.

eople are not going into a heavily timbered country like that, when they can get
Prairie land.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : — . .

Q. The country on the wost shoro of Lake Manitoba is a good country, is it
not ?—Yos; n vory good country ; a vory pretty country towards the Riding Moun-

tains.
By the Hon. Mr. Vidal: - . )
Q. Have you ever boen through tho country lying north-oast of the Riding
Mountains 2—No; I wént ovor the Fort Polly trail).
Q. What is the chaructor of country lying north and east of Lake Manitoba ?—
9
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It is generally supposed that the country must be very bad when the Indians cannot
o through it in summer. That is the country north of the line. The route I had
to take to Fairford Mission eould not possibly have been worse.

Q. What was your improssion of the land to the south end of Lake Muanitoba ?
That country is the best in the Province; it is beautiful land.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens : —

Q. You spoko of the soil at Fairford Mission ; what is the quality of it ?—Itis
very stony. Thore is a small farm therc which has been cleared by the Mission, but
very stony, It has a limestone bottom that comes almost to the surtace.

Q. Did you ever hear them say why they did not go further back and get better
land ?—No; I suppose it was becauso it was all small pine and tamarack, and they
could not get better location there. I suppose they established tho Mission in the
most convenient pluco. Starting from Winnipog, vid Portage La Prairie, south of
Lake Manitoba, und west towards the base of the Riding Mountains, it is a vory nice
country; flat and slightly rolling in some places. '

By the Hon. Mr. Aikeng :—

Q. Do the mountains disappoar onjthe cart trail there ?—Yes; the north side
of the Riding Mountains is vory steop, but on the south side slopes gradually to a
level. It is settlod some distance boyond the TLittle Saskatchewan now---about ten
miles.

Q. Have you beon as far west ns Fort Ellico ?-~No. Following the southerly cart
trail, I have not travelled further wost than Little Souris River. gl‘he country is vory
ood, with the exeeption of a few miles here and there of sandy places, especiall
%etween the Assiniboine and the Sand Hills. North of the Assiniboine the land 18
all good, but south, betweon that and the Souris River, the land is light and inolined

to ﬁe sandy. '

Q. Are thoro any sottlors on the Assinaboino where the cart trail passes ?--=No.

Q. Ave there any on the Souriy River ?----No.

Q. Iave you ever beon at the foot of Liake Winnipegoosis ?—Yes ; quiteclose to
it. Wo have to pass up Water Hen Rivor, and go up about sixty miles; then the
river doubles upon itself and runs so close that you can stand up in the canoe and
can goe over the bend of the river, the land is so flat.

Q. Have you over been at Mossy Portage ?—No. But I have had men with me
who have hoen there dozens of times, and thoy pushed the boats through from Mossy
Portage in the spring.

Q. What kind of boats ?—Boats that would carry about five tons—Hudson Bay
Company’'s boats. There i only ono kind of boats used thore, good sea-going boats.

Q. What is the country at the foot of Lake Winnipegoosis %ike ?—1do not know;
I have never travelled it.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins: —

Q. As regards tho Littlo Saskatchewan, is there any difficulty in crossing it on
the cart trails, owing to a deop ravine at that place ?—-g}o; not vory deep until you
get highor up. The streams west of the Saskatchewan on the cart trail, and descend-
ing from the Riding Mountains, are small, you could almost jump across them at the
orossings. The banks of the Assiniboine are very high where the cart trail passes.
You have to let carts down with ropes at the crossings, the banks being almost
perpendicular.

By the Hon. Mr. Seott :—
Q. What is the hoight ?—At the crossing place I should say it is almost seventy
or eighty teet.

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—
Q. The streams running from the Riding Mountains to the Assiniboine run
through deep ravines whero the trail crosscs. Do those deep ravines disappear as
u travel south to the plains 7—=They gradually vergo into the plain. So far as I
recollect I was not particularly struck withotlao. o being deep. I di\f not leave the trail.
' 1
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By the Hon. Mr. Scott :-—
Q. Is that trail known as the Saskatchewan road out by Bird's Tail Creck, due
east from Fort Kllice 7—Yes.
Q. What lino do you follow to go out from Portage la Prairie; is it the third
base line ?7—When I went out there there were no townships surveyed.
By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :~-
Q. You say you saw men who went through Mossy Portage with a boat ?—Yos.
I saw the men, and they were telling me how easy they got through. From the
Saskatchewan there is navigation almost through from Lake Mauitoba into the
Assiniboine River.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—
Q. The Assiniboine falla into the Red River and the Red River into Lake
Winnipeg ?—Yos.

D. Lucas, Civil Eugineor, was called and examined as follows :—

By the Hon, Mr. Atkins :—

Q. You located a portion of the Pacific Railway line; from whore ?—From the
south end of Lake Winnipegoosis to Livingstone.

Q. At what season of the year did you locate that ?—In winter.

Q. Havoe you over been over it in summer?—Yes; I was over it on the
exploratory survey during the provious summer.

Q. What is the character of tho soil through which that line passes ?—I know
nothing as to tho soil. It is woody and probably sandy soil.

Q. You could judge pretty much from the timber as to tho character of the soil ?
—The timber is spruce, tamarac, poplar, and a good deal of swamp elm. There is
very large spruce timber around the Duck Mountain.

Q. From your knowledge of that country, how would you judge of that soil, a8
gompared with that further south and westof Knke Manitobs ?-—% have been south of
Lake Manitobn. I have travelled on the oxisting trails to the North-West.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —

Q. Was that on the exploratory survey ?—Yes,

By the Hon. Mr. bk:dherlaml s— :

Q. Which way did you go to Livingstone?—I wont along the valley of the
Assiniboine to Fort Pelly.

Q. Have you ever beon over the line of road whero it is located from Living-
Bttgne wenst 2—The Assiniboine is not crossed uutil you got 25 miles west of Living-
8tone.

Q. Is that the heaviest stream you have to cross, the Assiniboine, at the west
and east branch ?—The crossing would be a more nothing at these points.

Q. How wide are the streams ?—The water is about 100 feet or undor—100 feet
in each caxe. In neither case would a trossel structure for bridges be more than 30
or 40 foot high. [ have been from Livingston to Edmonton all over that country.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson »—
Q. Along the located line ? —Along the trail line as marked on the map.
By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —

Q. Do’ I understand you to say that the line was locatod previous to your going
to Livingstone ?— Yos.

Q. g]hat was your reason for going out on the old trail in preferonce to going
out on the located line ?—I wanted to take out carts, so as to take them through the
oountry west of Livingstone, and there is no cart trail through that country,

Q. Do you menn to say that you could take carts through that country in the
Sammer time ?—Since then carta have been takon through there. .

Q. On tho located line? —I presume o, as the telegraph line has boon coastructed
there since, and thoy were obliged to tako a cart reel through with the wire.

. Q. Do you know at what season of the yoar the lino was put up; was it in
Winter ?—1I cannot say.
11
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Q. Do T understand you to say that the line from Livingstono west was not

located to Battleford 7—The trail line, I think, is all that is surveyed.
By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q- When wore you over there; was it last year ?—I think it was in the summer
of 1876.

Q. What is tho soil and timber on that ronte like ?—For 30 or 40 miles west of
Livingstone the timber is heavy spruce; after that you got into a bluff country
with poplar biuff:;, having large openings amongst them, interspersed with lakes and

nds.

Q. These bluffs would be principally sand hills ?—From the nature of the timber
I presumo the subsoil must be sandy.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Is, or is not, the country attractive for settlers ?—It depended very much on
the{ settler’s own ideas. 1 am only speaking from memory as to the character of the
soil.

Q. What kind of country is it from Pembina River to Jasper House ?—It is a
timbered country, covered with poplar, spruce, tamarac and swamps.

Q. What iy the distance ?— About 120 miles,

Q. Is it uninviting for settlement ?—West of the Pembina River I do not think
gettlers would go into that country, but it is the only pass you can get to go through
the Rocky Mountains.

Orrawa, Monpay, March 26th.

Tho Committee met at noon, but owing to the absence of an important witness
they adjourned at 12:30.

OrTAWA, TUuEsDAY, March 27th.
Mmngr Harr, D.1..S., was called and examined as follows :-—

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking:—

Q. Have you been Inspector of Surveys in Manitoba and the North-West ?—Yes.

Q. What portion of the Province of Manitoba and the North-West did you
Jinspect surveys in 2—From Winnipeg, the nrincipal moridian, westward,

Q. How far wost 7—-To range 26, west.

Q. That would be as far as the neighbourhood of Fort Ellice ?—About twelvo
miles enst of that point.

Q. What kind of country did you find from Winnipeg west to the boundary of
the Provinco, as to soil 7—The soil as a general thing is very good.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—-
Q. How many miles would that be ?—About seventy-oight miles. There is
about ninety miles of good land to the boundary of the Province.
By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—
Q. Would there be any difficulty in constructing a railway over this ninety
- miles ?---None whautever. It is a very level country and dry. There are a fow
swamps south and west of Wexbourne.

Q. Are those swamps of any great extent ?-—Not very great; one of them
extonds to tho west a few miles.

Q. From the boundary of the Province to the Assiniboine, ninety miles west-
ward, what kind of soil is there through that country ?---There is about fifteen miles
of sandy country to go through, a little west of the boundary. After that the soil is
o fair sundy loan.

Q. Is it inviting for settloment ?-—Yes, a very fair country for sottlement.

Q. Is thore any timber ?--The timber is scarce immediately along this base line,
but noith of the Riding Mountains there is an abundance of timber.

12
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Q. What difficulties are the e in the way of the construction of a railway from
the wost boundary of the Piovince west to the Assiniboine over the ninety
miles to which you have reforred ?--~I have never boen to the Assiniboine there.
We left off within twelve miles of it, and the only obstacle to that pointis at the
Bird Tail Croek.

Q. Whon you ray there aro no obstacles but Bird Tail Creek, do you excopt the
Sagkatchewan ?—Thoere is no difficulty in crossing the Saskatchewan.

Q. At what point would there be no difficulty in crossing the Saskatchewan ?—
At townships twelve and thirteen.

Q. Would that be nearly in a direct westerly line from Selkirk ?—The direct
westerly lino would be about six miles south of Selkirk.

Q. ls the Saskatchewan liable to floods at the crossing ? ~No.

. Q. Is it shown on the Dominion map whether there are high banks, or whether
ltl is a plain at tho crossing of the Saskatchewan to which you rofer 2—It iz porfectly
plain.

Q. Was that detormined by nctual survey ?—Yoes.

Q. Have you evor crossed the Saskatchewan on the old cart trail 2—Yes; at that
¢rossing thore is u very wide valley and very deep. The hills are high. The point
I refer to where it is plain is about ten miles south of the cart trail.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. Do you say thero in a district of five or six miles in width along the Sas-
]f(iutchewn,n wheroe it could be crossed at any point without difficulty ?—Yes; four or

vo miles.

Q. What is tho actual width of the stream 2—The actual stream is about sixty or
seventy feet wide.

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal : —

Q. Aro tho banks high 7—No; they slope gradually down to the river with a
hard bottom—that is at the point nearly due west of Selkirk.

Q. You spenk of difficulty in crossing Bird Tail Creek—at what point 2—On the
Saskatchowan cart trail.  The banks there are high. Tt is about ten miles cast of
Fort Ellice.

Q. Have you been south of that ?—No; 1did not go south of that.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. How tar is that south of the presont line as located ?—Bird Tail Croek is about
one hundred miles south of Northeote, the most northerly point of the located line,
hear Duck Mountain.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins - —

Q. You are not able to spoak from poersonal obsorvation as to the character of
the country south of Bird Tuil Creek ?—No; they had not extended the line that far
Whon 1 was there.

Q. Boing Inspector of Surveys your duty was to examino the country north and
South ?—Yes.

Q. What is the gonceral charactor of the country for settloment?—It is a very
fair country, with the exception of that sandy belt (o which I have alluded, which is
about fifteon miles wide.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :~- .

Q. Is that so sandy asx to be too light for sottloment ?—You might pick out a
fow quartor sections favorablo for sottlement, but as a general thing the soil is too
light for tilling, but might do for grazing. It oxtends down, as far as I know, to the

ssiniboine.
By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —-
Q. It runs north and south ?—-About in that divection.
By the Hon. Mr. Simpson : —~

Q. Is it timbored 2—'Thoro is a littlo timber on it.

Q. Is there plenty of water on it ?—Yos.

. Q. Good water ?7—Yes, the water is always good in tho sandy country. From
Wmnipeg wost to this sandy belt the land is very good ; then west of that, 1o within
13
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twelvo miles of Fort Ellice, the land is not so good as on the cast side of the sandy
bolt, but it is a very fair sandy loam. In the course of time I think it will all be
sottle !, a8 it is capablo of growing all that a man wants in that country.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :--
Q. Does that character of country oxtend far north towards the Riding Moun-
tains ?.--It does on the west of Little Saskatchewan.

By the Hlon. Mr. Scott :—

(). How far morth have you been ?-~I have never beon further north than
Riding Mountain House. That would be about eighteen miles north of the Saskat-
.chewan cart-trail,

By the Hon. Mr. Alking :—

Q. On the east of the Little Saskatchewan, from the Riding Mountain Houso
towards Linko Manitoba, what is the character of the wroil ?-~The soil is very good
over tho routhern slope of the Riding Mountains, and botween the Riding Mountains
and Lake Manitobn the country is more suitable for stock-raising than agriculture,
as it is wet land.  West of the south end of Liake Manitoba the soil i very grood.

Q. Does & similar tract of country exist between Lake Manitoba and Riding
Mountains, farther north 21t extends about cighteon miles north of the northerly
boundary of Manitoba-—that is, as far as [ know,

Q. What ig the character of the country weast of Lake Manitoba? Iiave you
boen there 7——Yes, [ have been there. 1 do not call it a vory good country ; it is not
a3 good land as that to the south of Lake Manitoba. 1t is a gravelly country, full of
Jarge swamps.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Is there much wood in it ?—Yes; itis full of poplae timber.

Q. Not such forests as we have here 7—No; islnn(l‘s of' timbor.

Q. What is the extent of those groves ?-~Porhaps about fifty acres in oach grove,
with swamps between. The woody islands are gravelly soil, and dry.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. What is the country hetwoen Shoal Lake and Lake Winnipog ?—It is a toler-
ably good country.

Q. Init fit for grazing or tillage ?—1t is fit for grazing more than for tillage.

Q. Did you, while inﬁ)octing the surveys examine any portion of the country
woast of Lake Winnipeg ?—No ; that was not in my division ; it was Mr. Whitcher who
had that section.

Q. What extent of land has boen explered north and south of the fourth base
line?—I have inspocted the whole of the survey west to the full extent of the Pro-
vince, and from tho boundary west to within ton miles of Fort Ellice, a belt thirty-
six miles wide, between lat. 49.60 and 50,20,

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Do I understand you to say that the whole of that country, with tho oxcep-
tion of tho sandy belt fifleen miles wide, is a tino country for the production of
coreals ?—You; the greater portion of it is. -

Q. ls thero any {mrt of Ontario that you could compare it to?—From Red
River to the routh end of Lako Manitoba the land ix so superior 1o anything I have
.ever seen that it is difficult to makoe a comparison.

Q. From Portage La Prairie westward—what is it liko? —There is some land in
}he vicinity of Brantford 1 could compare it to. 1t is not heavy soil; it is sandy
loam.

Q. Then we are to nnderstand that up to the westorn boundary of*Manitoba the
land is very superior, and west of that it is ¢xcellent 2—Yeos.

By the Hon.. Mr. Aiking :—

Q. Thero ix shown on the map a number of stroams west of the Saskatchewan
on thig base line to which you refer. Is there any difficulty in crossing them ?~—~No.

Q. What kind of stroams are they ?—They are small, with the excoption ot Bird
Tail Creek.

14
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By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Did y ou take the levels ?—No; 1 enly examined them with the eye.  They
aro botween thirty and forty feet wide; with the oxception of Bird Tail Creck, they
are all low banks, that is, routh of the cart trail

Q. Aro there deep ravines along those creeks ?—I don’t suppose the banks are
more than thirty or forty feet high. ' ‘

Q. Ave thero valleys outsido of those banks?—No; only small valleys. Oak
River, for instance, has very little valley—only a gentlo slope; 1 could driv across
it anywhor e. and the others are very small ravines.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. How far west from Winnipog have yon inspected the surveys ?—About one
hundred and cighty miles, to within ten miles of Fort Ellice. There would bo no
difficulty in construeting a railway along that distance, with the exception of Bird
Tail Creck. That is my opinion after examining the country.

By 1he Hon. Mr. Avkins :— i

Q. What did you find with regard to settlement from Winnipeg westward ?—
There arc settlements all the way along to Palestine, about cighteen miles west of
Lake Manitoba, about the boundary of le Provinee.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. When wore you thore ?—I left thove in June last.  There are a few settlors
also, near the Government depot, at the Riding Mountain,  Thore are also a fow at
the Littlo Saskatchewan, and a few up the valley of tho Saskatchewan, towards the
Riding Mountain Ilouse.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. Ave thero any Mcunted Police in the section to which you refer P—Yes; there
was a detachment at Shoal Lake, on the North-West Territory, and one at the Littlo
Suskatchewan, and one at Palestine.

Q. With regard to the water of' the country-—is it good, or are there many ruun-
ning stroums ?—There are not a great many running streams through there. There
were no wells dug by the settlers, but 1 should say you would not have to go more
than twenty-tive or thirty foet for water. The water in the streams is good; the
Littlo Saskatchewan, Bird Tail Creek, and White Mud River, have very gﬂ&l water.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :— )

Q. Did you come across any springs ?—Yes, o fow.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Ts the poplar wood of that country equal to our soft maple ?—It is a better
timber than our soft maple. It is the balm of Giload. _

Q. How far up on tho linc of railway hive you been 2—I have not been more
than thirty-six miles from Selkirk.

y the Hon. M. Haythorne :—

Q. Wonld that district supply useful materials for railway construction, such as
timber for sleopers, and stono for masonry ?—There is bouldor stono on the Little
Saskntchewan, but there is nothing for ties, except at the Riding Mountains, or the
tamarac swamps of tho Assiniboine,

Q. Is the tamarac of those rogions similar to that of Canada?—Yes, the xamo as
the tamarac of Canada.

Q. What is the quality of the spruco there2--1t is large and rather kuotty.

The Committee adjourned at 1 pam. ’

Orrawa, Wednesday, 28th March, 1877.
Epn. W. Jarvis, Civil Enginoor, called and examined as tollows :—
By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—
Q. Whoroe do you reside ?—1 reside at Winnipog,
Q. You spent some considerable timo on the Intercolonial Railway ?—Yes; I was
five years on tho Intercolonial.
15
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Q. You have also beon over a large portion of the line from Keewatin to the
Pacific 7—Yes; 1 have heen over noarly the whole lino, with some small oxcoptions,
from Keowatin to the Pacific,

Q. Did you locate any portion of the line from Keowatin to Selkirk ?—I1 was not
on the locating surveys, but I was on the proliminary surveys. I was in charge of the
first party that made the survey through frem Keewatin to Red River.

Q. Does the lino as located follow any portion of the line you surveyed ?-—Yes;
it follows that line very closely until it comes near Red River.

Q. Can you describe to the Committee from the map, what portion of the line
as at presont located follows the line you made ?—It follows from ](oown.tin to Shell
station, within thirty-five miles of Solkirk; the distance from Kecewatin to Sholly ta
about eighty miles on the line I ran, from there I ran a line due west to Red River.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —

Q. Where did yon strike Red River with that line ?—1I crossed about ten milos

north of Winnipeg, half way boetween tho upper and lower forts.
By the Hon, Mr. Aikins: —

Q. Have you boen over the present line as located to Selkirk ?— Yes; | have been
over it.

Q. Did you in your survey follow this line under instructions, or did you follow
it as tho onc you thought best adopted for the construction of the Pacific Railway ?—
1 followed it as the most direct way to got to Red River; it was & comparatively
unknown country, and our object was to reach Red River at any point in the most
direct way possible. In 1871, when wo made this survey, the country between
Keewatin and Red River was comparatively unknown, and our object was to make
the most direct line without oxtending our explorations north or south of that line.

Q. Have you ever gone over the country a short distance south of the located
lino?—Yes ; 1 have explored the country south of that line. ‘

Q. In your eapucity as onginoer ?—No; I did not oxplore that for the purpose
of survey in connoction with the railway, but a survey of it has been made by the
Government.

Q. Iad a slight deflection been mado from the located line té the south, from.
Keowatin towards Red River, would the difficultios cxperienced on section tifteen
have beon avoided ?2—Yes; they would have been obviated to a considorable extent.

Q. What difficulties do youn refer to ?—Difficulties in the construction of the
railway. Thoro is some honv‘y work on the soction known as “wection fifteen.” In
the thirty-five miles betwoon Keewatin and Cross Lunke thore are hoavy rock cuttings
which would have been avoided on the southern line. The rock extends the whole
distance betweoen these two points on the located line, but on the southern line the
heavy rock work would have ended about half-way.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Can you tell us why that ronte was selectod in 1wot‘oronce to tho one whore
the work would have been lighter ?—1 beliovo it was selected as boing a more divect
line to Selkirk.

Q. Can you tell us why Selkirk was the point spocially selocted 2-—No; 1 cannot.

Q. Is tho crossing of Igod River easior thore than at what would have been tho
crossing had the southern line which you vefer to been seclected ?—L think not. I
think the cromsing I selected, twolve milos south of Selkirk and ten novth of Winnipeg,
in better than the crossing at Solkivk.

Q. You think the crossing would be easier and cheaper at that point than at
Solkirk ?—-I think so, from what 1 have scen of the crossing at Selkirk.

Q. Would the line by the southorn route from Keowatin to Red River have been
longer than the present located line ?—The line would have beon slightly longer to
the river, owing to the river being reachoed at o point further west; but it would not
havo added to the oagth ot the Pautic Railwu .

By the Iiom. Mr. Arkins :—

Q. Did you ses the maps and plans of this southorly route which would enable

you to form the opinion you have just ?:;pressed ?—Yes; I have seon tho plans.
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Betwoen Solkirk and the crossing 1 have reforred to, twelve miles further south, I
am awarc there are some rapids in the river, and to render the stream navigable
some improvements would have to be made.

Q. 1s the river nuviﬁable from the point referred to by you to Selkirk ?—Cer-
tainly it is. Thero is a daily line of steamers running up and down there all summer
during navigation.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—
Q. How long is navigation oren there during the soason ?~—About six months.
Ry the Hon. Mr. SutRerland : —

Q. Do you know if any of the lake boats go up to Winnipeg through these
rapids at any time ?—I really do not know

Q. Wore you in Winnipeﬁ last spring ?—Yes.

Q. Do you know if the Hudsons’ Bay Company’s steamer on Lake Winnipeg
came to Fort Garry ?—T don't remember whether she did or not; but 1 remem{;er
secing hor at tho lowor fort.

Q. For what draught steamors is tho river navigable to this point you refer to?
~—Itdeponds on the season of tho year. I believe soundings were made by the Govern-
mont engineors in order to bring down barges with iron and they found a chaunol with
tour foct of water.

Q. Was tho iron taken down to Selkirk by river?—Yes; a considerable portion
of it was.

Q. Is the navigation suscoptible of' easy improvement ?—Yes; I think it could be
ensily improved.

Q. V\}hut would he nocossary to render it navigable ?—All it would require is to
tako some boulders out to straighten the channel. There is plenty of water in the
channel,

Q. Then, if those bouldors were removed the river would afford the same fucilities
for navigation to tho point of crossing you refor to as at Selkirk ?—Yes; thero is
plenty of water in the channel if the boulders were removed.

By the Hon. Mr. Girard : —
Q. Would the facilitios of construction afforded by the line first projected to
innipeg compensate for tho ditference in longth between it and the located line
east of Red Rivor?——1 believe that the oxtra length wounld be more than paid tor by
thoe difforence in work betwoeen Keewatin and Winnipeg. .

Q. Which line would facilitate more the colonization of the province >—The
southorn line, cortainly.  On the located line there is no open country at all east of
Selkirk, and thore is very littlo land available for ettlement, while on the line to the
south there is n holt of prairie country about thirty miles wide, fit for settlemont.

By the Tlon. Mr. Scott : — .
Q. How far north o' the located line have you travelled ?7—As far as Winnipog
River, a distance ot about twenty or thirty miles. )
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :-—
Q. What sort of country did you find there ?—Broken, rocky country, very
Similar to Scetion 15.
Q. Fit for settlemont ?--No; it is uninviting for settloment.
By the Hon. Mr. Scott :--
Q. Whore does the good land begin, at the railway, or is it further south ?—
It is to the south of it.
Q. How far south ?---1t beginx at Selkirk and runs diagonally to the south-cast.
Q. Thon your line trom Keewatin to Winnipeg would not touch that good
country at all 7---Yes; it would run through thirty miles of the good land.

By the Hon. Mr. Girard :-—

Q. Would there bo any more difficulty in constructing & bridge across the viver
at 8t. Bonifhee than at any other place from Winnipeg to Stonefort ?—-I think there
Would he no great difficulties in constructing a bridge just below Winnipeg, but it
Would yln‘olmllﬁ y cost a little more than at the point I speak of.

-2 N
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Q. Would it be more difficult than at the crossing at Selkirk ?--~No; I imagine:

not.
By the Ilon. Mr. Aikins :-—

Q. From the maps and plans you have scen, could lZ’ou form any opinion as to:
the difference in cost between section fifteen and the southerly lino ?---I have never
given it any consideration as to the relative cost of the two lines.

Q. If the southerly line had been continued on to Winnipeg, making allowance:
for the deflection of the river, would there have been any difforence in the length, as
compared with the line between Kcewatin and Selkirk ?~-There would be no differ-
once in the length of the railway, as a whole; a local diffeorence would arise from:
Winnipeg being further west than Selkirk. )

Q. At the point you speak of where your lino struck the river, did you examine
the bank of the river to seo if there would be any difficulties in constructing a
bridge ?-- -Yes ; we examined it and made a survey of the river the whole way to

Winnipeg.

Q. }faw you been through the country botween the wost side of Red River anl
the narrows of Lake Manitoba ?---No; I have never been up there. I cannot speak
a8 to the kind of country there is in that section, except from hearsay.

Q. Is the telegraph line conetructed from Selkirk west to the Narrows ?----Yes.

Q. Do you know that there has been any difficulty in keeping up tho line from
Solkirk to Northcote?—Yes; there has been great difficulty in keoping it up. A
year ago the line was down for two or three months. .

Q. Do you know why the line was down ?—Yes; the poles had been stuck up in
the snow and frozen moss, and when the snow melted they fell. Tho contractor
could not get in thete in the summer, and he had to do the work in the winter.

Q. Wﬁy could he not get in there in the summer ?—I bolieve it was too swampy
to go in there in summer.

Q. Has the line been repaired ?—Yes ; it has been repaired.

Q. When ?——1t was repaired last summer,—sometime last July.

Q. Why were the facilities for re-erecting tho line in the summer greater than
they were before, whoen the line was constructed 7—I do not presume the facilities.
were any greater, but absolute necessity compelled them to go in thore to open up
the line again, The trouble was to go in there originally. The materials were:
distributed along the line in the winter, and there woufd bo no very great difficulty
after that in re-erecting the poles in the summer.

Q. Do you know whether those surveys were made across the Narrows in winter
or in summer ?—1 beliove surveying parties were out at both seasous, but I heard
parties speaking of the difficultios of locating a line there in summer. I never
travelled over that lino myself.

Q. Have you seen the maps and plans of tho section from Shoal Lake to
Northeote ?—Yes; I have neen them.

Q. As an Enginoor, what opinion would you form from these maps and plans,
as to the difficulty of constructing a railway there, and tinding a solid mmi-beg ?—I1
presume there is no very great difficulty, judging from the maps and plans. The
plans scarcely show any more than tho goneral direction of the line.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :— .
Q. Heve you seen the profilos 7-—Yes; thoy simply show the surface line.
By the Hon. Mr. Aikins:—

Q. Do the maps or plans show that any test pits have been madoe ?2——Not in any
I have seen. )

Q. Have you been at the Narrows ?—Yes.

Q. How d%d you go there ?—By water; in the spring of 1875.

Q. Did you examine the crossing of the Narrows so as to form any opinion of it
a8 to the facilities it afforded for a Railway ?—No ; I made no examination whatever
of that country.

Q. From what point west have you been over the located lino?—From the
crossing of the South Saskatchowan Rivor swost-.

1
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Q. What is the country like on the located line from the South Saskatchewan
west to the Rocky Mountains ?—I have not followed the located line through. I
have only travelled over it as far as Battle River. We did not follow the present
line, but crossed the Saskatchewan at the mouth of Battle River. 1 made no surveys
west of Rod River. 1 have only travelled across the plains. 1 have survoyed in the
mountains, and on the other side in British Columbia.

Q. Havoyou bhoen over the tract of country from Winnipeg west to the Little
Saskatchowan south of Lake Manitoba ?7—Yes; I have followef the norvtherly cart
trail which touches Lake Manitoba.

Q. 1In crossing the Little Saskatchewan have you been ten or twelve miles south
of where tho cart trail crosses it 7—No; I have not.

Q. What sort of country is it from Winnipeg to the Little Saskatchewan? -1t
in prairio nearly all the way.

Q. 1 the soil good or indifforent ? —1It is very good ; it is one of the vory best
portioes of Manitoba,

By the Hon. Mr. Haytorne :—

Q' From tho Saskatohewan woestward you cross roveral stroams lying between
the Saskatchewan and Bird Tail Creek, what are they like ?—I don’t remember any
large valleys, o.\'(-o&t, the Little Saskatchewan and Bird Tail Creek; these are the
only two botween Winnipeg and the Assinniboine.

Q. What is the character of the soil a little below Shell River?—I think it isa
little more sandy there than to the east—rolling, sandy hills.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. Would there be any difficulty in constructing a railway from Red River to
the Little Saskatchewan ?==No. .

Q. Then the first difficulty that would be experienced would be at the Little
Saskatchowan ?—Yes.

Q. Whore do tho first difficultion occur in passing over the cart-trail from Little
Saskatchewan in the direction of the Assinniboine ?—I think it would be at tho valley
of Bird Tail Creck.

Q. Tho noxt difficulty wonld occur where P—At the Assinniboine itself.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. What ix the character of those line crosrings ?—They are deep valloys in the
prairie. The banks are level on each side, but a deep ravine is worn out by the
stream. The channel is generally vory small in comparison with the valleys. Bird
Tail Creek may be 1,200 or 1,600 feet across,

Q. What would be the depth ot the valley in the middle !—It might be 150 feet.

Q. By 1,200 feet across?--Yes; but, of course, that would not be the poing
takon for crossing. The crossing of’ the Assinniboine would be considerably wider
and the samo height.

By the Hon. Mr. Aidins :—

Q. Have you boen over the country from the Assinniboine south of Shell River
towanrds the South Saskatchewan where the located line crosses 7—Yes; I have been
over the trail through the Touchwood Hills from Carleton tn the South Sashatchewan
and Fort Ellice.

Q. What is the character of the country thore ?—From the Assinniboine to the
Touchwood Hills is rolling prairie.

Q. Good for settlement ?—Yes ; thore is some vorK dland there. T should
think it would be vory well adapted for settlement. T esi)‘tomohwood Hills are rolling
sand hills—small detached hills,

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. Wouid the Touchwood Hills form any obstruction in the oonstruction of a.
railway ?—No; nono whatover, It would roquire some cuttings, but they would
mako capital ballast. .

By the Hon, Mr. Aiking :—

Q. Thereis no spocial dfficulty from the Assinniboine to tho Touchwood Hills ?—

I do not remomber any difficulty-. o
1
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Q. From the Touchwood Hills towards Carleton, you have been over the
country : is there any difficulty there ?—No; there are no insuperable difficulties at
all. Tt is a rolling country, and there would be somo heavy workin sand and gravel
in places, for a mile or two, betweon the Touchwood Hills and the South Sa-
katchewan.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q Wheon you use the term ‘ insuperable”’ do you mean very great difficulties ? —
T mean such difficulties as would induce an enginover to relinquish the line altogoether
and try somo other section of the country. The country is very similar to that on
the located line.

By the Hon, Mr. Wi'mot : —
Q. Will thore be much bridging required on tho located line ?—Thore would be

less bridging on the located line, but the heavy work at the Narcows would make up
the difference.

Q. What ix the country liko? Is it fit for settloment ?—It is not well adapted
for settlement until you reach the South Saskatchewan. 1t is vory similar to the
section through which the line runs—a good grazing country; thatis between the
Touchwood Hills and the South Saskatchewan.

By the Hon. Mr, (firard : —

Q. It a railway were now in existence from the western boundary of the Pro-
vince to Winnipeg, would it pay running expensos at presout ?—I think it would
make running experfses as fur as the settled portion ot' the I’rovince, oxtends about
#ixty or seventy milos,

By the Hon, -Mr. Scott :— -

Q. What is the population in these ?—1 do not know, [ base my calculation on
the number of parties passing up and down, and the amoant of trado between the
settlements,

Q. Are you aware that the entire }1()l)ulntion along that proposed line of railway
including Winnipeg, is only 25,000 ?—1 do not know exactly.

Q. Still you undertake to say that a railway wonld pay there now ?—I do not base
the work it would do on the number ot the population, but on the amount of traftic
with parties passing through.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. Is that the most thickly rettled part of the Province ?—Yes; the westorly
portion is the most thickly settled.

Q. It is nlong that line we are speaking of whatever traffic thore would be for a
ruilway in thav Province would be found, and not along the located line?—Yes; tho
principal trattic would pass over the southern line.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—
Q. Thon it it were assumeod that this railrond from Winnipeg wost to the

boundary of the Province would not pay, what traffic would the located line by the
Narrows have ?—If they could run it at all, 1 do not think it would do anything as a
local line,

By the Hon. Mr. Girard :—
Q. What benetit to the Province would the located lino from Sclkirk wost across

the Narrows to the woestern houndary be P—It would be of' no benefit whatever to the
Province of Manitoba. It scarcely touches the province excopt in the north-cust

<cornor.

Ry the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

@. Which way is sottlement growing from Winnipeg ?—Principally to the west
towards Portage la Prairie and White Mud River. There are sottlements out as far
as the Littlo Suskatchewan, and isolated settlers all along there.

By the Honm. lar. Sutherland :—

Q). Aro you aware of any settlements hnvinﬁ been madoe south of the Assini-
boine 2—Yen; there is a luvrge settlement nt Pombina Mountain.

Q. Do you know anything of the Boyne settloment?—Yos; it is south of
Winnipeg. 1 call it the Pembina Mountaig sottlement.
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By the Hon. Mr. Scott :~-
Q. How far is Pembina Mountain settlement from Winnipeg ?—Soventy or
oighty miles south-west of Winnipeg.
By the Hon. Mr. Girard :—
Q. What portion of the province contains the popnlatian ?—I should judge, from
appearances, one-half the population is on the wextern side of Winnipeg.
Q. How long have you resided at Winnipeg ?—HEighteen months, but I have
been there more or less for the last five or six years.
Q. Whon settlers go into that Province, what direction do they usually take ?—
They go west and south-west.
By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —
Q. Do you know of any settlers north of the located line 7--No; except at the
Red River, at Solkirk, and I think the Icelandors.
Q. What are these settlers north of tho line?--They are natives, Half-brecds,
the original settlors, and a few Canadians. I do not suppose thore are more than a

hundred in all.
(Signed,) E. W. JARVIS,

Orrawa, Wednesday, April 4th, 1877,
The Committoe meot at noon,

BEowarp W. Jarvis re-called :— .

By the Hon. Mr. Mucpherson :—

Q. I think the Committee underatood you to say that, if tho line had been
deflected a little south, starting from Keewatin, on a point further west, the heavy
rock work and tunnelling on the located line would have been avoided ?—Not the
tunnelling. 1t would not affect it, inasmuch as thoe tunnelling is further east than
that. There is only ono tunnel on the line, and that tunnel 1s at the crossing of the
Winnipeg River at Keewatin.

Q. Could that tunnel have been avoidod ?—I think not. It would have been
difficult to avoid it.

Q. How far south of the located line would the line be that would avoid heavy
rock cuttings ?—It divorges from the present line at Keewatin, and runs south-west
from that. The point where it turns wost again would be as much as fifteen or
twenty miles routh of the located line.

Q. Where would such line cross Red River ?—It would cross it about parallel to
the present located line, some twenty milos to the south.

Q. I undorstood yon to say, the other day, that the present traffic would gay the
running expenses of & railway from Winnipeg to the western boundary of the Pro-
vince. What sort of traffio did you mean? What extent of trains or railway
accommodation did you contemplate whon yon said that ?—Two trains a day would
be sufficient at prosent—a train in and a train out—a mixed passenger and freight
train,

By the Hon. Mr. Girard :—

Q. That is from Winnipeg to the western line of the Province ?—Yes; from

Winnipeg to the western boundary and beyond that.
By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. What would bo the general character of the froight ?—Very mixed freight.
In tho main freight carted from Winnipeg by teams going to the west ; goods for
trading partios going out, furs coming in, and supplies for the settlors in the west of
the Province. !\I’Ve did & considerable amount ot freighting ourselves this winter,
with teams, taking out machinery and lumber for mills. There is no lumber in the

western part of the Provinoce, |
2
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——

By the Ion. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. That wounld be tho traffic by the line passing south of Lake Manitoba, and
through the settled part of the Province 7—Yes.

Q. Would a miRvuy passing whore the presentline is located get any part of
that traffic 7~—-No. Thero would be no local traffic of that sort, and I do not think
that through traffic woull be shipped that way, owing to the bad state of tho ronds,
that is with regard to the trading goods going to the west.

HE By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q Do you mean to say that all (he froight to points wost from Livingstone
would not take the present through line if it were built ?—Cortainly it would. But
I refer to the traffic between Winnipeg and the western boundary of the Province.
* Q. How many miles do you ca{():u ate that road would run ?—Betweon 80 and
100 miles wost of Winnipeg.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. Tho traffic you speak of, would it be the traffic of Manitoba. or the traffc of
thoe district beyond Livingstone ?—No; it would be the local trafic ol the Province,
and the trafic going beyond that, and the teaffic finding a market in  Manitnba. [
caleulute on the whole of that trafic.  Of coursoin the event of the line being con-
tinuod to the west, it would be immaterial. The south line would havo thoadditional
bonefit of whatover local traffic there wonld be, whilo there would bo no lncat trafie
on the located line. There would be little or none betwoen Livingstono and Selkirk
on the presont line now or in the future.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Ilave you been over that line ?—No; 1 have never been over the present line,

Q. Where is your place of residonce ?—Winnipog.

Q. Aro you in business there now ?—Yes; I am in the lumber business.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : -~

Q. When did you leave the service of the Government ?-—-About June, 1875.

Q. Did you leave it of your own accord ?---Yes; it was my own wish to leave. I
had boen 1n basiness in Winnipeg a couple of years previously, and [ found [ could do
better by loaving the survey and attending to business thore. Mr. Floming requasted
me to go back again to the survey at Téte Jauno Cache, and to take charge of the
party again, but I thought it would be better to remain in Winnipeg.

Q. Have you boon over tho country from the Rod River eastwards to the height
of 1and ? —Yeos; north of tho present line. However, my line was ran with the view
of passing north of Lake Nepigon.

Q. Is there any considerable track of land alorg that line, between RRed River
and the Height of Land, fit for sottlement ?7—No; there are no tracts of good land
along it.

Q. What is the difforence between Red River and the Height of Land ?—About
380 miles in round numbers.

Q. IHow is it oft for timber ?—Thore is very small scrub pine.

Q. Searcely merchantable ?—No; not at all. In some parts thore are a few
sticks, but nothing to speak of. The country is of laurentian formation~-nothing but
rocks and mosses.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. Iave you over been over the southern line which passes south of Shebandowan,
known as the Dawson line and crossing the narrows of Lake of the Wands ?—I have
never buen over that, except on the Dawson Route itself.

Q. Where you ever at Fort Francis ?7—Yos.

Q). Ts thero any country fit for settlement on the Canadian side ol the boundary
line ?—Yus; thore is quite & settlement on our side. The HHudson Bay Company bad
8 large farm there when I was at that placo; a number of settlers have gone in since,
and some townships have been surveyed.

Q. Could the Fumbermen send their timber over the falls at Fort Francis without
breaking it ?—Yes. 22
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Q. So that there would be no necessity for making a lock to get the timber
through at Fort Francis, in order to take it down to the Lake of the Woods 7—No.

Q. Did many immigrants go into Manitobu last year P—No; not a %:eat many.

Q. Did any g;o in from Minnesota ?— Not many. Immigration has been dwind-
ding for the last four or five years, owing to the grasshoppers.

Q. Havoe the grass-hoppers been much worse on the other side of the line through
Dekotak, Montana and Minnesota #—Yes; wa hrd none at Winnipeg last year.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. What would be the ditference in longth between the proposed line of yours
and the located line between Keewatin and Cacrlaverock Station at tho elbow of the
North Saskatchewan ?—As near as I oan scale it on the map, my line would be eleven
mijles shortor.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott:—

Q. Without having chained the ground could you form an estimate P—Yes; I
think from the map I could form an estimate sufficiently accurate.

Q. Havo you any means of forming an estimate of cost between the southern
route and tho locam(f lines 2—Starting from Keewatin, I should say the sonthorn line
‘would cost less,— bocauso, although the expense may be somewhat heavier in the
neighbourhood of the Riding Mountains,-~all that expense would be more than
balanced by the heavier work on Section 15 of the located line.

By the Hon. Mr. GQirard : —

Q. Ix thore not a difficulty on the south line as compared with the located line?
‘—Yes; thove are difficulties at the crossing of the Assiniboine. That would be the
heaviest work on the line. This southern line might be described ns starting about
two miles from Keewatin on tho present line, and running westward to the north
shore of Shonl Lnke, thence to tho Red River, crossing it a couple of miles north of
‘Winnipeg, and passing eight miles south of the south shore of Lake Manitoba, and
running due wost to the Littlo Saskatchewan; thence in a general north-westerly
direction to the Assiniboine River, near the mouth of Shell River, and from there
direct to the junction of the present line at Caerlaverock.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmo :~

Q. You say that that course is about eleven miles shorter than the present
located line P— Yes.

Q. Without requiring connection from Winnipeg to Selkirk ?—It would not
require a north branch from Winnipeg.

Ry the Hom. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. You say, in calculating the distance, you have not considered the branch from
Winnipeg to Selkirk at all ?—No.

Q. 8o that there would be a saving by your line of eleven miles in the length,’
and saving by not having to construct the branch of another twenty miles ?—Yes;
the total saving would be thirty-one miles of railway. Starting out from Selkirk
from tho ond of the present located line, the saving would be about the same as
starting from Keewatin, excopting the branch line to Selkirk. 1 make my calcula-
tions from Mr. Fleming's map.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —

Q. What is ihe total distance #—I measured both lines from the map yosterday,
but I have not the figuros with me. The difference is eleven miles in favor of the
southern line, by actual measurement on the map. The whole distance is about
600 miles.

By the Hon. Mr. Girard :—

Q. In the construction the distance might be increased by the difficulties of the
country, in 600 milos P—Yes. I see that tho difculties in crossing the Little Sas-
catchewan, which I spoke of in my former evidence, can be avoided by taking a
route twoive miles south of the cart trail.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Were there no instrumental surveys made on the southern route P —No; there

Were no instrumental surveys made on that line. I would like the Committee to
23
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understand that I do not give this information because I have anything against the
Engineers of the Pacific Railway, as I have nothing against them. I simply give it
because I honestly believe the southern route is the best line, and not bevause I have
any particular bias against tho Government. 1t has been insinuated that I have
been dismissed from the surveys.

Hon. Mr. Scortr denied there had been any insinuation of the kind.

Frank CrayroN, Draughtsman in the Dominion Lands’ Office, called and
examined :—

By the Hon. Mr.Aiking :-—

Q. You have the field notes and maps of that portion of Manitoba whore it has
been surveyed east and west of Liake Manitoba ?—-Yes; I have charge of all those
notes.

Q. Could you refer to them and tell us what they show with reference to
that country between Selkirk and tho Narrows of Lake Manitoba, in the vicinity of
the location line of railway ?-—It must cross that bolt to go to the Narrows. The
country immediately adjoining the located line, to the mnorth-east, noar the Nar-
rows, is described by Mr. Dupé, in his official report to the Department, of block
outlines comprising Townships 21 to 24, Ranges 4 to 9, wost of the principal
meridian, as follows :----

“ The surface throughout the whole extent of country above mentioned is com-
paratively level, or gently undulating, there being altornating strotches of low,
wooded ridges, in the highest places not exceeding ten or twelve feet above the
general lovel, and swampy land with marehes and muskegs. These alternating
ridges and marshes have a gencral north-westerly direction about parallel to the
shore of Lake Manitoba. The ridges are composed of clay or clayey lonm, with lime-
stone gravel, and in some places boyond a distance of ten or fiftoen miles from the
lake, very stony. Tho marshes and muskogs are numerous, maay of the latter being
impassible kfor carts, and contain numerous small lakes and ponds, Thero are also
several lakes of fair size, which, during the summer season, are the abode of num-
berloss wild fowl. The largest of thexe lakes is “ Dog Lake,” which is over twelve
miles long by six or seven wide, occupying the westerly part of rango 8 wost, and
easterly part of Range 9 west, in the%wnnhips 23 and 24, and Inpprehond it is about
forty square miles in extent. In this lake tish of several i(inds, including gold-eyes,
whitofish and pike abound. In Towuship 24, Range 4 west, is another marshy lake
which, with its marshy shores, includes not less than a whole township in extent.
The third is Swan Lake, occupying the north-west part of Ranged wost, and the
north-east part of Range 6 west, in Township 21, and with its surrounding marsh is
over ten square miles in extent. The fourth in extent, and nocarly as large as
the last, is wituate in the easterly part of Township 23, Range 6 west.
From these, in decreasing extent, are lakes and ponds almost innumer-
able. One of which, about half a square mile in oxtent, situate in the northerly

art of Section 13, Township 22, Range b west, is remarkable on sccount of its

oing surrouuded (except three or four short breaks) by a natural stone wall from
four to eight feet thick and two to five foet high above the surrounding marsh. The
lake is shallow, with shelving beach of clay and small gravel and bottom of fine soft
mud; it has some small fish, but no apparent inlet or outlet. The soil of that part
along the shore of Lake Manitoba, and oxtending from ten to fifteon miles inland,
and also that around Dog Lake, is rich black loam®of excellent quality, though in
some places the limestone gravel crops out in some wf the ridges. At grouter dis-
tances from Lake Manitoba the ridges are in many places very stony. The timbor
throughout is chiefly poplar of the three kinds found in Manitoba, and commonly
known as white poplar or aspen, black poplar or balm of Gilead,and cottonwood ; the
atter, though less plentiful, attains greater size than the others. Onthe points of
‘ridges which terminate at lakes or large muskegs, some oak is so be found, gonerally
of small size; some of & fair size and quality are found along the shores of Lake

4
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Manitoba, while scattered ovor the country east of Dog Lake, and from about the
sixth correction line northwards some spruce is found, generally of small size, though
in some instances attaining n diamoter of two feet or more at the stump.

“The Canada Pucific Railway and Telegraph line runs from Section fivo,
Township 21, Rango 8, west, about north 50° west to the Narrows of Lakoe Manitoba,
about Section 23, Townshi{) 24, Range 10, west.”

By the Hon. Mr. Atkins : —

Q. With regard to Mr. llerman, what part did he survey ?—Tho sixth correction
line, The land adjoining the located line immediately west and north of the
Narrows, is described by ﬁir. Herman and Mr. Bolton, D.L.S., as follows : —

“ Tho surface is mostly flat and too low and wet for first-class agricultural lands.
The average depth of soil is about twelve inches, resting on a hard clay and gravel bed
—the lake bottom previous to the retiroment of Manitoba waters. All the higher
lands aro covered with poplar timber from four to cight inches in diamoter, the low
portions extending in a north and south direction are the drainage beds from the
northern slopes of tho Riding Mountains, and consists of shaking bogs with hay,
weeds, rushes and willow. Somo good spruce timber is intermixod with other woods.
Portions of tho land are very well suited for sottlement purposes, to stock-raisers and
fishermon, and in courre of time, whon drained, will, no doubt, be found productive
in grains also.”

Mr. Fdgar Bray’s work was immediately west of Herman and Boltony' line, south
of the located railway line about tweniy miloes and around Dauphin Lake. He
reported a3 follows :—

* The country through which the lines run is mostly composed of good agricul-
tural land. Swamps and marshes are found in various places, but they appenr to form
only a small portion of the total area. 1 might mention that in Townships 23 and
24, in Rango 15, are composed of good, and mostly dry land. The most of these
townships will bo eusily prepared for cultivation. {also found the land in Townships
25, 26, 27 and 28, in Rango 18, to be mostly good, especially near the streams and
rivers which cross the meridian exterior, botween Ranges 18 and 1), Thoe land on
Riding Mountains is too rough and hilly to be of any use for agricultural purposes.

“'With regard to the timber, I have to report that Township 22, in Ranges 17 and
18, and Township 23 in Ranges 158, 16, 17 and 18, are mostly covered with heavy
woods of poplar, spruce, birch, oak, etc. In that part of the survey lying on and
within three miles of Riding Mounthins, the timber is unusually large, sprace bein
sometimes found with a diamotor of nearly three feet. The timber in the balance o%'
the survey is mostly poplar, but, with a few unimportant exceptions, it is small, but
generally standing vory thickly. In some places the land is covered with willows
only, There are also a fow open meadows or small prairies. In a considerable
portion of Townships 26, 27 and 28, in Range 18, the timber has fallen, and a dense
new forest of small poplars now covers the land.”

The Committee adjourned at 1 p.m.

March 28,
A. L. Russerr, D.L.S,, was called and oxamined as follows :—

By the Hon3 Mr. Aikins :— ‘

Q. You had charge of a party on the boundary survey under the British com-
mission ?-~Yes.

Q. You also had charge of a surveying party for the purpose of making a
8pecial survoy from Winnipeg westward 7—Yos.

. Q. What was the object, and what were your instructions?—Tho principal

object was to determine longtitude 102° west as a base line for surveys.

Q. Where did you start from ?—From Winnipeg, at the Red River, und continued
the line wostward to Fort Ellice; theice seventy-five miles north; thence forty-
eight miles west; thenco twenty-four milos north thence seventcon miles west.
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_ Q. In working westward did you take the levels ?—In working from Winnipeg
weet to the 102n(§’meridian wo took the levele all the way from thero to Fort Elice.

By the Hm. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Did you travel on the same line ?—Wo travelled in the direction which best
suited for the purpose of survey through the open country until we reached the
102nd meridian, and then we had a precise line to follow.

Q. What is the westerly meridian of Manitoba ?—Ninety-nine,

By the Hon. Mr. aiking :—

Q. What do your levels show, as far as the westerly boundary of the Province is
concerned ? Did you find that the ground rises as you proceed westward ?—Yes, it
gradunll\{’ rises.

@. What is the differenco in altitudo between Winnipeg and the wostern portion
of the provinco ?—About three hundred feet.

Q. What would be the distance from Winnipeg to the westerly boundary of the
province ?—About eighty miles.

Q, From the wosterly boundary of the province to Fort Ellice, what is the
difference in clevation 2—There is a further rise of about 320 feet.

Q. How much farther wost than that did you go ?—The survey wont through the
open country whore nothing would obstruct their view, therefore they did not go by
direct lines; a botter line could be found south of their route.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. What altitudes are there between the westorn boundary of the Province and
Fort Ellico that would interfore with the construction of a railway line ?—I.ooking
south from the high lands necar the Little Saskatchewan—from the cart trail—the
country appears to be a plain of much lower olevation that whore I was.

Q. From the 102nd meridian westward what is the character of the soil ?—-It is
-8 good sandy loam.

Q. Did you go as far north as the railway line ?—Within a very short distance
of it ; about fiftcen miles south of the line.

Q. What is the character of the country from Fort Ellice westward of the 102nd
meridian ?—Tho soil is good, but rathor lighter than what I have described further
west.

Q. What kind of soil is it on the 102nd meridian ?—It is sandy st:ips, but on the
whole good throughout ; fit for sottlemont with few oxceptions,

Q. What is the appearance of tho country, P—It is & rolling prairie, with small
islands of timbor on the soathern part.  On the eighth base there is a good doal more
timber. The soil botween Tonchwood Hills and the Assinniboine is generally well
adapted for settlement.

The Committee adjourned at one p.m.

Otrawa, Friday, April 5th, 187%.
The Committee met at noon.

8. J. Dawson, C.E., called and examined.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q You are pretty intimately ucqunintod with tho section of tho country from
Keewatin westward to Red River ?—1 am acquainted with the country between the
Lake of the Woods and Red River.

Q. IIave you been over tho line as located ?—I had the country through which
it passes oxplored many years ago, but have not been over the present lino as located.

Q. What is tho quality of the soil or its adaptability for sotttlomoent?—On the
immediate border of the Lake of the Woods the country is very rough and broken
with numerous lakelets. Succeoding this, to the west, is a low, swampy rogion, ﬁlli
of what is called by tho Indians “ muskegs,” but, on approaching Red River, the
country becomes much bettor and the soil zl 'mprovos
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By the Ifon. Mr. Vidal :--

Q. Is that on the lino as located, or the line more to the south 2—The located line
Passes through the country which I am de<cribing. Wo had tho whole country
oxplorad very thoroughly some years ago, with the view of findin tho best route
for & wagzgon road. .

Q. To what oxtent eastward from the Rod River is the land good ?--I cannot
8ay procisely how far tho good land extends back trom tho Rod Rivoer on the located
line, but 1 should-think about ten miles or so of ver good land, and ten more of
Mmoderately good. To the south the belt of good lnm{ gradually widens, until oppo-
8ito Fort Garry it has a breadth of thirty miles of low rich prairie. The country
through which tho located line passes, is wooded moroe or less.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—
. Q IHave you over examined the conntry ten or twelve miles south of tho located
line, diverging from Keewatin southward, with the view to the construction of a
Toad wost to Rod River?—We had an instrumental survey carried through from the
River to the north-westorn oxtremity of' Liac Plat aud thence tothe Lake of' the
oods, and we had oxplorations and track surveys made to the north of that line,

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson:—
Q. How far isit from Keewatin to the north-western’ extremity of Lac Plat?—
About thirty miles in a south-westerly direction.
By the Hon Mr. Aiking :—
. Q. In anortherly direction how far would it bo from Lac Plat to the located
line 7—1¢t would be about ton or twelve miles.

Q. Could u better line be selected by going southward from Keewatin towards
Lac Plat ?7—There might, on further exploration, but the country botween Lac Plat
&nd Keewatin is all much of the same character—rather rocky and broken with
little ridgos ovorywhere. From Lac Plat westward to Red Rivor the country is
Suffioiently lovel, although excoedingly swampy in many places.

fi the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. 1f instoad of tuking a southerly line from Koowatin, you diverged from the
located line furthor west, would you then find much of that rough country ? —After
leaving tho rough country and procecding wost from Keewatin, you ontor ona vast
Plain and might divorge westward in any direction without meeting furthor rough
&round. With regard to the section between Lac Plat and Keewatin, 1 have never
8xamined it with rufficient minutencss, to ‘be able to say whethoer the present line
Could be improved upon by coming southward from Keewatin to Lac Plat.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—

Q. If a line could have been found south of that some distance, would uot the
80:]1 be bottor adapted for settlement ?—The soil is not very woll ndai)tcd to settle-
Ment in the country intervoning between the Lake of the Woods and the prairies,

t is all low and xwampy, excopt in tho vicinity of the northern part of the Lake of
the Woods, whove it is rocky, and, for the most part, rather barren. Tho bhest route
through that country is by tho present waggon road. It was selocted afler long and
Sareful investigation of the whole region intermediate botween tho Lake of the

oods and Red River, and oven on thut line, although it avoids the rocky ground,
8ad, in as far as possible, the swamps. thove is very little good land east of the prairie.
long tho banks of White Mouth River, a stream which the road crosses in the
SWampy district. thore 18 a strip of modorately good land, but not of sutlicient oxtent

r & considerable settlement.

Q. How much more prairie country would there boe east of Red River by going
further nouth ?—There is & belt of good prairie botweon tho Red River and the
woody country in the waggon road. hen you leave that belt and go towards the
Lake'of the Woods, you pass through some of the low swampy region which extends
g;l‘ough the wholo of that country north to Lake Winnipeg. You have 30 miles of

autiful prairie country extending eastward from Fort Garry. And on the line of
@ wiggon road you are south of the bro;(;n rocky region which extonds west from



40 Victoria. Appendix (No. 1.) A. 1877

%Ve(:)\;atin, and have an excellent line for a railroad all the way to the Lake of the
oods. .

Q. Does this rocky region extend cast as woell as west of Keewatin ?——Yes; the
country east and west of Keewatin is very broken.

Q. And for about the same distance ?—From all I can learn it is not quite so
rough to tho east of Keewatin as to the west of it, but it is a very difficult country.

By the Hon. Mr. Macphersom :— .

Q. The rough country extends to about the same]distance oast and west of

Keewatin ?—Yos; and a very rough country 1t is.
By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—-

Q. Have you ever examined the crossings of the Narrows of the Lake of the
Woods ?—Yes ; I have had soundings taken, and a rough map made of the islands at
the Narrows of the Lake of the Woods. The channels are in general narrow. The
main channel, I think, is 1,400 feet in width, according to the best of my recollection.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :-—-

Q. What is the dopth of water in the channel ?--~-At one part, in tho middle of
the channel, it ix 35 feot.

Q. Does it graduate from that ?-~Yes; otherwise the channels vary from two or
three up to fifteen feot. The average depth across the whole of the channels does
not exceed 12 to 15 feet. In great part the crossing would be over flat ground
covered (0 & modorate depth witi water,

By the tlon. Mr. Macpherson .—-

Q. Do you know what the bottom is like ?—-It is & hard bottom-—a sort of mix-
ture of sand and clay-—in some places gravelly.

Q. How would you propose to have built a bridge then ?--The chaunels are
completely land-locked and sheltered by islands, and I would have supported the
bridge on cribs.

Q. Do you think that would have been sufficient ?---Yes ; cribs once fairly settled
afford a substantial foundation.

By the Hon. Mr Scott :---

Q. Is the water subject to irregular levels ?-~The extreme difference betwoen
high and low water in the Lake of the Woods is not more than from four to six feet ; it
certainly does not oxceed six feet,

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmot :-—

Q. Is there u strong carrent ?-There is a current, but not very strong, between
the islands. Tho tact is, what is called * the Tiake of the Woods,” is tormed of two
lakes—1hnt south of the Narrows is called “ the Lake of the Sand Hills,” and the

art north of the Narrows the * Linke of tho Woodx;” it is also called ¢ Clear Water
ake” by the Indinns. Thero is no great difference of level, no practically
appreciable difference,
By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. There would be no great danger from the rush of ico ?7--No ; tho locality is
ecomplotoly land locked—besides, tho ice is easily guarded against in such asituation.
Numerous islands protect the position both from wind and ice.

By the Hon, Mr. Aiking ;—

Q. Ir there any very hoavy rock cutting in the country east of tho Nurrows ?—
The country oast of the Narrows is very broken. Part of it is good, but on the
whole it is rather hilly, and one of the questions that ovcurred to mo was whether this
country would form a longer or shorter rough section than that through which the
line now passes hy Keewatin. )

.{31/ the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Did you ascertain the extent of it on the southern lino ?—A pproximately.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Did you take levels ?—Yes. I took the levols along the water stretches, not
over tho land. The lovels have been taken by tho Pacific Railway Survey down to
Sturgeon Falls, and 40 miles west of that, and in t!icintermediate soction between thab
. 28
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and the Narrows of the Lake of the Woods the lovels have not been taken, as I
Understand, nor an instrumental survey made.

By Hon. M r. Macpherson :—

Q. llave you passcd over that country 7—1I have been through a great deal of it,
and had explorving parties sent through it.

Q. What opinion have you formed of it ?—My opinion is that the southern would
have advantagoe over every other route, and ono of' these would be that it would bring
Into play all those navigable water sections, rendering a wide oxtent of country
tributary to its traffc.

Q. How fur are the fulls from the outlet of the river ? ~The point called Sturgeon
Falls, i~ about 57 miles from Fort Francis, and the navigation is unimpeded all the
way. Thon a lock at Fort Francis would have connected the navigation of this
8tretch on the Rainy River and the Lake of the Wouods, giving a total navigation of
177 milex. To have takon advantage of this navigation would not have deflected the
line of railway from the most direct course to Fort Garry.

By Hon. Mr. Aiking :-=~

Q. What distance is it from Sturgeon Falls to tho crossing at the Narrows, by

Wator 7—07 miles to Fort Francis and 120 miles from that to the Navrows.
By Hon. My, Scott :— .

What is the distance trom Lake Superior to Sturgeon Falls, by the route which

You have indicated on this map 2—About one hundred and sixty miles.

By Hon. Mr. Aihins :—

Q. What is the character of the impedimonts on Rainy River ?—Between Fort
]“rancis, where the canal is being made, and the Lake of the Woods, there are two
rapids which would roquire improvement—the Manitou and the Loug Rapids, or as
1t in gometimes calied, the Long Sauit. At the Muanitou there is sufficiont depth, but
& strong current at cortain stages of the wator. At the Long Ra-{)id the eurrent is also
8trong and, although the full i1 not considerable, a lock might be required. A dam
at this place would flood tho Maniton Rapid; the distance betwoon these two rapids
i8 about six miles. The more powerful of the small tugs which we used at Rainy

iver have frequently asconded both rapids, without being towed, but generally the
tow lines was used.  The largor tugs required tour feet of water—a depth sufficient
for vessels deawing five foet might easily be provided for thronghout.

Q. What lockage would be nccessary ?2—The total lockage required between
Rainy Lake and the Lake of the Woods might be about 28 or 30 feet.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. What is tho distance from tho Narrows of the Lake of theWoods to Winnipeg ?
~From the Narrows to the head of the north-west angle bay, about ten miles; and
from thoncoe by the waggou road to Winnipeg, about ninety milos, in all ; one hundred
Miles or a little over.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins:— :

Q. What is tho distance, by your proposed rvailway line, betweon the Narrows
and Sturgeon Falls ?—About 120 milos in a direct lino; allowing for deviations in
Such a broken country, it might be 130 miles or oeven more.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —
Q. What is the distance by water from Sturgeon Falls to the Narrows of the
Lako of the Woods?—From Sturgeon Falls to Fort Francis, the distance is abont.
fty-xeven miles, and from thence to the Narrows, by Rainy River and the Take of
the Woods, about 120 miloes, in all, say 177 miles.  On the completion of the works
Bow in progress on Rainy River, the whole of thix stretch would have becomo avail-
Able as & liuk in tho through communication, as soon as a railroad had reached
turgeon Falls from the one side and the Lake of tho Woods from the other. This
Was, in my opinion, the readiest way of obtaining a thoroughly available line of com-
Munication betweon Lake Superior and Red River. By taking advantage of this
Wator strotch of 177 miles, the ultimate all rail, route would not have boeu in the least
luterfored with, More immediate communication would have beon obtained, and the
29 '
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construction of this intermediate section of railroad could have been procecded with
deliberately, as circumstances would permit.
By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Your line ix laid out by Shebandowan; wheredoes the line now adopted strike
off 7—At the Sunshine River, a small tributary of the Mattawin, whence it runs off,
northerly, to the line first explored from Nipigon Bay, crossing the little Savanne
River, near Liac des Mille Lacs.

Q. Dercribe the route you suggested ?—As you will see on this map, it passes by
the valley of the Mattawin and along the north side of Shebandowan Lnko, to Kasha-
hoiwe Portage, thonce westerly along a valloy leading through the Height of Land,
then by the Windegoostegan laken to the valley of the Little Fronch River and from
that place to Sturgeon Falls on the Seine. From Sturgeon Falls to the Narrows of the
Lako of the Woods—a distance of about 130 miles, in as direct a course as could be
found, touching, perhaps, on the two northerly arms of Rainy Lake, and from the
Narrows, in a line nearly direct, over a very eary country to Kort Garry, a further
distance of about one hundred miles, making nearly a straight course, and as a con-
sequence, the shortest all-rail route possible from Lako Superior to Fort Garry.

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking:— . .

Q. What extent of this line has been surveyed and found practicable ?—-The
eastern section, that is, the part of' thix line reaching from LakeSuperior to Sturgenn
Talls, was tirst oxplored by parties attached to the works under my dirvection. It was
subsequently surveyed by an engineer of the Pacific Survey, and found to bo practica-
blo; and I believe that the same engineer alio reported favourably of the ground for
some forty-five milos westward of Sturgeon Falls,

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : — :

Q. What is the length of the part remaining unsurveyed between Sturgeon

¥alls and the Narrows of the Lake of the Woods ? —About eighty miles.
By the Z{on. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. What is the distance from Sturgeon Falls to the crossing place at the
Narrows ?2—As 1 have hlready stated, about one hundred and thirty miles, ailowing
for deflections,

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. What ix the character of the country in that unsurveyed section ?—It is
gonerally a rather rough country, more especially on the north coast of the Lake of
the Woods, but the hills ace of no great elevation and are mostly isolated. 1 have
no doubt that a practicable line could bo found on thorough exploration. 1f not,
then a line should be run from Sturgeon Falls to Keewatin or Rat Portage. There
would be a defleetion and an addition to the distance in going by Rat Portage, but
Sturgeon I'ulls should be the first objective point, for & railroad running from Lake
Superior to Manitoba. It is too important n point to bo left out of consideration.

Q. What is tho oxtent of rough country on a line from Sturgeon Kalls to the
Narrows of the Lake of the Wooé‘s, as compared to the rough sections east and wost
of Keewntin, on the presont line ?—The extont of rough ground ¢n both lines might
ho ahout the same, say cighty miles, but on tho line to the Narrows, I do not think
that any part of it would be quite so difficult as soction fifteon, immediuntely west of
Rat Portago.

the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Tuﬁing Red Rock at Nepigon Bay, as & point common to both projected lines,
on thoir being continned to the eastward, how would the line, which you recomnrend,
compare a8 to distance with that laid out by the Pacific Railroad Survey—that is,
botween Nepigon Bay and Red River ?—1 do not think that there would be any great
differonce in the aggregate distance; lines without very considorable deviations from
a givon course, cannot be looked for in such a broken country. The line of the Pacific

tilroad Survey would run to Chief’s Bay on Lake Nepigon, and thence through the
northern country, by way of Keewatin, to Red River, and the lino shown on this map-
would pass by Black Bay and Thundor Bay, to Jhe valley of the Kaministaquia, anc
thience by way of Sturgeon Falls and tho nom'mWH of the Lake of the Woods to Fort
. 3
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Garry. Thero would be a defonr on this line in oominﬁmm Nepigon Buy to Thunder
Bay.” So also would there be iu guing from Nepigon Bay to Chief 's Bay on the other
line; and upon the whole, as I have said, I do not think there would be mueh differ-
ence in the total distance, while the Thunder Bay, Sturgeon Ialls and Fort Garry
lino would be by fur tho shortest between Lake Superior and the Praivics.

By the Hon. M. Aikins:—

Q. What is the character of the country on the more southern line, as regards
its adaptibility for sgriculture?—In the eastern scction, the country ix too broken
ovor {o become very valuablo in an ugricultural point of view. There are, however,
occasional areas of good land, more ospecially in the river valloys, and the climate
aftor gotting some distance to the westward’ot tho Height of Land, is very favourable.
Thore ix n fine and extensive tract of land on Rainy River which would become
available for settlement, in tho event of the line being carried to Sturgeon Falls,

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. What is the difference in climate botweon Rainy River and Thunder Bay ?—
It is considerable. The summer at Rainy River is somewhat longer and very much
warmor than at Thunder Bay, As an example of the very marked difforence in
climate between the castern and wostern slopes of the water-shed, permit me to
draw your attention to these two lakes, Lake Nepigon and the Lake of the Woods.
You will seo by this map that both are in the same latitude, or nearly so. and that
the elovation above sea level differs but little, the climatic influence of what little
difference thero is being in favour of Lake Nepigon. The two lakes are about three
hundred miles apart, but Lake Nepigon is to the east of the water-shed and the Lake
of tho Woods to the west., There is a good deal of difference in the length of the
summer, and a still more marked difference in the average heat of tho summer
months. At Lake Nepigon, the ice sometimes remains until the beginning of' June.
At the Lake of the Woods, the spring opons early, and Indian corn grows well and
always ripens. At Lake Nepigon only the hardiest wild fruits come to perfection,
while at tho Lake of the Woods the wild rice, wild grape, and other plants, requir-
ing a high summor temperature, are abundant.

Q. that do the Hudson's Bay Company grow at Fort Irancis ?—They used,
long ago, to grow whoat and had a mill at the Falls, the frame of which was still
standing when I first visited the country.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Have they grown Indian corn there?—Yes, and do so still. The Indians
havo cultivatod majre along Rainy River and at the Lake,of the Woods from time
immemorial. This beautiful country—doubly valuable for being in the heart of a
region not othorwise well adapted to agriculture—will be, in a monsure, lett in the
cold, through the unfortunate sweep made in locating the Pacific Railroad so tar to
the north, in a dreary and barren region, without any conipensating advantage that
1 can soe. But little work, comparatively, has, as yot, been donc in deflecting the
line to the north from the valley to the Mattawin, and, in my opinion, it ix still a
matter worthy of serious consideration whether the line to Sturgeon Falls should not
Yot bo adopted. The expediency of this course would, however, depend on the result
of a thorough and exhaustive exumination which has never yet been made of the country
intervening betwoeen Sturgeon Falls and Keewatin, for there is alroady, perhaps, too
much work done between the latter place and the Red River to render it now advis-
able to adopt the crossing at the narrows of the Lake of the Woods, unless indeed the
line could bo deflected north-westward from that place to meot the section alroady
graded east of Selkirk. and so avoid the rough ground of section fifteen altogether.

. By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :~-

Q. Whore aro the pine forests which you mention, chiefly to be found ?—On the
tributaries of Rainy Lako there are occasional forosts of pino; and it is to be tound
In greator or loss quantity over the whole territory. The total area of country poui-
Ing ity waters to tho Tuke of the Woods is about 33,000 square miles, and it is in this
rogion that a supply of timber must be looked for for the praivio conntry to the west.
Had the railroa ll)»oen located on the southern route it would, in connection with the

0
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water stretches, havo rendered accessible by its mesns, have developed, eventually,
a trade of very great importance to the settlemont of the country, while the traﬂ{c
so ari:.ing would be of no small importance to the railroad itself.

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

Q. What is the character of Prince Arthur's Landing as a harbour ?—You will
obsorve on the map that Thunder Bay is well sheltered from every wind. It is, in
fact, likko an inland lake, and is not exposed to any surge, excopt what can arise
within the bay itsolf. The landing is in a sheltered nook of the bay, and a compara-
tivoly smuli outlay on wharves would produce a harbour that for sufoty and facility of
access could not be surpassed. :

Q. How long doos the navigation of the bay romain open in the fall ?7—The bay
remains open all through Novembor, and until the middle of Decomber there is
rarely much ice scen,

Q. The Kaministaquia River freezes over much oarlior than the bay, does it
riot ?—Tho Kaministaquia cloges sometimes in tho ond of October, genorally in the
beginning of November. The current at that season is scarcely perceptible. and it
freezes over with the first frost.

Q. Docs not, a considerable surge arise within the Buy itself 2—The fact of the
Government engincers making a cut across the bar at the mouth of the Kaminis-
tiquia, in the belief that it can remain open, without wallsof erib-work on either side,
soeing Lhat it in of roft alluvial material, shows that they do not believe in the possi-
bility of any considerable murge arising. A few such wavos as lash the exposed parts
of the coust of Lake Superiot, in stormy woather, would wsoon obliterate the cut.
Moreover, as a proot of the tranquil charactor of the waters of ‘Thunder Bay, [ may
mention that on the wharf at the landing there is a board shed one hundred and
fifty feot in longth, which is onliy about two feet oight inches above the level of
the wator. A single consideiable wave would sweop this shed away, yot it hay
stood evor since the wharf was built.

Q). What sort of a harbour is the Kaministaquia ?—It is woell sheltored, but rather
too narrow for large voessels, and altogether too contracted for a considerablo traffic,
besides sailing vessels could not enter it except with tho aid of stoam tugs.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —

Q. You say that the Kaministaquia closes earlier than the bay ; is not the fact
of the nuvigation remaining longer open at the landing, due to its oxposed possition ?
—Thore are always currents in every groat body of water, and Lake Superior presents
no excoption to the rule. These currents koo#‘) up an uniformity of tomperature,
even in bays with much smaller openings to the main Inke than Thunder Bay has.
In fino weathor there is usually a current from the wost swoeping slowly but percep-
tibly past Princo Arthar's Landing, and curving round the bay. In short, the open-
ness of the harbour in the fall is due to tho tomperature of the water, and not to its
alleged exposure. :

y the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

Q; It would then have been better to have fixed the terminus of the Pacific
Railroad at Prince Arthur's Landing ?---The Kaministaquia will always be valuable
s a harbour, especially for the smallor vessels wintering over; but I am of opinion
that tho line shoul! be extended to the Landing, which is the nearest point at which
tho navigablo wators of the lake moet the coast without any intervening bars,
shoals, or other impediments,

Q. What is tho dopth of the cul across tho bar, at the mouth of the Kaminista-
quia 21 cannot say precisely, Tho depth was about five feet six inches bofore the
Government of Ontario undertook to dredge the bar in 1872; but Lake Superior has
becn slowly rising for some years past, and Iast fall the wator was considerably
higher than it was four years ago, at the loast two foot six inches.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. What sizo of vessels can enter at prosent ?---Vessols drawing about nine feot or
nino feot six inches could ‘just enter, with nothing to sparo, a8 I am informod, last
full.  The propellers which pass through tho Welland Canal can enter, but when
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londed sometimes ground, probably in drifting against the sides of the cut, and have
then to ho lightened. The Manitoba of the Beatty Line, and the Cumberland of the
Collingwood Line, can also get into the river, but Beatty's large propellers never
venture in,

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

Q. Would the Quebec steamer of the Beatty Line have room to turn if she got
in ?— If loaded it would be as much as she could do.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. But at the terminus the river is wider, she could turn there ?—Even at that
place she would not, I think, have much room to spare. I may say, however, that
when the railroad is open to Manitoba, and Thunder Bay becomes the port for the
traffic of the north-west, it will be of unquestionable advantage to have both harbours,
and the dredging of the bar of the Kaministaguia, to a moderate extent, cannot,
therefore, be regarded othorwiso than as a useful work.

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

Q. The Government possesses sufficient ground for a terminus at the landing,
does it not ?—Tho (tfovernment of the Dominion has eight acres at the landing, besides
which the GGovernmont of Ontario has reserved a long strip on the shore for public
purposes, which would always be available, and for which thers would be nothing
to pay.

Py By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson.

Q. What is the distance from Prince Arthur's Landing to Fort Garry by the
line you propose ?—Allowing for deviations, about throe hundred and ninety miles at
most.

Q. What is the distance to Red River by tho line 'adopted, making a sweep
round to tho north by Keewatin ?——Considerably over four hundred milos; I forget
precisely how much.

Tho Committee adjourned at one o'clock.

Orrawa, Friday, 6th April, 1897,

¢

The Committeo met at noon.
DISTRICT WEST OF RED RIVER.
8. J. Dawson’'s ovidence was continued as follows ;—

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :—

_ Q. Have you boen ovor the located line from Selkirk westward to the Narrows ?—
I have not been‘over the direct lino. Many years ago I explored the country and
passed not fur from where that line now is.

Q. What is the adaptibility of the soil for immediate settlement ?—I1t struck me
at the time as boing a low swampy region between the Stone Fort and Luake Manitoba.

Q. Did you find theé country interspersed with numerous muskogs, and occasional
areas of better soil ?—That is the character of the country.

Q. Would your remarks apply to that portion of tho line immediately west of
Selkirk on tho located line, or to the country further west P—Immediately west of
Belkirk the land is tolerably good, but it soon becomes low and swampy.

Q. Are thoro any sottlements there ?—~Not when 1 was thero, gut sottlements
may have grown up since.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. How many years is it since you were there last ?—1It is eleven years since I

explored that country, but I have been in Manitoba since that time.
By the Hon. Mr. Vidal : —

Q. Did your explorations extend northward from the located line ?—Our explora-

tions extonded from Selkirk through Lake Manitoba, and along the other lakes crossing
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over the Saskatchewsan ; we passed up by the valley of Swan River to Fort Pelly, and
came down by the Assiniboine to Fort Garry. All those lakes scem to have been set
down from cursory surveys which the statf under my direction made at that time,

Q. Can you give any information as to the character of the soil in the section
travorsed by the located line 7—In all that flat country the soil is generally very
good. The only drawback to it is from its extreme flatness, and its liability to be
covered with water.

By the Hon Mr. Wilmot : —

Q. Is it a difficult country to drain ?—I would not say it is exiromely difficult.
By a comprehensive system of drainage it might be made dry.

By the Hon Mr. acpherson :—

Q. Is it very swampy near the located linoc ?—There are swamps consisting
of what the Indians call “muskegs” in that country. The prairie muskegs are
depressions covered with water, and generally with a firm bottom, although in some
cases they are bog muskegs as well as those with simple water over thom.

Hon. Mr. Aikens : —

Q. From what you know of the country, do you suppose it would be likely that
settlers would go in there and occupy these lands, whilo there is better land to the
south-west ?—1 certainly think they would choose the best land first, settloments are
likely to extend along these lakes, in consequence of the facilities for communication
by water. 1 refer to Lako Manitoba, Lake Winnipegoosis and Lac Dauphin. The
country about Lac Dauphin is & very beautiful country, with rich land all through
that section.

Q. Have you been at the Narrows of I.ake Manitoba ?—-Yes.

Q. What is the character of tho crossing at that point, and the soil in the
immediate noighbourhood ?—The so0il about the Narrows, especially to the west I
should say, is dry and good judging from the apponrance of it in passing through
thore; but I never examined it with a suficient minutoness to be able to say what
sort of crossing there would be thore. The object of our exploration then was to
ascertain the general character of the country, and how a proliminary line of com-
munication conld be best opened through it.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—-

Q. 1 suppose you did not sound the channel at the crossing to know what depth
of wator there was ?—We sounded generally as we went through all those lakes, so
a8 to ascertain the general depth,

Q. You do not recollect sounding the Narrows, particularly ?—I do not remember
that place particularly, but I remember the gencral depth of Lake Manitoba was
comparatively shallow, with & very uniform bottom, almost as oven as tho prairie on
either side of it. The information regarding this particular section between Lake
Winnipeg and Lake Manitoba was chiefly obtained from Indians and Half-breeds,
and by whatever means we could obtain it; but west of the lakes.we explored the
country, sometimes on horseback, as well as in canoes.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. low far is it south of the located line where yon Pm-ssed ?—My information
with regard to the precise location of the line I do not think would bo very valuable,
because it is only general, and I would not like to commit myself to any opinion
about it further than as to the general character of the country. The quality of the
s0il is excellent; the only objection to it is that it is very low.

Q. You passed over to Manitoba several times ?—Yos, every year, for a consider-
able period of time.

‘E. How does the land south of Lake Manitoba compare with that in the vicinity
of the located line, near Lake Dauphin ?——The land is all of the same character—a
deep black loam—in the valley of the Red River. When you got out west a short
distance from the river there are gravelly ridges, but the general character of the soil
is very good. The lund along the located lino, us fur as Lake Manitoba, is generally
very low ; and in some parts along the north-east side of tho Manitoba Lake you
cannot even get to the shore without wading; thore is a beach of shingle thrown up
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by waves and ice, and inside, botween it and the low prairie, an immense marsh. The
country about l’urtridg} Cross is visited with occasional floods.
By the Hon. Mr. Aikins -—

Q. Do you know anything about the country west of the Narrows, on the located
lino ?--Yes; I had that explored betwoen the Assiniboine and Lake Manitoba; it is
a beautiful country. . )

By Hon Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. I think you have stated that theso shores of these lukes present great attrac-
tions to settlors 7—On the north-east side of the lakes tho ground is, in some cases,
low, but the south-west sidos is better. There is a fine country about Lake Dauphin.
I sent a surveying party in there to explore that country, and they reported it as
being vory boautiful. ‘

Q. Do you fool yourself in a position to offer an opinion as to the located line
betweon Solkirk and Northcoto ?—In so far as my opinion goes, I would prefor the line
going to tho routh of Manitoba Lake, but then there might be enginecring difficulties
which I am not aware of that would make {t advisable to take the present line,

By Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Apart from tho enginecring difficulties, which line would you prefer as a
road for the railway ?—Apart from engineering considerations, I would juége the line
south of Lake Manitoba to be the best, because it would pass over a very large
oxtent of country fit for immediate sottloment, and, at the same time, by tapping
Manitoba Lake, it would open this lake road for sottloment also.

By Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. Would it not be an important consideration to construct the line through the
narrows, north, and avail ourselves of the wator communication of the two lakes ?—I
think the objoct could be us well attained by passing to the south of Lake Manitoba.
The stupendous erossing at the Narvows of Manitoba Luko strikes mo as boing one of
the most objectionable featuves in the present line, and the engineers, in providing for
the bridge, will have to bo very careful to guard against ice shoves which have left
such ovidence of their forco along the cousts.

Q. Aro you aware of any mineral resources in the Lake Winnipeg rogion ?---
The north-cast comsst of Lake Winnipeg is likely to prove, in some "parts, a rich
mineral country. I know that valuable minerals, such as iron and co pper ores, have
been found ; and T have also heard that traces of gold have been observoed on the
north-east coast. It is in a country which, from its rock formation, ought to possess
mineral woalth. On tho wost side of Lake Winnipeg you have the flat Silurian
limestones, and on the east the Huronian alternating with the Laurentian formation, It
is the same in groat i)m-t as that which has proved to be so rich in minerals in the
Lake Superior and Lake Iuron districts. The Bruce mines, for example, are in
Huronian rocks.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens -

). From your acquaintance with the navigation of the Red River, ia there any
necessity for crossing so near the mouth of it as at Selkirk ?~-If they had crossed
higher up, it would have boen well to have a railroad running down so far as Selkirk,
hecause a short distance above Selkirk thero is a series of flat rapids which, at low
water, can only be navigated hy flat boats of light draught.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : -

Q. Would not that navigation be easily improved ?---The Government improved
it somewhat by blasting out bouldors that were in the channel some years ago under
my direction, and it enabled boats to navigate it at a much lower stago of the water
than they had ever done before,

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—-

Q. Do you know the draught of the boats at present running on Red River to
Lako Winnipoeg ?-~Yes; they are very flat, stern-wheel steamers, and when they are
full loadod t,}xoy only draw three feet of water, )

Q. Have thoso gone up and down regularly ?--~Not at extreme low water. They
have not gone to the Stone Fort in low water,
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Q. How long is it since you have been there ?—About two years, and the boats
were then running.

Ly the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. We understand that berges loaded with railway iron have been takon down
there ?— Boats can run down except in extreme low water, and there is nothing
in the strength of the ¢urrent to prevent them from coming up.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : — . -

Q. You surveyed the Dawson Road at Lake Superior —Yes; I was in charge
of the statf sent out by the Government. ’

Q. The selection of Prince Arthur’s Landing as a port was also made by you ?—
Yes.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :--

Q. You survoyed the present terminus of the Pacific Railway at Kaministiquia
a8 wall as Prince Arthur’s Landing ?----Yes; 1 had three surveying parties under me;
we survoyed the whole country from Pigeon River to the head of }')I‘hunder Bay in
order to try and gct access Lo the interior, and after exploring the whole of that
region before there were any surveys or settlements wgntever in that country T
selected the same spot which is now called Prince Arthur’s Landing, and T have never
since had reason to change my views with regard to the expedioncy ot having chosen
that point. ,

3. You still adhere to that preference ?—Yos; and while selecting this point I
alsn recommended tho opening of the Kaministiquia so a8 to render it accessible to
small vessels, and had soundings takon of the bar at the mouth whon tho first explo-
rations wore made. :

Henry A. I. McLeop, C.E., was examined as tollows :—

I am in the service of the Governmont at the present time, in the Paocific Rail-
way oflice.

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking : —

Q. You huve located a portion of this line in connection with tho Pacific Railway
survey *—VYes; 1 have located the line from Shoal Lake to Mossy River, the outlet of
Dauphin Lake.

By the Iion. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Doer the line run through a portion of the lake ?—No; you can hardly call it
a Narrow; it is quite a small pond a foot or 1o deep.

Q. What souson of the year were you there?—I think it was in the beginning
of November.

Q. Wus the ground frozen ?—It was about the 10th November, and we had snow
when we commenced.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins : —

Q. How long did it take you to locate the line 7—Krom about the 1st November
to the end of February.

Q. Why was the winter selected as the time for locating this part of the line?
—There was no reason, except that wo had finishod work at Vermillion Lake in
October, and immediatoly afterwards were sent to- commence work there for the
winter.

Q. Who hud located the line from Selkirk to Shoal Lake ?-~It was located subse-
quently by Mr. Carr.

Q. Do you know the reason why you did not commence at Selkirk and oxtend west
to Shoal Lake before commencing at Shoal Lake and extending westward to Mossy
River t—1 fancy the reason was to nscertain whether the crossing of tho lake could
be made, and, when that was ascortained, to start east and west ?

Q. With regard to the quality of the soil, you were not in a position to judgo of
it in the winter?—Yes; I could judge of the quality of the soil by the amount of
grass in the country. There was plenty to keep our horses alive, There was grass
then up to some time in December.
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Q. I supposo the country would be well supplied with grass?—Yes; in the
open countr{i. .

Q. As the Eonds were all frozen, I suppose you would not find any difficulty in
gotting through the country, even if there were muskegs to cross ?-—No; but we
e}faﬁxined the muskegs, and such of these as we examined we found to be very
shallow.

Q. What depth ?—Generally from one foot to two or three; I have not found
any to exceed five feet. The muskegs are narrow, and not to any great extent
through the country from Shoal Lake to the Narrows.
. How frequently did you make examinations of tho muskegs ?—Whenever

we passed & muskeg we examined it.

- Q. How could you tell a muskeg in the winter ?—They are generally open and
no timber growing on them.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Is there any valuable timber in the region you surveyed ?—No; it is not
valuable except for fuel. It is principally poplar. There is some oak along the
lake—small sized onk.

Q. Did you observe any trace of fire in that country ?—Yes; there had been
fires in that country long ago, but not lately.

. By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. Were you thore when the telegraph was built?—No; it was built subse-
quently—after I had gone farther west.

Q. What season of the year was it built ?-=I do not know. [ think they were
building it in the winter the year boforo last. When I came through on my return
I camo down the line from Fort Pelly, in the wintor of 1875-76.

. Were you ever, during the summer season, through the country between
Shoal Lake and the Narrows ?—No; not in summer.
Q. Nevor except when the grass was frozen ?—No; always in wiater.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —
Q. Did you locate the line from Livingstone westward ?—Yes.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Was the whole of that portion of the line between Shoal Lake and -Mossy
River located by you?—Yes. .

Q. And that part of the country you never went through except when the
ground was frozen ?—No.

By the Hon. Mr. Girard:—

Q. Isit to your knowledge that some of your party in trying to ascortain the
depth of some of tho muskegs, could not find bottom with poles 20 to 30 feot long?—
Itis not to my knowledge. I am not aware of any places of that kind at all. In
fact, it was with great difficulty we could push a pole down at all to the depth we
got at, five foct. This is on the located line, of course; we did not examine it to
any distance on either side.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :—
. What is your opinion of the general character of the line you surveyed from
Shoal Lake to Mossy River; is it a difficult lino to construct ?—It is a very
line, and so far as & railway is concerned, easy of construction.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—
Q. Did your survey include the Narrows ?—Yes.
By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :—
Q. Is ‘ho drainuge good ?—Yes: Ishould say it is very easy.
By the Hon Mr. Atkens :~—

‘Q. What will be the expense of crossing the Narrows ?—There will be consider
able exponso. [t is 2,800 feet across.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :— .

Q. What is the average depth of wator P~—The grestest depth, 1 think, as far as
I can remember, is 16 foet; towards the shore it is 3, 4 or 3 feet.
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By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. How did you propose to cross ?—On a bridge, some kind of pole bridge.

By the on. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. Not a dvaw-bridge ?~—That I do not know.

By the fon. Mr. Scott:—

Q. Is there any current there ?—It depends on the direction of the wind ; thore
is a current both ways,
By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :— :

Q. Had yon any opportunit of exploring the land on either side of the line ?7—
Not more than a mile or two. I generally walked over the country a short distance
on either side to sce if there were any lakes ahoad, so that if there were they could
be avoided.

By the IHon. Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. Is it a dificult country to see any distance ahead of you ?—Ouly in some
cases ; it was generally woody.

By the Hon. Kir. Girard :—

Q, Have you passed to the south of Lako Manitoba ?—Yes, frequantly.

Q. What kind of land is it ?—1I¢t is good land as far as Lake Maunitoba, but from
that west I should not say it is good. As far as White Mud River it is very good, not
all good. There is much better land about Portage La Prairie.

By the Hon. Mr. Srott :— :

Q. How far wost of that point does the good land extend on the south line ?—
It would probably be about fifteen miles west ot Portage La Prairie.

Q. Did you go out by the old trail to Swan River 2—Yes. I went out to the
west of Hdmonton by that trail.

- Q. How far south of the Riding Mountains did you pass ?—From Portage La
Prairie I have hoen to the mouth of %Vhite Mud River, and from there across Little
Saskatchewan River, on the cart trail, and then west to Fort Kilice.

N Q. Waus that an exploratory survey ?-—No; it was merely travelling through
there.

Q. What was the opinion you formed of the suitability of country for a railway

the cart trail ?—It is very giﬁlcult; intersected with deep wide valleys,

Q. You passed over the cart-trail running west from Fort Ellice ?-~Yes.

. Q. What was the character of thg soil you found between that and Touchwood
Hills?—It was very poor indeed. There may be a little good lund between the
Touehwood Hills, -

Q. Taking the ecasterly range of the Touchwood Hills, betweon that and Fort
Ellice, what was the character .o% the country ?—1I should say it was very poor and
sandy when you get north of Fort Ellice.

- Q. What aro the fucilities for the construction of a railway from Fort Ellice to
the South Saskatchewan, intersecting the Touchwood Hills ?—With regard to the
uality of the soil, I think it would pass through a very poer country indeed—from
%'ort tllice, until you get near the South Saskatchewan.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :~—

Q. You simply pas-ed through the ordinary trail ? —Yes; 1 passod through the
Touchwood Hills once: I have been twice at Fort Ellice.

Q. How much of the country did you explore porth and south of the cart-trail ?
—No distance. I can only jndge from what I saw from the cart-trail, .

Q. How did you (ravel?—On horscback sometimes, and sometimes on the

buckboards. ,

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. You know pretty well what the Touchwood Hills are; do thoy present any
serious obstruction to the building of a railway ?—It would be expensive crossing
them, :

!
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Tuxspay, 17th April, 1877,
C. Hor£rzky, C.E., was called, and examined as follows :—

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. Have you over passed north ot Lake Manitoba ?—No, I know nothing of that
country, of my own knowledge.

Q. Have you travelled west from Winnipeg, passing south of Lake Manitoba,
towards the Littlo Saskatchewan ?—Yes, I have travelled from Winnipeg by Portage
la Prairie west by the cart trail.

Q. Have you ever been routh of the cart trail >—No, I have never been south of
the cart trail, east of the Assiniboine.

Q. What is the general character of the country betwoen Winnipeg and where
the cart trail passes the Assiniboine ?—The soil is pretty fair, and there is & number
of salt lakes in that vicinity.

, Q. Are any of these salt lakes eaat of the Little Saskatchewan ?—1I think the salt
lakes I refer to are beyond the Littie Saskatchewan, on the cart trail.

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —

Q. What is tho character of the land around these salt lakes; does grass grow
well on their margin ?—Yes, with the exception of the salt lake at the point hal (
betwoen the Assiniboine and the Little S8askatchewan. There area good many small
salt lakes throughout that section of the country.

Q. What is the general character of the country that you passed over !—It is
very fair.

yQ. Did it seom to you that that country presented any great difficulties in the
way of railway construction, as far as you went ?-—~Where the cart trail crosses the
Little Saskatchewan, the valley is very wide and deep.

Q. Ts it the same with the smaller streams that cross the cart trail ?—Passin,
Shoal Lake they present the same difficulties. Bird’s Tail Creek is not so very bmf
That is directly on the cart trail, and as far as Fort Ellice they are not very bad; but
from Fort Ellico to Fort Pelly, there is Shell River—it is a very bad point. Pine
Creek is also very bad. Ascending the Assiniboine on the east side, similar difficul-
ties would be encountered. .

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :— :

Q. Did you pass through the section from Fort Ellice, across the Touchwood
Hills, to any point on the present line?—No; I came down over the Touchwood
Hills, to Qu’Appelle Fort. waa returning home from the Rocky M»ountains at the
time, and I took the best way I could to get to Fort Garry. I can only say 1 know
the country from the Touchwood Hills to Fort Qu'Appelle, and down the Qu’Appelle
River, but not north of it.

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. What was the charactor of the Touchwood Hills where you passed through
them ?—It is a very pretty rolling country, with copses of poplar timber inter
spersed through it.

Q. Are the Hills large ?—No; they are mere mounds, fifty or sixty foot above
the general level.

. Do they present any difficulties in the way of a railway passing through
them ?—I cannot say they do.
By the Hon. Myr. Macpherson : —

" Q. These hills do not deserve the namo of hills?—Non; the north side of the
Touchwood Hills appears high; however, that may be owing to the deprossion of
the valley intervening.

By the Hon. Mr. Aiking :-—

Q. What is the character of the country from the Touchwood Hills to the South

Saskatchowan, where Xgu crossed ?—It is an undulating, treeless prairie.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—
Q. Dizy you survey any part of thaggline ?—I belonged to a survoying party
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undor Mr. Frank Moberley, who travelled through that country to report on its
genoral features, There was no survey made, but we measured the distance with an
odometer, which we had attached to the cart wheel. It was & mere exploratory
expedition.

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. Did you call at Fort Edmonton on the way ?—Yes; several times.

Q. From Fort Edmonton, did you follow the course of the river, or did you keep
in a more direct line ?—I have been nearly along the located line of railway, between
both crossings of the Saskatchewan.

Q. What is the cnaracter of the country from Edmonton west to the Rocky
Mountains 7—From my own knowledge, I can only speak of the country from
Edmonton as far as Jasper House.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—
Q. How is it there ?—I consider it a worthless country for any purpose.
By the Hon. Mr. Aiking:—

Q. What distance would that be ?-—I assume it would be about 205 miles by the

trail I took; of course the line is shorter. It is, I think, about 160 miles by the line,
By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Did you go any distance either north or south of the line ?—1I went both north
and south along 1t. So far as I could see, the line generally follows noar the line
that I recommended.

Q. Is there a better country north or south ?—The country is worse, I think, to
the south, because it is higher.

Q. Is it there that the North Saskatchewan takes its rise ?—Yes ; the dip of the
country is towards the north, and, consequently, you get a better country; a4 you go
north the climate ameliorates, as the decrease in elevation compensates for the higher
latitude. I went from Fort Kdmonton tv Fort Assiniboine, and from Fort Assini-
boine to Lesser Slave Lake; then I skirted Lesser Slave Lake to the west; then
across Peace River in a north-westerly direction; then westward to Dunvegan; from
Dunvegan we crossed Peace River again to the south sideand went back into the
country 15 or 20 miles south of Peace River. We then continued westward until we
came to Fort Saint John; thence we crossed the river to the north side and went
opposite to Hudson's Hope. We then went over the portage, took a boat, and as-
cended Peace River to the Parsnip River. The Parsnip is the south-west branch of
the Peace River. That was in the month of October. 1 arrived at McLeod's Fort
on the 5th November.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmot : —

@. Was there snow on the gronnd at the time ?—Yes ; five or six inches. Then
we walked down from Fort McLeod to Fort James, then from Fort James we walked
along Stewart Lake to Cross Lake, and from Cross Lake to Babine lLake, down to
the forks of the Skeena ; thence across to the Naas and down to the sea.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. You did that on foot ?—Yes; in the winter—in January, on snow-shoes

Q. Waa the snow very heavy ?-—The deepest I experienced was about three foet.
Neéar the coast the snow increased in depth.

Q. With regard to the trnct of country you speak of as worthless; what are
the general features of it; is it rocky ?—It is an elevated swampy country, full of
muskegs, all timbered with spruce and tamarac; in appearance much like the
country north of Lake Superior,

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmot :—- :

Q. What is the size of the timber ?—It is from two foet to three feet in diameter,

as far as I can remember—that is the spruce timber.
By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. What is the sub-soil 7—Olay, I think, and gravel in places. ‘I don't think itis
at all fit for cultivation. The tountry is 3,000 feet above the level of the sea. From
the time you leave Fort Edmonton until you get to Jaspar House the averago is
2,600 feet above the ses. The country be‘tzveen monton and Athabasca River to
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Fort Assiniboine is a very fair country, good land and partially timbered. It is
rough in places, but cultivatable. Between the Fort Assiniboine and the Lesser
Slave Lake tho country is even worse than that I have described, beyond Edmonton,

o passod ovor an elevation of 4,000 feet above the level of the sea, it is nothing
but a spur of the Rocky mountains. At Lesser Slave Lake (which is about the
same level as Edmonton) the country improves. Along the' south shoro of the lake
blue-joint grass grows luxuriantly. From Lesser Slave Lake to the Peace River, it
is & heautiful country. The distance is about sixty to seventy miles. The situation
as shown on the map is erroneous, as Slave Lake is about seventy miles in length.
The country in that vicinity is very fine and it improves as you go west.

Q. ITow wide is the valley of the Peace River ?—The bed of the River is about
400 yards wide at the forks of the Smoky River, and the valley is about a mile and a
half wide there. The river itsolf varies in width from 200 to 500 yards. It is tho
moat beautiful country I have ever seen. As we rode out to the Peace River from
Slave Lake we emerged suddenly from the' woods upon a (Plateau, and the scene that
burst upou us was beautifnl beyond description. We could trace Peace River flowing
through the valley for miles, as far as the oye could reach.

By the Hm. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Are thore any settlers there —No,

Q. How far up i8 the highest settlement in the neighbourhood of Edmonton;
I8 there any at St. Albert Mission ?-—--There is a Roman Catholic Mission nine miles
from Edmonton. Then there is another Mission further west, at St. Ann; then
there is another to the northward at Lake La Biche.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Is there no population beyond that?—Very little more; a few scattered
settlors when I was there six or seven months ago.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :

Q. Ts the body of water in the Peace River very large ?-~-Yeos; at thotime I saw
it the Peace River would float any of the St. Lawrence steamers.

Q. Was that height of water I{)ermanent during the dry season ?--I think so.
There is no doubt from Smoky River up to the Rocky Mountains Portage it is
navigable-—it is 500 yards from bank to bank at the Falls of the Smoky River.

. % Did you measure it ?--~No, I did not measuve it, but I sighted my rifle to 500
rds and fired several shots, and the bullets struck the edge of the wator at that
istance. It varies from 200 to 600 yards in width at the ﬁocky Mountain Portage.
o river flows out of the Rocky Mountains, through a valley six or soeven hundred
feet below the general level of the country.

Q. IHow far ?—-It is about a hundred miles at least from east to west,

Q. Have you ever gone through that country south towards Fort George from
the Peace River Pass?--I went up the Poace River to McLieod Lake.

‘ Q. Whoro does it empty itself >—It is a branch of the Mackenszie River, and
emptios itself into the Arctic Ocean; it drains a great portion of the country west of
the Rocky Mountains in British Columbia. The Parsnip River is wost of that. The
country about Peace River is, in my estimation, a better country than Manitoba; its
agricultural and pastoral capabilities are better than those of the Red Rivor country.

By the Hon, Mr. Scott : —

Q. Is there any great extent of this good country ?—I can only spoak of what I
know. I know it extends to a considerablo distance to the north ;.{know that wheat
has been grown 300 miles north of Dunvegan. There is,no doubt about that, for I have
8een vegotables, such a8 potatoes and onions growing at Fort Saint John that could
not have boen excelled anywhere. The vegetation is rich and luxuriant. In the

eace River region the Indian poase attains perfection and a larger size than
on the Saskatchewan—they transport them to Edmonton. This is a sure indication
of & good quality of soil anq climate. The clevation of the country is about 1,800 feet
above the(‘evel of the sea. I have never been at Fort George, my instructions from
r. Fleming were to examine parts of the Skeena, but I found it impossible to descend
the Skeena at that time of the year, and I went down the Naas.
4
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By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—
Q. Iow far were you from Fort George 7—I was at Fort St. Jamos.
By the ‘Hon. Mr. Aiking :

Q. Ts it possible to form & railway connection with Fort George by the Southern
Pence River country ?—I think so.

Q. Aro you aware whether it has been explored from the head of Peace River,
south ?-~I do not think it would be advisable to carry a line through the Peace
River Pass, but I have every reason to believe that the Pine River Pass is very low.
T was the first to advocate its adoption four years ago. I started from Fort Saint
John accompanied by some Indians, and was upon the point of starting for Fort
McLeod via this pass when the Indians rofused to proceed and said we had better go
up the Peuace River, so that I was obliged to abandon the expedition. When I
arrived at Fort McLeod I was determined to go eastward to examine the Pine River
Pass but 1 could get no Indians to go with me, and I was obliged to abandon the
Broject altogether. The Indians told me they could easily take horses through the

ine River Pass, Tho mountains are very low there, and recede very far on each
side. Surveys have heen made as far as Fort George and we know that from Gis
.combe Poriage to McLeod Lake there is a very level stretch of river, and from
McLoed’s Liake thero is every probability that communication may be had to the
enstward through.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :-—
Q. You say there can be communication botween Bute Inlet and Fort George ?
—Yos; I beliove so, tho reports affirm so.
Q. Describe the country through which you passed down to the eoast ?-—I came
out at the Naas near the Portland channel.

By the Hon. Mr. Vidal :—

Q. Would not the elevated tract of country east of the Pine River Pass afford
-serious obstacles to railway construction ?--~It is my impression that the line running
farther north than the present located and projected line would be actually shorter, '
making Fort Goorge the objective point. Between Edmonton and Fort Assiniboine,
the country is good; but between Fort Assiniboine and Lesser Slave Lake, the
country is utterly useless. I have passed through twenty-five swamps in a single
-day, from a quarter to a half mile long. There is abundance of blue-berries in them,
which is always a bad sign of the soil.

By the Hon. Mr. Wilmot.—

Q. Does the climate get milder a3 you go north ?---In the month of October, in
travelling along these plains near the Peace River, I observed tho thermometer at
75° fahr. in the shade. This was in October. We had warm days and rather cold
nights, but the weather was beautiful.

By the Hon. Mr.Vidal : — .

Is not the frost very sovere there in the winter ?-~Itis a dry cold; the snow
never packs. They told me in Dunvegan that in December the Indians often go out
in their moccasins only, without snow-shoes. The snow is generally so dry that it
never packs. Cattle and horses can winter out there.

The Committee adjourned at one, p.m.

Faripay, 20th April, 1877.
The Committee met at eleven o’clock, but adjourned for want of a quorum,
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Otrawa, Saturday 2lst April, 1877,
*  The Committee met at 11 a.m.

Mr. Sanprorp FrEMING was callod and examined as follows :-—

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Why was the located line selocted in proforence to a lino that might have
8ong by Sturgeon Falls between Lake Superior and Luke of the Woods ?—An effort
wh made to got the most direct line betweon Thunder Bay and the only point
R‘m‘e it was considered that the Lako of the Woods could bo crossed, at the outlet at

t Portage. We began by making survey-« directly on that line from both ends;
w’ 8pont a whole season and the following wintor and part of the following year, but
w° failed to find a practicable line in the direction referred to oast of Rat Portage.
°We Wwore driven to look for & line furthor to the north, and we suceeeded in finding
“:9 moro northerly than the one first attemptod and very much in the position of
,09 presont located line. Some tinmo afterwards, the importance of gotting a direct
m“tﬁ that would tap the navigable waters of Rainy Lake at S:urgoon Falls, being

Iy undorstood, woe agnin attempted to get a line for a railway in that direction.
N l" Succeeded in gotting a practicable line from the east to Sturgoon Falls, and

ittle distance furthor west, but where we encountered an exceedingly rocky, broken,
4 81\', impracticable country, and we were compelied to abandon any further examina-
R:n! in that direction. We could have found a good line running north from Sturgeon

I8 to the lake called Wabigon Lake, torsvctin ; the located line in the neighbour-
ng of Wabigon Lake. It was found, however, that the detour would be so great,
% the distanco would be increased so much, that it was thonght unadvisable to locate
m‘ line by Sturgeon Falls, and considered better to find the most direct line for the

lw_ay from the Wabigon Lake to the westerly end of Lac de Mille Lacs, and thence
di hunder Bay. I should state hore that we have made surveys in every conceivable
R:Ntmn through the wholo of that country, and I feel satisfied wo have now got the
The located on tho shortest and best route that can be had between Rat Portage and
-dundqr Bay. Ido not fnoan to say that it cannot be improved, as [ hope we shall
{:‘ bo able to improve the located line in some parts bofore constiuction actually
ng, .

By Hon. Mr. Macpherson:—
Q. Had you the country between Sturgoon Falls and Lake of the Woods

:‘;’Nughly surveyed and explorod ?—Yes, we went in from both ends and had
«l’lomtions made, but the reports wore 8o oxtremely unsatisthetory that wo did not
™ m it alvisable to make further surveys. Instrumental surveys were continued,

Wo wore driven off the direct line altogether.

t Q. Did tho explorations extond north and south over a considerable portion of
] country ?—Yos; they explored to the right and left over & considerablo aroa ?

Q. You spoke of Rat Portage as boing the only place where the Lake of the
‘n°°d8 could be crossed ?—The question of crossing the Liake of tho Woo.lx itself at
,e‘)ther point by a number of islands, had been cousidered, but the expense would be
Qury &reat indeed, and the policy of crossing thoso wide stretches of waters is very

Sstionable.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikins:—
Q. What is the character of the country oast of the Narrows of the Lako of the
~m?0ds ?—The country is very much like & continuation of the Lake of the Woods,
% of lakes and islands—about as much water as land. You can hardly tell where
:"l.:ke begins and where tho land ends. That is the general charactor of the
ry.

ét‘ Q. Is it 80 north of Sturgeon Falls, as well as weat ?—Yes, north and wost from
w“ eon Falls. T speak of what is called the country to tho east of Lako of the

8. It is full of islands and inlets and deep water filled channels.
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By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Would not a line from Sturgeon Falls, through the Narrows, to Winnipeg
be much shorter ?—Yes, if you could get a line. There is another point of impor*
tance in connection with it—it wounld pass very near the American territory.
not think we could get a line thruuﬁh by the Narrows, at all; there are so many
things that are really impracticable. An attempt was made, nearer home, to oross #
lake much smaller than that-—I refer to Rice Lake—-and it failed, attor a great desl
of money had boen expended on it.

By the Hon. Mr. Aikens:—

Q. What is the distance between the islands at the Narrows? —I really canno
tell you without roferring to the profiles.

Q. Would not the consideration of being able to use the navigable wators fro®
Sturgeon Falls and the north arms of Lake of the Woods have justified a largef
outlay in tho construction of a road on the southern than on the northern line 18
would, certuinly, but we found no practicable line at all, -

By Hon. Mr. Macpherson :— :

Q. What is the length of the line from Thunder Bay to Selkirk ?—410 mile#i
from Selkirk to Rat Portage it is 117 miles.

Q. What is the distance by tho otber route from Thunder Bay via Sturgeo®
Falls ?— I could not tell you; there is no other route except what you may draw
the map Fyom-self. We have found no other route.

Q. From Sturgeon Falls westward, as fur as examined, are there anr oconsider”
able difficulties in the way of railway construction ?—For fourteen miles weat of
Sturieon Falls thero is no great difficulty, but after that serious difficultios continu®
all the way. .

By Hon. Mr. Scott :—- '

Q. You say you have obtained what you consider exhaustive information as t0
tll}is country from the point fourteen miles west of Sturgeon Falls to the Narrows 7~

o8,

Q. And you aro prepared to say that no feasible line can be found there ?—-I 81
very unwilling to say there is no practicable line, but I am not pr.pared to report 08
any practicable line. T am very unwilling to say it is impracticable Locause we do
not liko to admit thore is anything impracticable in engineering, but it is on that
ground alone. '

Q. Would the exponse be greater even if the line where shorter, than the
exponse involved in the longer line northward ?-—-From the inspection of the mup
would appear that the distance would be shorter; I do not know how many milesy’
but I am sure that when you came to make the survey you would have to diverg®
so much from a straight lino to get a proper grade that it would be greatly incre.
in length. It is o most ditficult, broken country. Tho orossing of the Lake of the
‘Woods is, in my opinion, entirely out of the question. I am aware that Mr. DawsoR
thinks differently-.-that it could be done,

By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland : —
Q. Did you have soundings made at the crossing of the lake ?---No ; we accep“‘l
Mr., Dawson's soundings as being correct.
By the Hon. Mr. Scott :-—
Q. Have you any estimate as to what the crossing at the Narrows would cost =~

No.

Q. Is it a0 serious as not to justify you in making an estimate ?—Yes; it was 80

serious a matter, that the idea of making an estimate was never entertained.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. How is tho country on the located lino, from Thunder Bay to Selkirk, fof
sottlemont ?—There is not much of it fit for scttlomont. There is some good lsod
between Thunder Bay and the height of land. Thore are several fair townships in
there; but on the height of land there will nut be many agricultural settlors.

- “
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By the Hon. Mr. Sa"epson —

Q. How far west do youTmean ?—It is nearly north rather than wost; as far as

8hebandowan, about forty miles, perhaps.
By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson :—
Q. From Thunder Bay to Selkirk, along the located line, there is vory little land
fit for sottloment. Is there not a much groater area of land fit for settiement, on a
ne in tho neighbourhood of the Dawson route >—There is somo good land alon
iny River, one side of which belongs to us. There is not much good land aroung
ake of the Woods; it is very low and swampy on ono side, and rocky and broken
on the other.
By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne : —

Q. 18 tho land between Lonely Lake and English River good ?—There may be
Some good patches of land on Wabigon River fit for settlement, but it is not inviting
for agricuitural purposes. There, is some good land on Rainy River, but wherever
the good land occeurs it is in & moasuro accessible by railway, whatover line may
be choson.

By the IHon. Mr. Aikins : —

Q. Inspeaking of the located line, it touches the waters of Lac de Mille Lacs,
Why then is it continued to English River; is it undor contract ?—This portion ir
under contract.

Q. What is tho object of putting that under contract when tho intermediate
link, west of' English River, is not to be built for some time to come ?—The trial survey
has been finished, but the location line has not been comploted. It is not proposed
to put it under contract this suramor, but there is no idea of abandoning it.

Q. Tho statement has beon made by the Premier that it isx tho intention to use
the water navigation for & numhor of years, and is there any reason why that portion
from Lac de Milles Lacs to English River should be put under contract when the
intermediante link is not to be proceeded with ?—The intention must be this: it is
Vory obvious that the country beyond English River is inaccessible without a railway
or water communication to it. 'Uhis railway will enable contractors to get in sup-
plies and plant to build the portion beyond Knglish River.

'Q. But if it is not tho intention to proceed with tho \)ortim\ beyond Knglish
River for some yours, what is the object of proceeding with tho section from Lac de
Mille Lacs to Kunglish River ?—It will be so much done.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson.— '

Q. But if there is no connection beyond English River and the road ends in the
woods, what is the object of proceeding with the detached link ?— I cannot very well
answer the quostion, because it is quite new to me that it is not intended to go on.
I understood that it was to go on a8 soon as possible. I was not aware of the reasons
or facta you have stuted until now.

By the Hon. Mr. Scott :—

Q. Is not that forty mile section simply the grading ?—VYes; grading, rail
luying and ballasting. 1 should add the instructions to the contractors now ix to do
that forty miles last. The instructions from the Minister of Public Works is not to
push the work on that portion beyond Savanne until the last.

Q. When do you oxpect to have the roaud completed to Port Suvanne ?-=Next
Septembor probably the track may be laid.

Q. Wheon do you expoct to have it completed to English River 2—In about two
years.

Q. Have you not the right undor those contracts to suspend opecations at any
time ?-—Yes, :

Q. What is the distance to Port Savanne from Fort William ?-——About soventy
miloa,

Q. What sort of a line is it ?—A very good line,

Q. Can you give us any idea of what it will cost?—I can furnish the amount of
the contract. I would rather not say what it will cost; I really do not know at this
moment.
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By the Hon. Mr. Aikens :— ;

Q. Ilag the track been cut out for the telegraph line?—The telograph is boinﬁ '-'
erected on the line of the Railway, and the clearing has boen done by the tolegra
contractors. They precedo those who have the contract for the grading of the
Railway.

Q. From Fort William to Savanno has there been any divergence of the Railway
from the line on which the telegraph was erected ?—I do not know that there has;
there may be, but I have not heard of any yet.

Q. What oxtent of navigation will be open from the end of the Railway at Port
Savanne west ?—Navigation will be open to the extreme end of Lac des Mille
Lacs; then a number of portages and water-stretches will begin.

Q. How many porta%es will bo avoided by the construction of the Railway from
Fort William to Savanne 7—There will be the long. portage from Fort William t
Shebandowan, 45 miles; tho next ono ia the lift from Shebandowan to Kashabowie ;
the next from Kashabowio to Lac des Mille Liacs—threo p.rtagos in all.

By the Hon. Mr. Simpson :—

Q. Whatis the extent of those portagos 7—About 46 miles altogethor; there are

two of thom very short; thoe iwo together will not exceed a mile and throe-quarters.
By the Hon. Mr. Aikins :—-

Q. How many portages will thore be from Port Savanne to Lake of thec Woods ?
—1I could not say exactly without roferrinpl; to my report. Tho report of the
Minister of Public Works estimatos tho total length of land carriage saved between
Thunder Bay and Lnc de Mille Lacs will be forty-six and three-quarters miles,

By the Hon. Mr Macpherson : —

Q. Thon how many portages botwoon Lac des Mille Lacs and Lake of the
Woods ?—Hight.

Q. Doon that include Fort Francis Lock ?—No, it is exclusive of Fort Francisx |
cight to Rainy Lako.

By the Hon. Mr. Simpson :—
Q. What would be the length of those eight portages ?-—Six miles and a half.
By the Hlon. Mr. Macpherson : —

Q. What is the ditference of level ?—The fall is vory considerable; it must be
from three hundred to four hundred foet.

Q. Do you think any trade could bo carried on over those portages between the
torminus of the railway and Lake of the Woods ?—It would be very awkward to do
any trade over those eight portages, without appliances of some kind-—it would be
vory tedious and awkward.

Q. We havo been told by some of the witnesses that, starting from Keowatin and
dropping a little southwards so a8 to strike Red River about midwany betwoen Winnipeg
and Nelkirk, the road would be much easior of construction, and the land would be more
available for settlement than on the located line; is that the case ? —Wao tried that, but
wo did not find it so; we tound the rock work was shorter, but it was heavier; we hoped
to get a line that way, and thought it would be cheaper, but we did not succeed; we
made sevoral survoys through there; we made a survey directly from Keewatin
to the crossing of Red River, midway botween Winnipog and Selkirk; that was
uimpl‘rhto ascortuin as to the practicability of a line of any kind; but we found
from Rat Portage, some thirty miles wost, the country was very rough; then, in
order to obviato tho rough section, we made another survey further south near the
Lako .of the Woods; wo succeeded in gotting through the rough country by a line
romewhat shorter, but the cost of construction was not lessened thereby, the country
being rougher. Ilaving ascortained that, we foll back on the original lino and pro-
ceeded to improve that ono as far as we could.

Q. What is tho charactor of the land betweon Koewatin and Red Rivoer, on the
southorly line, a8 compured with that on tho located line ?—None of the country is
pl:articularly good; it 1s either very rocky or flat and wot; the best of the land is not
there.

Q. What is the difference in the construction of tho southerly line as compared
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with the locatod line from Keewntin to the Red River ?—You avoid some of tho
rough country on the southc:ly line as far as length is concerned, but not in magni-
tude. It increases in magnitudo as you go south.

By the 1ton. Mr. Haythorne :—

Q. Then as to saving in cost of construction, you would make nothing by
adopting the southorn route 7—No, the cost would bo greater on the southern %ine,
and for that 1eason we fell back on the northorn line.

By the Hon. Mr. Macpherson : —
Q. Is the country adjacont to the located line better adapted for settloment than
the country along the southern line 7—I fancy there is not much difference. I have
one over tho country on tho southern line, and there is a great deal of it vough land.
he country south of the located line is much better than it is to the north,
By the Hon. Mr. Scott : —

Q. What is the character of the country along the Winnipeg River?—It is not
veory good land,

By the Hon, Mr. Macpherson :—

Q. Ts not your information of that country all obtained from your assistants 2—
I havo gono through the country mywelf, and from Winnipeg west, but in a hasty
way, and | must rely for information on my assistants.

(Mr. Fleming here submitted a map of the North-West Territorios, showing the
fortilo belt as detined in Hind's report, and extended by himself from intormation
obtained by the Pacific Railway explorations to prove that the line as located from
Keewatin west to the Rocky Mountaina passes noarer the centre of the fortile belt
than if it had been located further south via Winnipeg, south of Lake Manitoba, and
thence by the Little Saskatchewan south of the cart trail.)

Q. Now, we desire to get tho best lino from Keewatin west-—not only the route
for a railway, but the best country to pass through; and we think it would be doing
nothing more than justice to the pionoccrs of that territory, if 1t can be done without
serious loss or additional expense, to have a line surveyed south of Lake Manitoba ?
—-I have no doubt your view is perfectly correct, as far as that point is concerned.
It would go through a vory fine country from Winnipog nearly as far as Fort Ellice, but
beyond that you would have to pass through land not very good-—indced some of it
very bad—-nnd if you attompt to build a road on that hine, you will find difiiculties
far greator and increase the length of the line, 1 look upon the line passing through
the Narrows of Lake Manitoba as being of very great importance, as it taps the
wooded country that is so necessary to supply fuel and timber. 1f the southern
line wore adopted, the road would have to pass through a country destitute of timber.,
When 1 first began this survey I studied the reports of' scientific oxplorers that pre-
ceded me, such as Pelessior and Ilind, and 1 made up my mind from them to seck for
& line exuctly on the route you advocate, running south of Lake Manitoba towards
Fort Ellice, und in that direction. We made explorations with that object in viow,
but we found the difficulties wore too serious and we got into a country that was not
desirable. 1 then had euquiries made 1in another direction, so as to obviste these
difficultios; but we found that we could got through by Swan River valley to the
wost side of Lako Winnipogoosis, and thenco south-casterly botween Lake gl:mimba
and the Riding Mountains.  In that dircction wo would obtain a line for a railwa
easy of construction and passing through a country in some places well wooded,
which 1 consider u very important consideration. On further investigation I found
we could savo a considerable distance by crossing the Narrows ol Lake Manitoba, A
survoy was made in that direction, and it was found that between a point called
Northceote on tho map and Solkirk at Red River, almost an nir-line could be hald with
works of construction of an extromely light charactor. Of course, the crossing of the
lake at the Narrows would bo somewhat heavy, but nothing to be compared with the
saving in distance to be effected. These aro, in rough, the steps that guided me in
gotting this location. I can readily understand membors thinking that wo arrived
at it in a haphazard way, but wo did not; wo arrived at it step by step, and we have
adopted tho best line, having the interests of the wholo country in view.
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By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :—

Q. Do you believe that the located line from Koewatin to Caerlaverock is really
shorter than a line further south ?—My impression is it is considerably shorter.

Q. How much shorter ?—1I really cannot say, not knowing where the difficulties
are. l:is not fair, nor is it correct, to measure an air line on the map, and then
compai o it with the located line, I have no doubt that the located. line would be
found rhiorter from Keowatin to Caerlaverock than the line proposed by Mr. Jarvis.

Q. Why was Selkirk tixed upon as the crossing point on Red River ?—Afler
making inquiries, we found that the country was occasionally flooded with water in
the neighbourhoodjof Winnipeg, and for many miles around, but it had nover been
known to be flooded in the neighbourhood of Selkirk in the memory of man. The
city of Winnipeg is situated in a locality that is occasionally one vast sheet of water,
. probably ten or twelve miles broad, and we do not know but that it may recur any
spring.
P 5 How long is it since that has happened ?—I think there is # gentloman here
whe has scon it on two occasions. It was flooded in that way I think in 1852 and in
1861,

By the T Hon. Mr. Wilmot : —

Q. What is the difference in elovatiqn between Selkirk and Winnipeg ?—You
will find from the best sources that the country in the immeodiate neighbourhood of
Selkirk has never beon known to have been flooded, and that is one of the chief
reasons why it was sclected as the crossing point.

Q. Was it selected on your recommendation ?—Yes, it was,

Q. Wouldit bo a very sorious undertaking to survey a line through the countr
Arom Keewatin, south of Lake Manitoba, and west to Caerlaverock crossing the Little
Saskatchewan at nbout 12 miles south of the cart trail, and uniting with the located
line at or about Cuerlaverock ?—It could easily be done in ono season by two parties,
and it would not be very expensive.

By the Hon. Mr. Haythorne :-~-

Q. Tt haa been stated that wide reserves which have been made for roads in the
‘Provinco of Manitoba could be utilized for right of way for the railway ; could that
be done ?--It might be done if the settlers would concur in it, but it could have
been done easier bofore the country was settled and before the settlers acquired
rights.

8 Q. What would be the cost of surveying a line of railway from Winnipeg west
through Manitoba ?---I could not say.

I wish to mention that a member of this Committee stated on a former occasion
that a boat was taken through Mossy Portage from Cedar Lake to Lako Win-
nipegoosis; and 1 said on that occasion, that I did not think it could

sibly be done without dragging it up forty feet of an elevation. From diagram
0. 11, of my report of 1874, it will be seen that the elovation is ninety-one feet, so
that the boat would have to be dragged over that height instead of floated over the

portage,
By the Hon. Mr. Sutherland :-- :
Q. Who took that level ?—AMr. Bender took it, I think.
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ADDENDA

TO MR. FLEMING'S BVIDENOR.
Replies to Questions by the Hom. Mr. Aikins.

The distance, as measured on the map, from Selkirk to the Point A on the Little
Saskatchewan, thence direct to the intersection of Shell River with the River Assinni-
boine, thence direct to Caerlaverook, is about 508 miles. This is the length of air
linos between the points referred to.

It is not probable that a line for a railway of any description could be had on the
air lines, on account of the difficulties which present themselves, and which are
alluded to in my letter to the Chairman of the Committee (24th April, 1877). I
have no doubt whatever that before a line could be found, if at all, within a reason-
able expenditure, it would have to curve and twist down and up the sides of the dee
valleys on heavy grudients, thus considerably increasing the length above atated.
The distance by the located line between Selkirk and Caerlaverock is 503 miles.

The following letter was submitted to the Committee by the Chairman, subse-
quent to the evidence being taken :—

CANADIAN Pacirrc RaILway,
Orriok or THE ENGINRER-IN-CHIBYF,
Orrawa, 24th April, 1877,

The Hon. M. A. GirARD, Chairman Committee on the routo of the Canadian Pacific
Railway from Keewatin, westward.

Sir,—Having given some evidence before the Committee, of which you are
Chairman, I think it i8 my duty, as a public officer, to ask perminsion to give some
fuller explanation on the subject than I may have done in the evidence which has
been presented to your Committes, and which, from the manner in which it was
elicited, must necessarily appear disjointed and imperfeot.

There seoms to be an impression,—1st. That the Railway line should run in &
more direct course from the point designated Keewatin, to the point designated
Caerlaverock on the map. The first is at the outlet of Lake of theWoods ; the second
is near the head of the North Saskatchewan.,

2nd. That the line betwoen these extreme points should rather have bended
southerly from a direct course, than northerly as shown on the map.

8rd. That the line should have orossed the Red River at Fort Garry, or at some
point not far from Winnipeg, instead of at the point designated Selkirk.

4th. That the line should have followed a course as nearly due west as practic-
able, from Fort Garry until it reached the neighborhood of Fort Ellice and thence
turned north-westward towards Caerlaverock.

These impressions appearing to prevail; it is propor that I should endeavour to
explain why 1 have been led to favour another route.

When the duty of conducting the survoy was intrusted to me in the sprin‘i; of
1871, the first views which I formed were precisely similar to those now held by
membors of the Committee. I sent out in that year an exploring expedition to
make & general examination of the country. The examination was made by Mr.
Frank Moberly, Mr. Ermatinger, Mr. Nicol and Mr. Horetzky.

At tho close of the year it was reported to me as follows :-—

“ From Fort Garry to third crossing White Mud River (Palestine), a distance of
96 miles, the ocountry is a perfectly even prairie with no large streams or gullios;
soil riolh, olay and clay loam ; there is sgme fine oak, elm, maple and poplar,
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“From third crossing of Whitoe Mud to the Little Saskatchewan, a distanco of
49 miles, the rise to second prairie steppe (or Riding Mountains) is made; the
country is very much broken by sand and gravel ridges, and is thickly wooded with
small poplar.” :

“The Little Saskatchewan Valley is the first obstacle -of any importance; it is
5,000 feet wide, 184 fest deep, and has no lateral valleys of any length."”

“ From Little Saskatchewan to Bird Tail Creeg, a distance of 58 miles, the
country is rather rolling, with small alkaline Ponds in hollows ; soil, gravelly.”

“ The valley of Bird Tail Creek is 3,400 feet wide and 140 feet deep; it also has
lateral gullies.” '

“ From Bird Tail Creek to Shell River, a distance of 38 miles, the country is
rolling, getting rougher as you go back from the Assinniboino; there arealso great
numbers of small lakes and ponds, plenty of small poplar; soil, clay and gravel.
The valley of Shell River is 3,700 feet wide and is 284 feet in depth, and would be
very diffioult to cross.” )

* * * %

“The country from White Mud River to Fort Pelly is not favorable for settle-
ment, the soil being generally light, a good deal of the water alkaline; summer
frosts frequent.”

*From Fort Pelly to South Saskatchewan, a distance of 226 miles, the country
is rather rolling until we approach the river, where for twenty-five or thirty miles
8 succeasion of ridges rise to nbout 80 or 100 feet; but these have vasy slopes and
numbers of openings. On this part of the line we passed several large lakes, the
largest being Quill Lake, which is from thirty to thirty-five miles in length; and the
wator is 80 alkaline as to be unfit for use. Soil is principally clay and sandy loam,
with great numbers of boulders; the water in all the running streams is invariably
fresh and good ; very little timber.”

“ A comparatively easy crossing of the South Saskatchewan was found at lat.
52° 22’ 12”; at this point the approach to the river is easy, and from 50 to 60 feet
above the level of tﬁe water, which at mid-stream was about ten feet deep. The
bridges will probably require to be about 1,400 feet long; banks and bottom are
sand mixed with iarge gravel and boulders.”

* % * * *

“ Mr. Ermatinger’s examination from Touchwood Hills to Fort Ellice and Souris
River, shewed that the bridging of all the strearas in that direction would be very
great, and there would be no a vantage guined by carrying tho railway along the
general direction of the Assinniboine.”

‘ Genorally speaking, the country exteuding from about Fort Pelly by Souris
River and between the lgiding Mountains and Lake Manitoba, to Prairie Portage
nemi Fort Garry, is, for the most part, well wooded and the soil of oxcellent

uality.”
4 “?I'Iaving now comploted & general oxamination of the several routes indicated
by you, I am satisfled, from what I have seun and learned, that the most eligible
route for a railway will be found to vxtend from Fort (‘mrri' to the north of Duck
Mountains, passinf; between the Thunder and Porcupine Hills, orossing the South
Saskatchewnn in latitude 52 © 22' 12"
* ® * *

“From the level of Fort Peliy there is no dificulty in descending bg the valley
of Swan River to the low ground east of the Duck Mountains. From Swan River
the country lyinf; north of Duck and Riding Mountains was found, on examination,
to be nearly level, thickly wooded with spruce, poplar and some maple; a few small
lakes and marshes were also found; soil, sanf; loam, and admirably fitted for
farming.” x N

x *

In the year 1872, I made a personal reconnoissance of the country, and satisfied
mysolt that the difficulties to be mot on the route I had previously ho to find
eligiblo, were of a serious character; that tho fine rich soil first seen in Manitoba
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terminated not far from Fort Ellice, and that to carry the lino thence northwesterl
would be to pass out of the leading direction of the fertile belt, and avoid muo
good land elsewhere found.

In the years 1873 and 1874, further examinations were made, an outline of which
is given in my report of this year, puges 38, 39 and 40, and in Appendix page 185.

In the years 1875 and 1876, other surveys were made, during which the countr;
embraced within the limits of the enquiry of the Committee, was g‘eqnently traversed.
Mr. H. A. F. Macleod, one of the B?ngineors so engaged, examined the river valley,
which would require to be crossed on the route now indicated, but at othor points
than those which Mr. Moberly roported in, with the following result :—

“The first engineerinﬁ difficulty encountered in running a line either from
Selkirk or Winnipeg, is the crossing of the Little Saskmtchewan, which, at the Fort
Ellice cart trail, is at least half a mile wide and 200 feet deep.”

“Bird Tail Creek is the next, the valley of which at the cart trail is half a mile
wide and 120 feet deep.”

“Snake Creek is another deep valley, six miles to the east of Eilice, its depth is
about 100 feet and a quarter of & mile wide.” .

“The valley of the Assinniboine at Ellice is about one mile wide, and 220 foet
deop ; the river, 200 feet wide, would require a waterway of 300 feet."

“The Qu'Appelle Valley is also about one mile wide and 220 feet deep; near
Eliice and the river 120 feet wide would require waterway of 200 feet.

20 £ “Cut Arm COreek is about a quarter of a mile wide and 100 feet deep ; stream
oot.

“On the Mounted Police trail from Shoal Lake, which joins the Ellice and Pell
trail nearly opposite Sholl River, the crossing of Bird-Tail Creek is about one mile
wide and 200 feet det;p, with high hilly country on each side.

t The orossing of the Assinniboine at Sh:lvl River is about one mile wide and 370
feet deep. The country to the east rises to a height of 800 foet above the river, along
the trail leading to Shoal Lake.

“The soil between Winnipeg and White Mud River is very good, particularly
near Winnipeg and near Portage La Prairie. There are also considerable tracts of
marshy ground interspersed with lakes and ponds.

. #To the west of White Mud River the soil is not so good, and marshes are more
uent.”
l::l “Near the Little Saskatchewan the soil is poor, hilly, with numerous small
08.”

“ Betwoen the Little Saskatchewan and Ellice the soil is poor, and becomes very
stony to the west of Bird Tail Creek.” '

“ About Ellice and the valley of the Qu’Appelle the soil is poor and sandy and
ocontinues so across the plaina to Cut Arm Creek. On the west of this there is some
gogd land, but generally across the Pheasant Hill Plains the soil is poor, gravelly,
and stony.”

u Th); soil in the Touchwood Hills is generally light, with some ﬂgood intervals,
in the valleys. They rise in ridges of considerable height and fall o very abruptly
on the west side, to tho level of the Salt Plains.” ,

“ The soil on the Salt Plains is enerallgr r, but improves to the north-west ”

« Between the Salt Plains and the Sout g::katohewan, there is a considerable
extent of hilly country, poor soil, with occasional intervals of land.”

“ The lovated line is deflected to the north, to pass those hills.”

These reports were made by gentlemen who had been specially intrusted at
differe..t times with the duty of examining the country in order to gain information
which would enable us to find the beat goeaiblo location for the Railway.

The information was confirmed by a general reconnaisssnce which I made
personally in a journey through the country. If the statements made respecti
the difficulties which are met on the southern route require further confirmation,
would wish to lay before the Committee the results of a fourth independent survey.
I have before me a profile from actual zx;aauremenu and levels, dated 13th May,
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1876, made by Montague Aldous,in connection with the work of the Assistant Surveyor
General, Mr. Lindsay Russell. This profile extends from the south end of Lake
Manitoba westward by Fort Ellice, to a point on the 102nd meridian to the west of
Rivor Assinniboine, and thence north to the 8th Base line. It crosses several of the
deep valleys already alluded to, but at points on some of them, if not on all, not
previously examined.

It will be quite sufficient to state the extreme width and depth of some of the
valleys delineated on this profile—on a stretch of less than 150 miles.

1. Ravine, 1 milewide 60 feet deep.
2. [{4 €« 70 {3
8. Little Saskatchewan, «“ 190 «
4. Bird River Creek, = “ 176«
5. Ravine, ! “ 100 «
6. Snake Creek, “ 160 «
7. Ravine, « 130 «
8. Assinniboine, « 220 «
9. Ravine, . “ 130 «
10‘ 113 {3 90 [13
11. {3 {3 60 {3
12. [{ {3 50 {3
13. {3 [ 290 €«
14- €« {4 240 143
15. Qu'Appelle, 2 w480 ¢
16. Ravine “ 50 «
17. Little Cut Arm, « 130 «

I am quite prepared to admit that a careful survey would probably result in
finding better crossings than the above, perhaps in avoiding some of thom altogether,
but it is perfectly clear that the dimensions of the valleys, established by actual
measurement, are suggestive of works of construction of a really formidable
character, and also gradients which could not be compared with those obtained on
the located line.

I respoctfully submit, the Committoe will now be satisfied that, with the know-
ledge of the facts that I possessed, I would not have been justified in attempting to
locate the railway on the route which I originally projected six years ago, in prefer-
ence to the much more favourable route by the valley of Swan River and the Narrows
of Lake Manitoba.

My first reports on the survey will show that I originally held thut the railway
should cross the Red River at Fort Garry; but enquiries established that the
country in that quarter was liable to be overflowed; that where the town of Winni-
peg is laid out, it has been overflowed three times within the recollection of persons
now living in that neighborhood. On one of these ocoasions it is reported that the
water was some four feet deep above the surface of tho prairio for several miles in
breadth, on each side of the site of the Town of Winnipog, and for many miles north
and south of it.

It was found that at the point now designated Selkirk, tbe banks of the river
had never been known to be overflowed, and as at that place the Government
controled a block of land of some 600 acres, suitablo for a town plot, it was decided
to select that point for crossing the river.

1 have alrcady stated that, in order to avoid the heavy work and the equally
heavy gradients which would nocessarily be involved in orossing the deep and wide
valloys on the route first projected, it was deemed advisablo to descond from the
higher prairie level, west of Fort f’elly. by the valley of Swan River. This course
forced us to go round the northern flank of the Riding Mountains, by the detour
shown on the map at “ Northoote.”

Thus between Keewatin and Caerlaverock, two main objective points were
eatablished, vis: at Selkirk and at Northcote; and it became necoessary to conneoct
thesc several points by the most direct lig;.
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_ We have now tho railway loented from Keewatin to Caerlaverock, via Selkirk and
Northeote, or: what, 1 have reason to think, is the best genoral routo that can be had.
The works of coustruction aro, on an averagoe, light, and the gradients are so casy
that the cost of transportation will, on the completion of the railway, be reduced to
& minimum,

My report of this year will show that the highest gradients asconding eastward
will on)yy be half as steep as tho ruling maximum gradients on the Grand Trunk. With
regard to the great importance of this feature, I would wish to refer to my last
report, pagos 79, 80, 83 and 84. T doubt if' it would be possible at any reasonable
expense, to secure similar gradionts on the more southern route originally projected.

Betwoen Selkirk und Livingstone, tho located line passes through a considerable
extent of forest lund, This is deemed of nolittlo importance,in viow of the supply which
will thus be rendered accessible for building, fencing and for fuel, in the wi({e treeless
prairies ont othor sections of the line. The railway will also be in & more sheltered
position for so much of' its course during the winter months.

The other line projected would tap no valuable groves of timber, and if the
railway was established on it, this important advantago would be lost,

~If the railway was dosigned to benetit Manitobu alone, and be extended no
further than that Province, 1 admit that its location might be materially moditied ;
but it has other purposes to serve—amongst others, the settlement of lands vastly
more oxtensive than Manitoba. I respectfully submit that the location adopted wiil
offoct this object better than any other line that I am aware of.  The map [ prepared
for the inspection of the Committee, must have sati~fied thoke who examined it, that
the located line, although it doos not go throngh the middle of Manitoba, runs across
a portion of that Province, and passes in a central direction through the great body
of the fortile tracts in tho Novrth-West Territories. ' )

On the located line, véa Selkirk and Northcote, about $481,147 have boen
expended on construction—§165,910 to the west of Selkirk and $315,237 to tho east
of that point—and heavy contracts have boon let, 50 that it would not be possible
now to chango tho focation without serious loss and difficulty..

I shall not trouble you with any further information ; I may, however,be permitted
to remark that I think it is alike duo to the Government and to myself that I should
ask pormission to submit thuse explanations as a portion of my evidence beforo your
Committee. ThoGovernmoent was good enough to intrust to mo the duty and respon-
sibility of finding tho bost location for the Railway—through the vast territory
through which it is projected, I felt from the very first that it was desirable to secure,
if possible, a line running as much a8 could be through the centro of Manitoba, but, -
the information which 1 obtained respecting the country west of Manitoba was not
favorable, 1 was called upon, howover, to establish the location without delay in
order that tho telograph might be erected in the proper place. 1 folt that nothing
would justify me in locating the line where difficulties so sorious were known to exist ;
and that it would be & wasto of time and mounoy to make any further preliminary
surveys in that direction. Action of some kind was called for—with the information
I possessed I adopted the only course opon, and procceded to locate the work on the
route shown on the map. A ronto which, in most essential particulars, is oxtremely
favorablo for the trunk line of the Pacific Railway system. )

My opinion has always been that the main trunk line should be loeated on the
shortest and best routo, leaving isolated localities to be sorved by branches, whenp-
ever the trafic may justify their construction In courre of time I fool assured that
many branches will bo called for, and no doubt one of them will at an early day be
projected to sorve the more distant sections of Manitoba. :

I have tho honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Signed) SANDFORD FLEMING.
1—5 . Engineer-in-Chief.
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REPORT.

o cm———

Tne SENATE
CoMuITTEE Roo,
27th April, 1877,

The Seleot Committee appointed to inquire into the causes of the dismissal of
Pierre Coté, Pierre Charbonneau and others, by the Montreal Harbour Commissioners,
or by their employeos, with power to send for persons, papers and records, and to
report from time to time, and to examine witnesses on oath, and authorized to
inquire into all the complaints, accusations, &c., against the said Montreal Harbour
Commissioners contained in the various documents which have already been laid
before this House, in so far as they relate to the cases of Pierre Cdté and Pierre
Charbonneau and others, have the honour to present what follows as their roport.

In conformity with the orders of referenco of your Honourable House of the
tonth and eighteenth days of April instant, your Committee examined on oath
several of the witnesses brought before thom by the Petitioners and by the Montroal
Harbour Comminssioners. The evidenco of the said witnesses was taken down in
writing, and is hereto annexed, with the documents produced before your Committee.

Tge Session boing on the point of terminating, and the time necessary for
completing the inquiry commenced being insufficient, your Committee has thought
it right to suspend the examination of witnesses for the present Session.

our Committee recommond that this report, tho evidence and the documents
produced before tho Committee, be printed for the use of Members.

All which is respectfully submitted.

J B, GUEVREMONT,
Chairman.

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE.
PRESENT:
The Hohorable Mr. GutvaeMoNT, Chairman.

The Honorable Messiours

Bellorose, Ferrier,
Chafters, Phquet,
Chapais, Penny.

Depositions of the Witnesses called on behalf of the Petitioners.

Pixrre CoT#, being sworn and oxamined, answers as follows :—

I am o builder by trade. I began to work at the ago of sixteen, and [ have
aotod as a conductor of work sinco I was twenty-two. I am now sixty years of age.
1 worked on vessels from the age of twenty-two, under Captain Vaughaun and Captain
Boyd, alternately us foreman and as a joiner on stcamboats; I made the moulds, ard
models and did tho joinor's work, and I superintended and worked at the p]acing of
tho engines. '

About 1839, Captain Vaughan, wishing to build a largo vessel, brought to Sorel,
Mr. Daniel MoCarth{, who was a shipbuilder by trade, and put him in charge of his
work-yard. I then left Captain Vaughan und continued to exercise my calling. I

2—1
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suffered in my health for about three years. After my recovery, I was put in charge
of the joiner's work of the old Quebec. After that boat had been built, I remained in
the employ of the Company of the People’s line for two or three years. About 1850
or 1851, I built a steamboat, the Orleans, in the River Nicolet, for Beauchemin &
Company. In the following, as well as I can recollect, I built a screw steamer, the
Nicolet, at Nicolet, for Macdonald & Company. About 1857, I built, at Sorel, the
British America, a steamboat which s still in existence, At St. Piérre les Beoguets, 1
built the steamer Doré, for Cai)tain Chayer. In the building of all these vessels I
did everything, including the placing of the machinery.

After that I built a sail-boat for Mr. Tranchemontagne. I also did the
joiner’s work on the St. Piérre, a boat belonging to the Harbour Commissioners. I also
placed the engines in the steamer St. Lawrence for the Harbour Commissioners. .

After the fire on board of the St Piérre, I placed the machinery in her, under
Mr, Burgess's directions, I raised a tow-boat, the Unity, a dredge, and & barge, used
a: a forge, under Captain Armstrong's orders. The barge was sunk in forty-four feet
of water.

About twenty-two or twenty-three yoars ago, the wharf at Port St. Francis was
cairied away by ice. During the previous ten years it had suffered evory spring,
had sometimes been carried away ; and had then been rebuilt at great expense. One
of the Trinity House beacons, which was near the wharf, had beon carried away at
the same time, and it had been found necessary to oroct another beacon about a
mile lower down. I got tho contract for rebuilding the wharf. I rebuilt it on a

. different plan. It bas remained in its place over since, and it has been found possi-
sible to rostore the beacon to its old plauce. I algo re-built the Richelieu’s Company's
wharf at Three Rivers in such a way that it has not been carried away t;y ico; and 1
lengthened the same Company's wharf at Borel, about two hundred feet. I also
built a wharf more than four hundred feet long for Précourt & Company, at Sorel.
At different times I havo done other work of the same kind, but of less importance
than the abave.

In 1868, I went to tho United States, where I remained for five or six years.
There I was employed continually. At Fall River I was employed as head Engineer
in charge of the steam ongine in an oil mill. At Lowell I was employed in making
and putting up engines, water wheels of mills and all sorts of machinery. Havin
received, in 1&74, otters from Canada asking mo to return, and offering me work,%
returned in the month of June to see what chanco I would have. After my arrival
at my own houso in Sorel, I met Captain Charles Armstrong, who advised me to
remain, saying : “The Harbour works are about to bogin, you had better remain .
here, and you will have work.” In the beginning of November, Mr. Young came
down to Sorel, and sent me word to come and see him in Mr. McCarthy's work-yard.
When I went there, he asked me if I would be willing to take the charge or general su-
perintendence of the Montrea! Harbour Commissioner’s work-yard at Sorel, and if so,
what were the lowest wages I would ask—-saying that the work would last at least
four or five years, I tolvf him that I would accept eighty dollars a month, consider-
ing the length of tho engagemont. Thereupon he told me that he would submit my
offer to the Commissioners und let me know their decision. On the following Thurs-
day Mr. McCarthy sent for me and read me a telegram from the Harbour (lommis-
sioners, informing me that my offer was accepted, and telling me to go to work—and
I began to work in the yard immediately, on that day, the 12th November, 1874, In
the evening of that day I refused an offer of four dollars a day for work in the United
States. A month later, Mr. Young came down to Sorel, and complimented me, say-
ing that he was perfeot‘y satisfied with my management. Some days after I bogan
to work, Albert Paulet, previously aforeman under Mr. McCarthy, eame and asked
me for work. Itold him that I would give him somo. Thereupon he asked mo
whether Mr. John McCarthy had control over me, and said that if such was the case
he (Paulet) would have no chance, because he had given cvidenco in court against
the Messrs. McCarthy, and they had a grudgo against him. I told him that Mr. Mo-
Carthy had no control over me, and that I did not think they would do anything to
injure him, and then I engageci him.

4
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_ A foew days after that, Captain Armstrong having como into the work-yard
office, met Mr. John McCarthy there. Captain Armstrong came to mo and said tome :
“ Coté, Mr. McCarthy says that you ought to discharge that Paulet, bocause he is a
“ dangorous man; that wherever ho goos there is trouble; that ho does not descrve
“to walk on an honost man’s ground.” But ho added that I might keep him on
if he suited me, and that no notice need bo taken of what John McCarthy might
88y,
y John McCarthy was appointod during the first days of January, 1875. Some
days after ho mot Colbert Paulet. It was tho first time they spoko to each other
after Paulet had begun to work in the yard. Paulet told me soveral times that Mr.
MoCarthy kopt at a distance in order to avoid meeting him.

Somo time after I perceived that Paulet was Mr. John McCarthy’s confidentiad
man. If he had any order to give, or any advice to ask, it was always to Paulet that.
he addressed himself, instead of addressing himself to me, as before. Several men in.
tho work-yard told me that something was going on betwoen Paulet aud John Mec-
Carthy, and that Paulet was cutting the grass under my feet.

In tho beginning of February I received the letter markoed “ B” informing me
of tho reduction of my wages. 1 answered that letter by the letter marked “C"” in
which I refused to accept that change. At the end of February I received another
lotter from the Commission, informing me that it was thought I should no longer be
wanted after the first of May. This letter is marked ¢ D.”  On second of June, Col-
bert Paulet gave evidence for the second time in a case in which the Messrs. MoCar-
thy were defendants, as appears by the certificate of the Clerk of the Superior Court
in the District of Richelieu, marked “F.” This evidonco was exactly the opposite of
that which he had given the year before, entirely in favour of the McCarthys, as
appears by the oxtracts from the cases of the two parties, which I now produce.

About the 20th of June Mr. McCarthy came and told me that he was going to
Montreal to hand in his resignation, and said that he did not wish to have anything:
more to do with the work-yard. Ho returned from Montroal and went on with his
work as before, and showed himself more severo than ever towards me, and scemed
much loss satisfied with me than before. Threo or four days after, Mr. Kennedy
came to Sorel and told me to loave tho work-yard at the end of the month (June), for
he had no more need of my services. I asked him for the reason of my dismissal.” He
told me that it was because two men could not be paid o high a prioe for the same work.
Ithen asked him why Mr. McCarthy came and told mo that he was going to Montreal
to hand in his resignation, and why he (Mr. Kennedy) now came and told me that I
was dismissed. Ho answered me: “That is what he said, but I should much like to
soe him do it.” I told him I did not understand how things went, and that I wished
to know if any fault was found with me, and to have an explanation of what all this
meant, and that there was evidently something hidden. The only answor he made to
me was: “ We do it because we please.” I then answered him that I would not go until
I received an order from the Commissioners, and my wages were paid to mo as had
been agreed when I was engaged. Then he told me to take things quietly ; that he
thought I had been ill-treated ; that I had botter leave the work- at the end of
the month, and that then he would perhaps be able to give me a better situation. As
to my wages ho said he would see that I was paid; that “ a bargain was a bargain,”
those were his very words. Upon that I decided to leave the work-yard. Towards
the end of July, not receiving any news of the balance of my wages, I went to see &
lawyer about sueing the Commissioners. My lawyer wrote a lottor to them. This
letter was not answered, but some days after Mr. Armstrong showod me a tel
from Mr. Kennedy, offering me three dollars a day if I would go and work in Mon-
treal. I nccepted that offer, by Captain Armstrong’s advice, and went to Montroal
about the 18th of August, and worked there until about the end of Novembeor, when
the navigation olos Mr. Kennedy never complained to me either of the quantity
or of the quality of the work, either at Montreal or at Sorel; on the contrary, when 1
remarkod to him once at Montreal, on planting some posts, that the work went
slowly, and that it was very difficult, ho said to mo, as if to encourage me, that when

5
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I turned the corner it would go better, and that I ought not to talk of stopping, be-
cauzo the work had to bo done. That was the only time he ever said a word to mo
about my work. When he came to look at me working he always seemed
satisfiod. -

At Sorel I kept the mon’s time and certified their accounts; and no account was
paid without having been certified by me; all that was wanted for the work-yard was
bought by me.

Before being reconciled with Paulet, John McCarthy always refused to have
anything to do with the hiring or the direction of the men, or any other thing than
the inspoction of the work. After his reconciliation with Paulot, he began to meddle
with things, telling me that he did so for the purpose of helping me, und he took it
upon himself to deprive me of my work and to give it to difforent persons—thus he
took away from me, one by one, all my duties, and when none remained to mo the
Commissionors come and reduced my pay, and then dismissed me, saying that there
was no need of two men to do the samo worlk, ‘

1 can say that Mr. John McCarthy is not so au fait as I am with respect to the
thingr]; he had to apply himself to in the work-yard. His knowledge of mechanios is
very limited.

On the last day of March last, one of tho persons employed by the Commissioners,
named Sigman, having maid to Paulet that he (Paulet) was accused, in a newspaper,
of baving sworn falsely in ordor to get his place, John McCarthy turned him out of

: go?rs. igman mado that remark on a Saturday and was dismissed on the Monday
ollowing. '

I have known Pierre Charbonneau for forty yoars. In 1848 he took the place or
mate on board of the Steamer Quebec, and he made one of the best of namos for him-
self, having gained the respect and affection of all those whom he had under his
orders, and the esteem of his suporiors. To my own knowledge he saved, at the risk
of his own life, the lives of four or five drowning persons.

At tho time when Captain Bell had chargo of the works for the doepeningv:f
Lake Saint Peter, Charbonneau was captain of one of the Steamers. He has also been
in charge of a dredge in tho harbour of Montreal, under this same Captain Bell. I
have seen him at work mysolf, and I can say that he did his work as well as it was
possible to do it. In 1875 and 1876 he had chargo of a dredge, and I have never heard

- of :m{ complaint n%uinst him.

know M. P. Boaulac, the younger who was captain of a dredge belonging to the
commission in 1876. I have known him for more than twenty-eight years. He has
boen in my sorvice almost continually for nearly sixteen years past. He has always
done his work in the most satisfactory way. He is an honest man and a good work-
man. Never, since he has been working for me, have I seenhim to be under tho
influence of intoxicating liquor. I know him to bo & very sober man. He is in my
sorvico at this moment. I bave left him at Sorol in charge of my work as foroman
on a steamboat that I am building for Captain Duval, now captain of the Zrois-
Riviéres, belonging to the Richeliou Company.

I know Mr. Sigman, who was captain o{ a drodgo in 1873. [ have kanown him

from his childhood.” He has always boon very hard-working. I know that he isa

seaman. Ho was employed by Mr. Champagno for four or five years beforo 1875,
in ruisinﬁeuols, engines, anchors, &c. Ho worked formerly on board of dredges.
He may bo said to have been brought up in Mossrs. McOarthy's work-yard. From
what I know of him I think that ho is ablo to manago a dredge at loast us well as his
successor, who was his approntice. Sigman is known to be a peaceable mau, and to
my knowledge I may say that I have novor scen or heard any thing of a nature to
give me any other opinion of him, ‘

Pierro Hurteau, was oaptaia of o dredge in 1875. 1Ic had beon for two or three
sensons one of tho crow of dredges under Captain Bell. He also worked on board of
ﬂoating forges on Lake St. Peter for nearly three or four yoars. About 1865 he set
up on his own account with & sail-boat, and carried on navigation until 1874. In 187,

- he was appoinced captain of a drodge.
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~ In my opinion these three captains were as capable as, and gerhaps moro capable,
than the engineers who havo taken their places in the command of dredges.

PIERRE COTE.

Moise BeAuoHEMIN, boing sworn and examined, answors as follows : —

1 am an engine-buildor and a manufacturer. I lived formerly at Ste. Monique, in
the County of Nicolet, I have been settied for twenty-one years in Sorel, where I am
at the head of o manufacturing house, under the name of Benuchemin & Son. My son
and I are the propriotors. We manufacture all sorts of agricultural machinoes, mowers,
thrashing mills, ongines for wator-works, &c. We made the pumps and engines for the
wator-works at Sorel and the water-works atThree-Rivers. We also build stationary
engines of all sorts and steamboat engines. We havo at present two onginesin hand,
one for the Mossrs. Gillespio & Maxwell, of Cornwall, and the other for a ferry boat
intonded to ply at Throe Rivors. We also make all the castings for flour mills and
saw mills. 'Wo have made ropairs to the dredges belonging to the Harbour Commie-
i’,i°°§“ dof Montreal. Wo constantly omploy fifty or sixty men, sometimes even a

undred.

I have known M. Pierrve Coté for twenty-three or twenty-four years. Mr. Coté
built the stoamboat Orleans for me. He worked vory fast nnd very well. Mr. Coté
worked for me for two yoars at different times. He made models for machinery. He
placed the machinery, by order, in the steamboat La Riviére du Leup. He also built
a wharf for me about eloven years ago. He fulfilled his contract vory well. I havo
nevor known of his having any diﬂleulcﬁ with poople who ems)loyod him. Captain
Duval told mo that he liked to omBloy r. Pierre Coté as well as anybody-—that he
always worked well whether he & uval) was present or not. I employ him at present.
In 1855 or 1886 the Richelieu Company werc obliged to reset the engines of tho

Victoria and Napoleon, their two principal stoamboats, because they had boen badly
ut in by Messrs. Couture and Burgess. The work was given to Mr, Coté I heard
r. Sincennes, of the Richelieu Company, say afterwards that he was very happy to

get a man liko Mr. Coté to do over again work that had been 8o badly done in %on-
treal. Mr. Coté built & steamboat, the British America, for Mesars. Pierce and Chate-
laine, and placed cngines in hor. Mr. Pierce told me that he was very well satisfied
with him. ~ Tho general opinion among persons who have mechanical engineering
work to be doao is that Mr. Coté is one of tho bost men who can be employed for that
kind of work. That is my opinion also. When the engine was to bo placed in the
British America, one of the propriotors, Mr. Chatelaine, began placing it himself, but
he could not succeed, on account of some defect in its construction. Mr. Coté was
employed, and he remedied the dofect and placed the engine well. Yostorday Captain
Monarque, of the British America, told mo that he wished to have that boat rebuilt,
and that he wished to have for that work the man who built her moro than twenty
yoars ago, that is tosay, Mr. Coté. Mr. Coté is a sober and honest man, and one who is
respected by all, and, to my knowledge, ho has never had any difficulty with any one.
I have known the two Messrs. McCarthy, of Sorcl, for moro than twenty-five yoars.
They kept & shig{bmlding yard. They have left off for six or seven years. I have
always known Mr, Daniel McCarthy as the ono who manngvd tho yard. When I
asked John for wood he always sent mo to Daniel, saying that he did not concern
himself with thoso things. M»r. Daniel McCarthy mada all the models, &o.; Mr. Johu
McCarthy aoted as foreman of the men., As to Johu MocCarthy’s capmio,{{. I do not
know that ho has any. When the Messrs. McCarthy did any work, Mr. Daniel
MoCOnrthy conduoted it and Mr. John worked and carried with tgo mon.

I had knowledé;e of the depositions made by Colbert Paulet in the case of
Guévremont vs, MoCarthy, in the Superior Court, in the District of Richelien. I
knew of them because I had a case in Court at the same time. I know that at one
enguéte sitting Paulet was Didaco Guévremont's witness, and that at the next he had
become the Messrs. McCarthy's witness. I romarked it beoause it was an extraor-
dinary thing.

7
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I know Mr. Charbonneau to bo a good seaman. I havo seen him save a drowning
man at the Richeliou Company’s wharf. He had to dive in ordor to bring him up.
He saved a couple of others, but not to my personal knowledgeo. :

I do not know that Mr. Cdté had a workshop of his own, but I know that he has
contracted for the building of vesscls.

M. BEAUCHEMIN,.

Depositions of Witnesses called on behalf of the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal.

JonN KENNEDY, representing tho Montreal Harbour Commission, being sworn
and examined, answers as follows :—

I have taken communication of the complaint of certain residents of Sorel, against
the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal, signed by Pierre C3té and others.

Tho accusation is refuted in two letters addressed to the Minister of Marine and
Fisheries, and dated the 6th and 7th of April, 1877, I allude to these two lotters as
toa feneral answer, but I can enter into details.

am Chief Engineor to the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal, and I have
charge of all their works. I have no book containing entries of the hiring of Pierre
Cbté, or Pierre Charbonnenu, and of the other men; thore is no such book in exist-
ence that I know of. I have a copy of a letter from Pierre Cbté on the subject of his
engagement. Wo have no general book in which the terms of the hiring of the men
are entered.

I have a lotter from the Secrotary of the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal,
addressed to Pierre Coté, dated the 3rd of February, 1878, informing him of the
decision of the Commissioners to reduce his wages to sixty dollars per month. In a
letter in answer, writton to the Secretary of the Harbour Commissioners, Pierre
Cbté complains of the reduction, and gives the reasons for his complaint. I have
another letter, dated the 18th February, 1875, addressed to Pierre Cbté, by the

. Secretary of the Commissioners, notifying Pierre Cité that his services will not be
uired agg more after tho 1st May, 187?. These are all the papers I have relating
to Pierre Coté’s engagement.

hese letters are marked B, C and D rospectively.)

e was employed liy the month and paid by the month, and no conditions were
made that I know of. I understood that he was engaged by the Honorable John
Young, Chairman of the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal. I cannot say whether
the Chairman informed the Commissioners of Mr, C6té’s appointment.

After his dismissal he claimed a balance of wages, an gave the Commissioners
notice that he would bring an action to recover it. He did not, to my knowledge,
so any farther. I cannot say if the Commissioners made any complaint against

0t by letter. No compluint was made, sinco thero was no person to whom to
complain. His salary was reduced from eighty dollars to sixty dollars per month,
as mentioned in the letter marked B. He protested against tho reduction, and, not
being satisfled, he was discharged.” I do not know if he refused to work at the
.reduced rate, but he did not work heartily under’Mr. McCarthy, who was the super-
intendent of the work-yard. I cannot assert of my own knowledge that he did not
do his work as well after as before the roduction, because I was not then in the
employ of the Harbour Commissioners. I entered the Harbour Commissioners’
service on the 1st May, 1875. :

I saw Mr. Coté working during the month of May, 1875. He was employed
during the summer of 1875, in the Harbour of Montreal, after having been dismissed
at Sorel. He was employed from the middle of August to the end of November of
that year. He roceived three dollars a day. Coté was ongaged by me to work in
the Harbour of Montreal. It may be that a conversation on the subject of the
balance that was due to him took place between Coté and me; but I do not recollect
anything in particular. I was not satisfled with his work in Montreal. He did not
do enough work, considering the number of men he had under his orders. He was
driving in pilos. 8 *
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. Mr. McCarthy was ongaged as Superintendent of the work-yard at Sarel, and
of the vessols composing the Harbour Commissioners’ fleet, about the month of
January, 18756. No one occupied Mr. McCarthy’s position beforo his appointment,
that is to sny, no one, as far as I know, had the same genoral charge. Under his
appointment, he has the genoral charge of the work-yard at Sorel. Ifo ovor-
soes tho men’s work, the repairs of boats, the building of new boats, ote. Ho also
inspects tho different boats composing tho Harbour Commissionere’ fleet at Montroal
as woll as in tho ship channel, when thoso vessels are on service; and he is also in
charge of the repairs to the hulls of boats in Montreal, as in Sorol. When tho Commis-
sioners mako contracts with shipbuilders for the building of Loats he inspects those
works, makes tho plans and specifications, otc. When tho Commissioners buy boats
rendy built, he inspects them and reports. These daties aro fulfilled under my
general superintendence.

Thore wero not four captains of dredging-machinoes dismissed in the spring of
1876 ; but throo captains, whose terms of service had expired in the autumn of 1875,
were-not employed in the spring of 1876. The names of theso captains are Beaulac,
Hurteau and Sigman. I do not remembor what were Colbert Marcotto’'s duties.
Beaulac, Hurteau and Marcotte were hired in the spring of 1875, by some agent of
tho Commissioners, Probubly by Mr. Nish, but I cannot say so positively. Their
employment as captains ended in the antumn, and they were not taken on again in
the spring. I think Sigman and Hurteau asked to be taken on again in the spring,
but 1 do not romember that Beaulac did. I explained to them that the Commis-
sioners were making a change in tho mode of working with some of the dredging-
machines, and that, in consequence, their services would no longer be required. 1
did not offer them situations as mates ut tho same wages. % offerod situations
as mates to Sigman and Hurteau at reduced wagos, I think at forty dollars a month.
As well as I know, these captains had not any experience in the working of these
dredging-machines. The Commissioners deemed it prudent to take three of these
dredging-machines and intrust them to experienced engineors, in the samo manner
as the Commissioners’' dredging-machines are worked in the harbour of Montreal,
and as is the rulo in all the dredging operations which are being executed on this
continent. The change made was judged to bo advantageous, and more work was
done by the dredges in this way. Charbonneau was not ro-employed this sprin;
(1877) for the same roason, his dredging-machine having done an amount of wor
in 1876 that was not quite satisfuctory, less, in fact, than that of any other dredgo
in the ship channol. The place where Charbonneau workod was not the most
difficult one.

No diver was employed in 1875, as well as I can romembor. In 1876 a diver was
omployed the first time to recover the buckets of the drodge managed by Captain
Charbonneau; the second time to recover those of Captain Hunter's dredgo.

When the men arc sent away in the autumn thoir services are considered to bo
completely discontinued, and they have no rights until they are engaged again. In
1876 and 1877 theso engagements wero made in the spring; the men who were not
engnﬁod knew then that they would not be, and they could look for other placoes.

he on'ﬁlineer of tho dredge sends in the returns of the number of scow loads
- dredged. e engineer of the tug which empties the scows, also sends in a return of
the number of scows emptiod from oach dredge. The work on which Coté was
engaged in the Harbour of Montreal, wns oompf:tod about the end of the workin
soason of 1875, His services wore discontinued on the completion of the work.
do not remember of having ever complained to Coté of his manner of working or of
his work. C6té was diemissed at Sorel at the end ef June, 1875, ‘His services wero
more important in winter than in summer in his position of foreman at Sorel. Colbert
Paulet replaced Mr. Coté at Sorel. That is, Paulet is now foreman. Mr. Cdté was
dismissed b{ the Commissioners on their own judgment. Paulet was engaged for his
present duties on the sugﬁeotion of Mr. John McCarthy. The Commissioners give
cousiderable latitudo to Mr. John McCarthy on tho ongagement of his men. The
principal men are engaged by heads of departments, subject to tiie approval of the

9
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Commissioners, and they have direct cognizance of the mattor. The common work-
man and crews aro usually engaged by the officers under whom they sorve, and the
latter are held strictlr rosponei%lo for tho eofficiency of their men. Tho heads of
departmonts are strictly answerable to the Commissioners for the whole force under
their charge, and for the soveral amounts of work performed. The pay list showin
the namos of all employés, occupation and wages and pluce of employment, aro certi-
fied by the different Superintendents, thon by me, and then submitted to tho Financo
Committee of the Commissioners, which meets weekly, and oxamines all pay-lists
bofore paymont. I also make fortnightly reports of work done and classification of
{orces.

Mr. John McCarthy is a ship-builder by profession ; is about sixty yoars of age [
anderstand. Built No. 1 dredge in 1837, “J:ss one of a firm owning a largo estab-
lishment at Sorel. Tho construction of dredges and ship-building waa carried on by
the firm of which Mr. John M¢€arthy was & member.,

The ropairs of dredges and building of vossels, &c., were formerly done by con-
tractors in difforent placos. Since 1874 this work haxs been done in tho Commissionors
ship-yard at Sorel.

K{r. John McCarthy was choson on account of his ability and oxporience in work
of that character,

That establishment at Sorol is considerablo. Tho Commissioners’ fleet is composed
of ovor revonty vessels, costing about seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars
(8760,000), nbout thirty of which uro steam vessels. All impottant ropairs are done
thero. John McCarthy exercisos supervision thore, and reports on repairs to fleet.
Machinory is all repaired there; that is, hoavy repairs. Light ropairs to harbour
machinery in summer are made in Montreal, Scows are built in Sorel. At prosont
& stone lifter is being built there. The forco at Sorel varies from fifteon or twenty
mon in summer to over ono hundred and fifty in winter and spring. All thoso men
beleng to Borel, with very few exceptions. A very large amount of monoy was spont
last %ear in Sorel.

'o my personal knowlodge Mr. John McCarthy has twico offered to resign. e
objected to be in a position subordinate to any other officer.

Mr, MacKenzie has the supervision of ship channel dredges. His salary is twolve
hundred dollars u year.

I have the Lfoneral suporvision over all the worke.

Mr, John McCarthy has a salary of two thousand dollars a year.

My salary in five thousand dollars.

Cross-examined by the Honorable Mr. Guévremont ;-

I was not in the employ of the Commissionors provious to the timo Mr. McCarthy
was appointed. When 1 entored Coté was under Mr. McCartLy. This was on the
1st May, 1875. The Commissioners keep a minuto of the engagement of their prin-
ﬂpa] officers. I havo reason to know that there are minutes of tho engagement ot

cCarthy and C6té. The Commissioners do not publish the minutes of all their pro-
ceedings. Thero is only ono public mecting of the Commissioners in a month ; the
other meotings are not public. I do not remembor of having taken communication
of the proceedings of & meeting of the Harbour Commissioners held in Ooctober, 1874,
and presided over by the Honorable John Young, at which meeting tho question of
appointing Pierre Coté to superintond and conduct some important works under the
mmissioners at the Sorel port was discussed.

1 cannot say that I have accoss to all the books of tho Harbour Commissioners.
To my porsonal knowledgo I cannot say, that T have had access to all the books of
the Commissioners referring to the engagomon' of C4té. But the Assistant Socretary
informed me that the books I was put in po--cssion of wero the only ones referring
10 the subject of his dismissal (C0té’s).

Cross-examined by the Honorable Mr. Bellerose :—
Q. Had not Coté the goneral churyo of tho ship-yard at Sorel, before Mr. Mec-
10
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Carthy ?—I found his numo on the paylist of that time as foroman. Ho had charge
as foreman.

Q. Who had genoral charge of tho ship-yard at that time ?—1I havo no porsonal
knowledgo beyond what I have said, nol being there at tho time.

Q. %Vhat is the charge of Mr. McCarthy ?—Ho is superintendent of tho ship-
yard and the hulls of the Commissioners’ fleet.

Q. Who are the officers above Mr. MoCarthy ?—Myself and no others.

Q. Please stato what officors had control over Mr, Coté?—I cannot say of my
own knowlodge.

Q. Wore you not in the employment of tho Commissionoers at Sorel whon Coté
was foreman ?—Only for the last two months.

. Wero you such a strangor in the ship-yard that you cannot say who wore
the officers who had control over Mr. Coté ?—I know perfectly well who were the
superior officers of Mr. C6té during those two months.

Q. Please name them ?—Mr. McCarthy was his immediate superior, thon myself.

Q. How long had Mr. McCarthy been in the employ of the Commissionars at
Sorel, whenMyou entered as engineer P—About four months, I was informed.

Q. So Mr. McCarthy was there before you !—Ho was. :

Q. Had Mr. Coté to take his orders from Mr. McCarthy during the two months
you wero in the service, as stated before ?—Yes.

Q. Practically ?—=Yes.

Q. Were you in the habit of conveying your orders through McCarthy to
Mr. Coté, or did you give them yourself ?—1 conveyed no order at all to Coté ex-
copt his dismiseal.

Q. If you are not aware of what pussed in the meeting in October, 1874, what is
your authority forstating that thero are no documents relating to the appointment
of Mr, Coté ?--~When Istate in my evidenco that I have reason to know that there
are minutes of the engagement of Mr. McCarthy and Coté, I gather it from conver-
sations with the Secretary and from evidence given at this onquiry.

Q. You have neverseon those minutes ?-—--I have novor seon them that I remembor.

Q. Will you take communication of proceedings of the Harbour Commissioners
of Montroal, published in the Herald, of £nd Ootober, 1874, now put before you, and
say whether the Piérre Coté mentioned in those procecdings is the same Pierre Coté
who has been dismissed from his funotions at Sorel ?.—I think it is.

Q. Will you tell us what was tho salary of Mr. McCarthy and that of Mr. Coté
when you entered the service of the Commissioners ?--I understood by documents
to which I have had access, that Cdté's salary was sixty dollars por month.

Q. Had he been reduced ?—.By the documents, I find he had boen reduced from
eighty dollars to sixty dollars. ‘

. Had not C4té superintendence of tho men in the yard when you ontered ?--.-
A. e morely had underchargo as aforementioned.

Q. Do you know who had genoral superintondence of the yard before Mr.
MecCarthy eatered into office ?---I cannot say of my own knowledge, but have under-
atood that Captain Armstrong had some oversight.

Q. Plenso tell us whether Captain Armstrong is still in the service of the Comn-
missioners ?---Ho is.

JOHN KENNEDY,

CapraiN CHARLES ARMSTRONG, boing sworn and examinod, answered as follows: —

I was employed from 1857 to 1865, as Superintondent of the works for deepeni
the ship channol of the Rivor St. Luwrence, below Moutreal. I know the chaune
perfectly, particularly where it has been doepened. Sinco 1874, tho Harbour Com-
missioners of Montreal have required my servicos as advisor, and I have rondered
them such wervices whon they havo beon asked for.

1
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In 1874, the Commissioners wore obliged to haul up the scows for repairs, and
wanted & man to superintend tho work. 1 was asked if [ could rocommend one. I
answered that I could recuommend -Pierre Coté. Tho Hon. John Young having
como to Sorel, wo went togothor to ree Mr. Coté on the othor sido of tho Richeliou.
The Honorablo Mr. Young and Cété had a conversation which I did not hear, having
stood aside. Sometimo after tho Henorable Mr. Young camo to me, and in answer
to a question from me, said to mo, “ Ho asks too much, oighty dollars a month.”
Some days after, T saw Mr. Coté working in the work-yard, and I saw him there
several days afterwards. I have boen told that ho was paid during soveral months
at tho rato of eighty dollars per month,

I have known Pierre Coté for forty yeurs.. He was omployed by mo in tho
building of the steamer Ontario, in 1851 or 1852, and since then he was employed
under my orders by the Harbour Commissioners. Ho is a sober and honest man,
and ono who can be trusted whon his word has been given. Ic¢ has always mado his
men work a8 well as possible. When I recommonded Mr. Cété, I did 1t becauso I
bolioved he was the pest man for that kind of work. As well as I can recollect, Mr.
McCarthy told me that Coté had hired Paulet, and that he was a man who could not
bo rolied upon; that he had already employcd him for along time, and that in the
most ;’)lressing moment Paulet left him.

I have known Pierre Charbonneau for more than twenty years. He was em.
ployed as my mato on board the Sydenham, and I was very woll satisfied with his
services. I have seen on board of the dredging machines the following men: 1'ierre
Beaulac, Jamos Sigman and Pierre Hurtoau during the year 1875, and Pierro Char-
bonneau in 1875-6. In my opinion Pierre Beaulac did not do his work in a proper
and satisfactory manner. He got drunk several times and quarrelled with his crew.
When I roproved him he told me that the men of the erew would not mind him;
then I toid him to dismiss them immediately.

As to Sigman I think he did his duty well, but did not agree with the Engineor,
but I cannot say that it was his fault.

Piorre Hurteau is a good man, but was not fortunate, although he did his best.

Pierre Charbonneau always did hid his duty well, and I never had any fault to
find with him. The place where he worked during s portion of the season was o
very difficult ono, that is to say, that as much work could not be done thore in a

iven time as elsewhere. No accidents happened to him to my knowledge; I nover
ew of a diver being employed for Charbonneau. In 1876 I heard it said that it
had been necessary to havo recourse to a divor for another drodge commanded by
Dunbar. The first times, that is to say from 18587 to 1868, I was never obliged to
have recourse to a diver. The captain of the dredge, and the engineer always
fished up tho buckets when they fell out of the frame.

What I have said about these mon relatos to what I know of their charactors
after an experience of many years, and not of a fow yoars only.

When Coté was employed it was at my suggestion. C6té employed Paulot as
one of his men in the work-yard. Mr. McCarthy told me that he (Mr. McCarthy)
would not accept any situation at the timo of C6té's appointment, 1 beliove he told
me that beforo the appointment of tho latter. Tho Commissioners have a Mechanical
Superintendent who looks after the machinery. The situation which Mr. McCarthy
holds does not call for any knowledge as engineer or as millwright. Mr. McCarthy
built the dredge No. 4 in 1857. Ho also built a stone-lifter in 1857 or 1858,

Sigman quarrelled with his engineer. I do not think it would be prudent to
continue to put thom togother.

Simpson scrved under Langlade in 1876, and I have not heard that there was
any trouble. Langlade has much more experience than Sigman; he is very active
and very able. Sigman had no experience in dredging; ho was formerly a carpen-
tor, Simpson dredged in the Lako in 1864 wod 1868, I believe. Hurteau had no ex-
})erienco as & dredger bofore 1875; until then he had been assistant in a floating

“forge.
Beaulac had not had any p:ovious experience as a dredger. The engineer under
12
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Beaulac was Cascy, an intelligent man. Charbonneau had no exporience as a dredger
before 18758 ; ho is a good sailor,

dI think the arrangement of making the ongineer captain of the dredge is a
good one.

The locating of the ship channel was done by me; I am still the principal
adviser, and no change that I know of has been made without my advice.

I do not think aptain McKenzie has any control over the locating of the ship
channel ; it is not necessary that Captain McKenzic should have a profound know-
ledgo of the bottom of the river in order to do his duty well; his duties are not such
us require & pilot's knowledge for their accomplishment,

?know Baptain St. Louis of the tug St. Lowis; I cannot say if he ran his boat
aground. I know that he came into collision with a tug and a acow; he was in
fault ; he was condemned by me after an inquiry in which witnesses were heard.

Mr. Dunbar has noted as captain and engineer; I have heard it said that an
accident happened to him. I do not remember that an experienced captain hasover
met with an accident; an experienced captain can conduct the operations on board
of a dredgo bettor than mn engineer without practical experience could.

I never had need of W diver to recover the buckets, and I do not think it is neces-
sary to employ & diver whon the captain knows his business.

I do not know any other exger enced captains besides the four employed IX the
Commissioners, except perhaps Captain Hart, who is employed by the Messrs. Allan.

The dredge No. 4, and the stone lifter to which I, have alluded were built by the
McCarthy Company. I have alwais heard it said that Mr. Daniel McCarthy was the
most competent of tho three to make plans of vessels, &ec.

C. L. ARMSTRONG.

Mr. Jouxn MoCArTaY, being sworn and examined, answers as follows :—

My name is Jobn McCarthy. I am a ship-builder and general ship-carpenter. I
have boen working in tho‘ business about forty-two years, I studied in Quebec during
five yoars under Allan, Gilmour & Co. I have been in the business of ship-building
for t{irt -four or thirty-five years, first under the name of D. & J. McCarthy, then
D. & J. ﬁcCarthy & Co., for a timo, then D. & J. McCarthy again. We built a great
many vessels, ships, boats, barges, &c¢. My du?r in the firm was to superintend all
the wood work throughout, toline or mould and change it according as I found it did
not please me. I frequently assisted in making modols and drawings and specifica-
tions, Our firm Worked together and assisted cach other in all departments. I have
directed people to make moulde, but have not made them myuelf’; it was beneath the
scope of mgr duties. I have marked them on several occasions. We built No. 1
dredge for the Commissioners. The former hull of No. 1 was built under contract by
Molson & Vaughan. I had chm‘%‘o of the carpenter work. We built a dredge under
the superintendence of Mr. Hatherton. No, 3 dredge was built by Mr. Cantin, of
Montreal, from the specification of our firm, D. & J. McCarthy. I assisted therein.
I onterod tho service of the Harbour Commissioners about the twenty-second of De-
cember, 1874. Tho Honorable John Young asked for my services, but I did not care
to givo my services, as I was in independent circumstances. I was then telegraphed
or written to from fviontroul. I went to Montreal, and I think I again declined, but
was prevailed upon to accopt on condition I was given a salary of two thousand
dollars. My duties were to superintend all the vessels of the Harbour Commission-
ors’ floot ; that is, to keep them in working orderso far as the ahipwriﬁht work went.
I ocoupy the position yet. Inthespring of 1878, after things were settled, I resigned,
as I was not pleasod at the goneral state of things. About six weeks after I was pre-
vailod upon again tojacoept.  In April, 1876, I again resigned, but my resignation was
not accepted. My main object in acoeptin%wu to assist in carrying out this work,
and I could not well refuse them. Mr. P. Cdté, was in the shipyard when I went
thero. I was under the belief he was under me, I did not tell him so. I gave him

[}



40 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2.) A. 1877

instructions when ever it was nocessary, as & porson who was under me. Paulet was
in tho shipyard, to the best of my knowledge, when I ontored, I had not made any
objection to Mr. Paulet's engagement, before my own ongagement. I took no stops
towards his being employed. I was acquainted with Paulet. He had been in my
service for some years, threo or four, more or less. Ho worked as journoyman carpen-
ter, then he was mado foroman. Ho has been continuously in the sorvico of the
Commissioners sinco he ontered it. I believe ho could build & good common bargo;
I say this from common roport. He is said to have built ono for Labelle & Vignaait.
My own opinion is he con build a good common barge. [ remembor the groat flood
at Sorel some years since ; thero were & good many vessels damaged. The Commis-
sioners had throe or four vessols sunk, one drodge and a couple of coal barges and
some scows fillod with water. 1 assisted in rwsing one of the coal barges and ope of
the dredges. I believe there was also & spoon dredge lost that spring, but am not
positive whether it was at that timo or not. I had goneral charge of the raising of
these vossels, Captain Armstrong, boing Superintendent of the works, No ono camo
near me ‘unless, perhaps, my elder brother, the headl of the firm, for general con-
sultation.

Cross-examined : —
Q. Is Captain Armstrong still an officor of the Board of Commissioners ?—I

beliove he is.
Q. What rank has he ?2—He has not tho rank he formerly held. He is superan-

nuated.

Q. Has he been reducod in rank ?—I am of the opinicn that he has been retired,
but I think he still remains a paid officer. I do not know his rank.

Q. How long has he been in the servico ?—Sixteen years or thereabouts.

Q. How long has he been on the retired list >—About a year or thereabouts.

Q. Had you any conversation since the inquiry has been held, with any person
who may directly or indirectly be intorested in tho result of this inquiry ?—I had,
with Mr. Kennedy.

Q. Ploase state if with any other ?7—I had, with Caﬁtain Mackentzie, an officor
looking aftor the fleet of the Commissioners, and with another gentlemnan, Mr.
Williams, a young man in the office of the Commissioners.

Q. Did you evor state that Paulet could not be relied upon on account of his
uncortainty of leaving ?---I likely may have said so.

Q. Do you know Pierro C6té ?----I know him,

Q. Will you tell us if C6té made good servico while in the employment at Sorel?
~--I was not all the time in tho ship-yard, but I bolieve he performed his duty like
the rest of the men.

Q. When you entered the servico of the Commissioners was Coté thero ?--Ie
was.

Q. Wore not the dutios of C616 at the time to keep the vesscls in working order?
~-I entered the sorvice in winter; C6té was working at ropairing then.
Re-examined by Mr. Kennedy : —

Q. When you took charge of tho ship-yard at Sorel and found Paulet there, did
you treat him in the same way as ycu treated tho other men ?—Yes.

Q. Mention has been mado of the snit of Guévremont against MeCarthy ; wero
you poirsonnlly intorested in that suit ?—I was interosted in it as a trustee or oxecu-
tor only. '

Q.yane you had any suit with Mr, Guévromont that you wore porsonally intor
ested in ?—None.

‘ﬁi" the Honorable Mr. Bellerose :-—

Q. Did. you not enter tho scrvice.of the Commiasioners at & certain period bo-
tween: the suits alluded to proviouely ?-~I entered after tho pleadings of the firat suit.

Q. Whs not thie estate of which; you were trusteo or oxecutor, the cstate of your

brother Thomas ?+~Ydn.
» JOIIN McCARTILY.
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Mr. JeaN Barmiste LAMERE, being sworn and oxamined, deposod and said :

I have been Goneral Managor of the Richeliou & Ontario Navigation Company
since about 1862. I have known Mr. John McCarthy for twenty yoars at least. I
believe for fiftcon or twentg roars, up to the time of giving up business, he was a

artnoer in the firm of D. J) McCarthy. They were shipbuilders. They had a
argo establishment. They built a few ships during the first yoars of their arrival
at Sorel; also, steambonats, barges and dredges for the Harbour Commissioners,
when they firet worked in the lako. They mado all the carpenters’ work of the
stoamers Quebec, Three Rivers, Berthier, Chambly, Terrebonne and Canada for
the Richelicu Company. Thes built paddle-wheel tugs. The iron hulls of afore-
said vessels wore manufactured in the Clyde. They were set up by contract, but
not by tho McCarthy's. I consider John McCarthy a first-class shipbuilder. The
carpenters’ work made on our steameors is not surpassed on any othor stoamers in
America. I did not see him working in all the places in the steamers. In my
opinion I do not think any man could got more work out of his men than Mr. John

c¢Carthy. From my own knowledge, I think him perfoctly eaﬁable to build all
parts of s wooden vessel. I have a general knowledhfe of the Harbour Commis-
sioners’ fleet in the St. Lawrence and harbour of Montreal. I think Mr. John
McCarthy entirely capable of taking charge of the hulls of these vassels as a ship-
builder, and capable of superintending repairs and construction of said dredges in
a most economical manner. I think Mr. John McCarthy’s appointment to his
present position a judicious one. I know of no one whose services could be obtained
who could perform the work bo‘ter. Mr. John McCarthy had active superintend-
once of the mon in the shipyard. 1t is my opirion that {Ir. John McCarthy could
build a ship entirely without help, that is, without being directed.

Cross-Examined by the Honorable Mr. Bellerose :—

Q. Who prepared the moulds when Mesars, D. & J, MoCarthy were in partner-

ghip ?—I do not not know.
-~ Q. Who mado the drawings ?—I do not know.

Q. Do you know Mr. C6té ?7—1I have known Mr. P. C6té for nearly twenty yoars,
I do not know all his qualifications or the works he has performed ; he is of Sorel, I
go to Sorel vroy often, and romgin there for long periods of time, particularly in the
spring. I know tho different ship-yards whore vessols woro built. I do not know
any of tho work Mr. Coté has done. anen the ongines of the Richelieu Company’s
steameors Victoria and quo}eon wero boing repaired I was at Sorel as Agent of tho
Company ; 1 cannot sa; 1f it was Mr. Coté who did that work. At thattimo the
Messars. {( Carthy had built the Jacques Cartier for tho Richolion Company. It was
Mr Cantin of Montreal who built tho steamors  Victoria and Napoleon; the Messrs.
McCarthy built the hull of the Jacques Cartier. T cannot remember if they placed the
ongines, but they did not mako them. I do not know if Mr.. O8té was called upon
later to re-adjust tho ongines of the steamer Jacques Cartier. I donot remember if Mr,
C6té has over worked for the Company since I have boen its Agent ; I havo been Agont
of the Company for nearly twonty-one years; I rosided at Sorel in 1856-7. I do not re-
membor how much the Company’s wharf at Sorel was longthened ; Idonot remember
who did tho work, 1 wasat Quebuc about that time. I believe, however, that it was
Mr. C6té who was employed by Mr. Sincennes to do that work. That work was
done about botween the years 1857 and 1867 to the best of my knowledge. It is pos-
sible that Mr. C6té may have ropaired the Richolien Company's wharf at Three
Rivore, but I do not remember it. I do not think that Mr. John McCarthy has built
& vessol by himself, seeing that ho was in partnership with his brother Daniel, and
that they must have consulted each other. The Messrs. McCarthy arrived at Sorel
about 1839 or 1840. Mr. Coté has boen at Sorel for a long timo—for mare than
thirty years, but I do not know if he was born there.

J. B. LAMERE.
18
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RETURN

To an ADDREsS of the SENATE, dated 21st March, 1877 :—For 1. Copy of
a petition complaining of injustice done by the Montreal Harbour
Commissioners or by some other person or persons in their employ, in
the arbitrary dismissal of P. Oharbonneaun, Pierre Coté and several
others, employed on the Works of the said Commissioners on the River
St. Lawrence, with the signatures to the said petition. 2. A Return of
the names, surnames, occupation and residences of the persons who
have been appointed in place of those so dismissed. 3. Copies of all
letters and complaints relating to the persons so dismissed—or, if no
written complaint or correspondence exists, a statement in writing of
the reasons for their dismissal.

By Command.

R. W. SOCOTT,
Secretary of State.

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE,
Orrawa, 10th April, 1877.

OrrAawa, 9th April, 18717.

Sir,~~1 have the honour to send herewith Return to an Address of the Hon, the
Senate, for correspondence on tho dismissal of Pierre Charbonneau and others, from
the service of the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal.

I havo the honour to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant,
WM. SMITH,
Deputy Minister of Marine, etc.

The Hon. R. W. Socorr,
Secretary of Stato,
Ottawa,

[Copy.]
HarBoUR CoMMISSIONERS OF MONTREAL,
’ SxcrETARY's OFFIOE,
MowTrzaL, 6th April, 1877.

Sir,~I havo the bonour to acknowledge the receipt of your communication of the
26th instant, requesting cortain information respecting the dismissal of Pierre Char-
bonneau, Pierro Cdté and several others, employed on the works of the Commission-
ors, and I am dirocted to roply as follows :---
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1, The Harbour Commisnioners have received no petition respecting the dismis-
eal of the persons named, nor regarding the dismissal of other persons within recent
years, nor are they in possession of copies o any such petitions.

2. Nicholas McQue, Engineer of Sorel, has been appointed to the duties formerly
performed by P. Charbonneau, and Colbert Paulet, ship-carpenter, of Sorel, in the
place of P. C8té.

8. The Commissioners have received no letter or written complaint respecting
Pierre Charbonneau.

He was engaged as captain in charge of a dredge upon the deegening of the
ship channel between Montreal and Quebeo, during the summers of 1875 and 1876,
His term of service expired with the close of navigation in 1876 (as does that of all
persons engaged upon the dredges, at the end of each summer), and instead of his
re-appointment for the approaching summer, the above-mentioned N. McQue, engi-
neor of the dredge, has been placed in charge ot the same, and will perform the
duties of captain in addition to those of engineer.

This change is similar to that made upon other dredges at the beginning of
1876, and is, in consequence of the Commissioners having found by experience that
their dredges nve, in genoral, more efficiently and economicalry worked where
entirely under the char%:s of one man, who is a-mechanical engineer, than when, in
a certain sense, divided between an ordinary captain and an engineer.

Pierre Coté was formerly employed as foreman in the Commissioners’ shi
yard at Sorel, and was dismissed from that position on the 30th June, 1875, after
due notification, and tho above-mentioned C. Paulet engaged in his place. In the
middle of August following, Coté was reeng:(fed as a foreman of pile-driving, upon
the harbour works of Montreal, and continued up to the completion of the work at
the olose of navigation, when ho was dismissed with the other employees, and has
not been re-engaged, no similar services having been needful sinoe.

The ‘Commissioners are not aware which dismissal of C8té is referred to in your
letter, and thoreforo beg to give the following explanation as to both: On the large
additions to the dredging fleet, for the deeponing of the ship channel, it was found
necessary to appoint & person of superior intelligence as superintendent of the ship
yard and hulls of the vessels, after which only a foreman at moderate wages was
roquired in the plgwe of Cbté, who _waa receiving eighty dollars per month. His
wages were accordingly reduced to sixty dollars, which he refused to accept, except
m:gor rotest, and he was dismissed and the above.-mentioned C. Paulet was en
instead at two dollars per day (equal to fifty-two dollars per month) and a saving
of twenty oight dollars per month was thus made, without detriment to the service.
As regards Coté’s second dismissal, it need only be repeated that it took place in
consequonce of the completion of the work on which he was engaged, and ‘that no
letters or complaints have been received respecting the matter.

The Commissioners desire it to be clearly underatood that all engagements are
made with a view to the most efficient and economical working of the Trust, and
that they hold themselves at liberty, under all engagements made, to dispense with
such services, upon reasonable notice, whensoever, in their opinion, the sorvice can
be better performed by a change involving such dismissal; but in no case has there
been a dismissal not considered advantageous to the Trust; and, when found
nocessary, the change has not been made in the arbitrary manner referred toin your
communication.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant,
(Signed) H. D. WHITNEY,
' Assistant Secretary.
W, ‘s""'ﬂélﬁ?;"of the Minister of Marine, eto.,
Ottawa.

2-2 17
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HARBoOUR CoMMISSIONERS OF MONTREAL,
SEORETARY'S OFFICE,
MonTrEAL, Tth April, 187%.

Sir,—Referring to my letter of yesterday's date, giving explanations concerning
the dismissal of P. Charbonneau, P. C6té, and others, I would further state that P,
Cbté was in our employ at Sorel for only a short time, from about the 15th November,
1874 to the 30th June, 1875, and therefore could have no claim on us on account of
long service.

I am, &ec.,
(Signed,) H. D. WHITNEY,
Assistant-Secretary.
‘WM. Smith, Esq.,
Deputy Minister of Marine, &c.
Ottawa.

SoreL, 26th August, 1876.

DEeAr Sir,—1 beg to transmit to you & petition that I have roceived from my
constituents, stating grave facts with regard to the harbour works at Sorel. Please
havo this petition translated in English, and send both immediately to the hon.
Minister of Public Works. I hope also that you will not loose sight of this matter,
and that the grave complaints of my constituents will be remedied by the interven-
tion of the Government, who is greatly interested in those works. Please ‘acknow-
ledge reception.

Yours truly,
G. I. BARTHE.
Hon. L. S. HuntiNaTON,
Postmaster General,
Ottawa.

To G. I. BarTux, Esq., M.P.,
Richelieu.

S18,—The undersigned being some of your electors, wish to draw your attention
to the manner in which the works of the Harbour Commissioners are conducted, so
far as concerns the Town of Sorel and the County of Richelieu, particularly those
which are done on the River St. Lawrence and Lake St. Poter, as well as to the
condnct of those employed by the Commission and the injustice committed towards
several of the undersigned by the chief employees; and they deom it their duty to
submit to you a succinct statement of the complaints brought against tho mana
ment of those works, in order to place you in & position to judge of the gravity of the
evil and to make afforts to cure it effectually as soon as possible.

Such great injustice has been done in dismissing from the service of the Commis-
sion employees, in every respect capable of discharging the duties intrusted to them,
and the incapacity of those who have replaced them, and of several others” of the
present employees who fill important places is to evident, that it is lamoentable to see
that a considerable undertaking involving so groat an expenditure of public money,
is conducted in a manner so contrary to justice and to the publio interest, and so dis-
advantageous to the Government and the 1c.:nmtry.

’
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. The mere statement of the following facts will be sufficient to prove this.

When the Commissioners commenced the organization necessary for tho execution
of the work of deepening the River St. Lawrence and Lake St. Peter in the
autumn of 1874, they secured the services of Mr. Piorre C6té, whom they engaged as
master carpenter and superintendent of the shipyard at Sorel, at a salary of nine
hundred and sixty dollars a year.

This gentleman, well-known here, is a workman of the first class, not only as a
ship-builder, but also as & machinist, a joiner, a millwight and a draftsman, of all of
which the Commissioners have need. He is more versed in the building and working
of drodges than any one else; having worked at the building of the first of such
vessels built in Canada, and having afterwards served for a long time under Cap-
tains Vaughan, Bell, Smith, and Armstrong, formerly employed in the works on the
St. Lawrenco, all of whom were satisfied with the service of Mr. Coté. He is a man
ot great experience and knowlodge, acquired in_thirty-eight years during which he
has oarried on works of all kinds, in Canada and in the United States.

He is, morcover, a man of an affable character, sober and honest, whose adtivity
and energy are known, and who can prove his services by compotent persons, besides
the following certificates, which have been offered to him by some of those who

have employed him :---
“ SoreL, March, 1868.

« T certi'y that Pierroc Coté was soverul years in the employ of the St. Lawrence
Company, and for many years in my employ as master carpenter. Ho is familiar
with all kinds of machinery. His general character is kind and obliging, and he is
gober and trustworthy in all respects.

“ (Signed)  C. L. ARMSTRONG,
« Late Superintendent Lake St. Peter and River Navigation Co.”

“ SoreL, 24th March, 1868,

“y, undersigned, certify that I know Mr. Pierre C6té, the bearer of the present
cortificate, since thirty years, and he is a sober man, and he is in my knowledge, one
of the best carpenters; and I can say that he has built many steamers and bargos,
and that he has put up the engines to the best satisfaction of owners ; and as inspec-
tor of steamboats, I know that he has been called for correcting some mistakes on
ongines made in the foundry. Tt is for what I rocommend this man as able on
everything with safoty, that he can mako his duty without any trouble.

“ (Signed) X. BEFORT,

s« Steamboat Inspector.”

“ SorkL, 17th March, 1868,

«The bearer, Pierre Coté, has worked for me, while in charge of steamers and
drodges on the St. Liawrence, as joiner and millwright, and always acquitted him-
self satisfuatorily. Ho is a sober man, and whoever employs him, we think ho will
give genoral gatisfaction. )

¢« (Signed) W. SMITH,

- « Steamer Rockett.”

« Sonn, 17th March, 1868,

« This is to cortify that the bearer, Mr. Pierre Coté, has worked for me in making
two engine frames and fitted them up in the boat to my entire satisfaction. 1 have,
therefore, no hesitation in re jommending him as a first olass mechanic.

“(Signed) = JOHN BURGESS,
« Engineer Mi’ti 0. 8. 8. Co's Tug Steumer Meteor.”

33}
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“ SorEL, 16th February, 1868,

“ This is to certify that I know Peter Coté to be a smart, able mechanic ; he can
make models, drafts and build steamers and barges, put engines into steamers and
mills, also build and put up all kinds of saw and grist mills, with machinery. He is
also a sober, steady, pushing man, and will soon recommend himself to any person
who will give him a trial.

*“ (Signed) JAMES HUNTER,
“ Late Engineer of Montreal Harbour Commission."”

S———

“ Rivigre pu Loup, April 18606,
“ To WHOM IT MAY CONCERN.

“ Mr, Poter Cdté has wrought for the Hunterstown Lumber Co. building barges
and steamers for the past two yoars, We cheerfully recommend him as an industrious
man, competent to build steamers and barges in the best workmanlike manner, as
the steamer Tyler, and barges Hunterstown and Burlington will show, now running
into Burlington, Vt.

“ (Signed) IGNATIUS TYLER,
“ General Manager H. L. Co.”

“SorEL, 21st Septomber, 1868,

“I do hereby concur in the here above cortificate in favor of Mr. Pierre Coté, who
has made and performed for me many important buildings, as wharves, piers, &o.

“ (Signed) J. B. L. PRECOURST,
«N. P

The agquirements of a man so well qualified were therefore veory useful to the
Cummissioners, und they ought to have treated Mr. C6té with justice, and paid him
liberally for the services he could render them, but, unfortunately, they did not.

Mr. Pierre Cbté wns engaged by the Chairman of the Commission, the Honor-
able John Yourg, and took charge of the ship-yard on the 12th of November, 1874,
There was then nothing but the bare ground in the ship-yard, and everything had
to be done there. Mr. C6té et to work with a very limit,edy number of men, without
even the herls of a foreman to direct the men, or of a clerk to keep the accounts of
the shiip-ya ; and at the beginning of the month of December following he had
succeeded in making the necessary arrangements and putting six scows, a barge and
n stone-lifter on the stocks, and had placel all the dredges, steamers and other vessels
belonging to the Commission in winter quarters in the port of Sorel, which gained him
compliments from the Honorable Mr.%oung, when he visited the ship-yard in the
month of January, previous to his departure for England.-

In the course of January, 1875, and in the absence of the Honorable Mr. Young,
the Commissioners a;:rointod Mr. John McOarthy Inspector of their vessels, with a
salary of two thousapd dollars a year. This appointment was d1-feet.ly uselgas,
bocause the Commissioners h ‘kln M. Cat4 a man mygh better quuﬁe M
duty than Mr. MoC;rthyl,l; and if they had givep, My, Cbté a foreman to direct the
men in the shig,- ard in his absence, that gentleman could havo acted as Inspedtor of
their vessels without inéretse of salary, and'ih a much more satisfactory way than
Mr, M¢Carthy can, butause. the laster N:i!o‘no meany.ghalified for that, and does not

ed to fulfll that
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possess the acquirements that are necessary for the discharge of the duties of the
office entrusted to him. In fact, Mr. John McCarthy is neither a master carpenter
nor an engineer, nor a machinist, nor a draughtsman, nor a millwright, and he has
never done anything else than directing the work of a certain number of men under his
brother’s superintendence in D. & J. McCarthy’s ship-yard. . This gentleman’s
acquirements, either as a workman or as an administrator cannot bo compared with
those of Mr. é&té, any more than their manners in thidir relations with the public,
because Mr. McCartby is a blunt and hasty man, and is not at all sociable.

The reason for his appointment remains inexplicable, and cannot be explained
to the advantage of the Commissioners, and yet the control of the affairs of the
Commission appears to be exercised here very unjustly by the Mossrs. McCarthy,
who, after having made large fortunes under the former Commissioners for the works
on the St. Lawrence, are in a fair way to make others under the present Commis.
sion. They have leased their shipyards and their wharves to it at exorbitant rents
and the salary of one of them is altogether out of proportion to the services he is
able to render.

Immediately after his appointment, John McCarthy began to interfore with the
management of the yard, saying that he did so for tho purpose of lightening the
burthen of Mr. C6té, who had no foreman and superintended the work slone; he
reduced the wages of a great number of the hands, who must have suffered from
that act of injustice, because it was in the middle of winter and all places elsewhere
were filled up; and then he gave Mr. Coté notice that his wages would be reduced
to gixty doliars & month, dating from the month of February following, instead of
eighty dollars, asbeforese  Mr. Cbté, who had let Mr. McCarthy alone until then, in
order to keep on good terms with him, protested against this injustice, and invoked
his eng:igement by the Hon. John Young. The only auswer ho got was that he was
informed that the Commissionors could uot settle the matter in the absence of the
latter, who was then in Iinglind, but that it was probable that his services wounld be
no longer required in the month of May following ; and at the end of June he was
discharged and paid at the rate of sixty dollars a month only, and was replaced by
Mr. John McCarthy, whose salary was more than double his own.

Mr, Coté then insisted on being paid the balance due on his salary, and
demanded the ressons for which he had been dismissed from the service, when Mr.
Kennedy, the Engineer of the Commission, came to see him, and told him that he
had a better chance to give him in Montreal, and to como and work there. Mr,
C6.¢ went there and was employed by the Commissioners for three months, and paid
attho rate of three dollavs a day, and then dismissed. Seeing that the Commissioners
would not do him justice, this gentleman instituted legal proceedings against them
for the recovery of the balance of his salary, and these proceedings are peunding
before Court in Sorel. :

The act of having dismissed Mr. Coté from the service without valid reasons, was
one of great injustice to that goutleman, as well as very prejudicial to the interests of
the Commission, on the score of the capacity and the salary of Mr. McCurthy, who
roplaced him. In fact, this unjust and indescribable act has injured the Commission
very much, and hnd the immediate etfeot of considerably increasing the expenses of
management, bocause Mr. McCarthy bired a foveman with a good salary and two
olerkn to carry on the office, immediately after Mr. Coté’s departure.

Tho Commissioners also, in the spring of 1875, appointed Mr. Thomas McKensie
to the post of Assistunt Superintendent of the works on the St. Lawrence, with &
large salary. This appointment was not more necessary than that of Mr. Jobn Mo-
Oarthy, because Captain Armstrong, then Superintendent of the works, had no need
of an assistant and had not asked for one. Besides, if the thing was necessary, A man
competent to discharge the office ought to have been chosen, and not a man like Mr.
MoKensie, who is a stranger to the Province of Quebec, has never studied our interval -
navigation, and does not know the River St. Lawrence or Lake St. Peter, except fram
having passod through them three or four times on baard of .a steamship which he
commanded formerly, on voyages botm; lHulm\x»md Montreal. Anassistant niore
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incapable of assisting the Superintendent of the works than this Mr. McKenrie could
not have been chosen, and this appointment is evidently due to family favoritism
and the influence of those who control the affairs of the Commission at Sorel unjustly.
This appointmont helonged, of right, to one of the pilots employed under the Com-
mission, who are all men possessing the requirements that are necessary for the dis-
charge of the duties of the office, who know the bed of the river well and the places
where it must. be deepened ; oife of those men could be of service to the Commissioners
while fulfilling his duties as Assistant Superintendent, but not a man like Mr.
McKenzie, who knows nothing at all in that respect, and cannot have been of any uso
to the Superintendent, because the latter could not rely on Mr. MeKenzie's having
knowledge enough for the taking of his place in case of need.

In the course of the summer of 1876 an accident happened to a scow, owing, it
aé)pears, to the fanlt of one of the captains of the Commissioners’ steamers; and as
the real author of the damage could not be discovered, all the captains of the steamers
were condemned to pay the costs between them, so that the innocent paid for the

uilty.

& {n the autumn of 1875 the Commissioners sent two cargoes of coal from Montreal
to Sorel. When the coal had been delivered the captains of the vessels which carried
it demanded payment of the freight, which was at the rate of sixty cents a chaldron,
by agreement made in Montreal. John McCarthy and Thomas McKenzie then pre-
tended that the conl was deliverable by English measure and not in chaldrons of thirty-
8ix bushels, Canadian measure, whicﬁ made & great difference. One of the captains
refused to ugree to that, and brought an action against the Commissiouers for the
payment of his froiﬁlht. The Court decided in his favour and condemned the Com-
missioners to pay the costs. The other captain, who was poor and had & pressing
need of his earnings tor tho support of his family, was obliged to submit to Messrs,
McCarthy and McKenzie's pretentions in order to get his money at once; so that
about fifteen dollars were extorted from him.

Agnin, quite lately, a captain of a vessel undertook to carry a load of coals from
Quebec to Sorel for the Commissioners, the freight being payable by the vendor of
the coals in Quebec. The captain took his load out of the cargo of t{e vessel in the
stream and did not keep account of the quantity taken; as is always done in such
cases, he signed bills of lading for two hundred and fifty chaldrons “ more or less.”
On arrival at Sorel the coals were measured by his men and by tho Commissioners’
employees, and he was found it have more than thirty chaldrons in excess of the
quantity specitied in the bills of lading. Then the captain demanded a receipt to the
effect that he had delivered so many chaldrons of cosls in order that he might get
paid his freight by the owner in Quebec ; but those gentlemen would not give him a
receipt for more than the two hundred and fifty chaldrons specified in the bills of
lading, not choosing to take any notice of the words “ more or less” therein con-
tained. Tho matter is still in suspense, and will probably give rise to another action
against the Commissioners. ’

In tho course of last winter, Messrs. John McCarthy and Thomas McKenrie got &
large amount of work done in workshops in Montreal, to the groat detriment of the
owners of workshops in Sorel, who could have done all that work more cheaply than

_ it was done in Montreal. Since then it has beon a rule in the office ut Sorel to give
out a!l the profitable contructs in Montreal, and no longer to have any but trifling
things done here, and then at lower prices than elsewhere. And yet there are first
class workshops in Sorel which could do all the work of the Commission, to the satis-
faction of the most exacting. It is the same with timber, which the Commissioners
always buy from merchunts on the Ottawa and elsewhere, and that timber costs them
more when it is ready for{use than that which the lumber merchants and owners of
saw mills in Sorel could sell them, lweause the handling of it in sending it to the
mills to be sawed and then bringing it Laclk to the shipyard costs the Commissianers
80 much that its cost is %x;utly enhanced by the time i1t is ready for use; and there
would be great profit tobe made by buying from the merchants in Sorel.

It is the same with the patronage of 2;1:.0 commfission among the merchants in
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Sorel. Only those who are personal friends of Messrs. McKenxie & McCarthy are
favored with that patronage.

In the spring of 1876, four captains of dredges were dismissed from the service,
and their duties were assigned to the engineers on board of the dredges, in addition to
the duties of these lattor as ax:fineera, although they were not at all equal to the
command and management of dredges, and could not .oocugy those places withou *
groat detriment to the service; at the same time offers of employment as secon..
captains on board of the same dredges, with the same wages us they had had as
captains, were mado to the dismissed captains, in order, no doubt, to afford the en-

ineers opportunities of learning from these men ; not one of them would accept these
gumiliating offors, and they were discharged. Why were these mon dismissed, who
had been tried during the previous years and found capable of commanding and
working the drodges proporly, and replaced by men who knew nothing besides their
business as engineers and had enough to do to discharge its duties fitly 7 And if those
captains wero only fit to be mates, why pay them the wages of captains while doing
the duties of mates only ? These changes must have been made for motives, less fit
to be acknowledgoed than that of economising the resources of the Dominion, and it
may be said that favoritism was one of the motives, if not the only motive, of this
unjust and stupid action.

Experience has sinco shown that these changes have been extremely prejudicial
10 the interests of the Commission and the advancement of the works, because the
incapacity of these engineer-captains has been the cause of many serious accidents
happening to the dredges, six of which were disabled in one week, which occasioned
considerable delay in the execution of the works. In one case especially the inca
city of the engineer-captain of dredge No. 9 caused the dvedge to be damaged to the
amount of more than two thousand dollars, and that merely because he did not know
how to go about recovering a certain portion of the mechanism of the dredge, which
had fallen into the water, a thing which all captains of dredges know perfectly well
how to do, and thoy consider that knowledge quite elementary in their business,
After having broken the essential portions of the dredge, without succeeding in his
efforts, he had to employ & diver to recover the broken portions of the machinery,
which caused a great loss of time, and cost a great deal.

Since that spring the services of divers have been roquired several times, in
consequence of similar accidonts, and that merely becauso the engineer-captains do
not know how to manage the dredges under their charge. Before that summer
divers wero never employed to recover broken portionsof the machinery of the
dredges, the captains themselves rocovoring them without le2= of time and without
expense, Nevortheless, the captain of dredge No. 9 was not dismissed.

About the same time the captain of tho steamer waiting on dredge No. 9 acoi-
dentally caused & collision between the steamor and the dredge, whereby the latter
was slightly damaged ; he was suspended from office for a month.

Mr. Maxime Liacouture, a first-class engineer, had served the Commissioners for
six years, to the satisfaction of all; he was dismissed from the service unjustly and
without cause, and replaced by another.

Mr. P. Pigeon, blackemith, was also dismissed from the service, after having
worked two years for the Commissioners, and replaced by another, without any

0.
Mr. X. Courtois, a servant of the Commissioners for more than ten years, had
always done his duty well as captain of & barge and watchman; he was dismissed
without any reason and replaced by a stranger who was not qualified to fill his place.
Mr. Casimir Lemay, captain of a barge and master caulker to the Commis-
gioners, was dismissed in the spring without any reason, and replaced by another less
capable than himself.

Mr. Théodore Marcotte, second captain on board of a dredge, did his duty well
and was capable as second officer ; he was dismissed as he was about to bogin in the
sglng, and replaced by another who is not qualified to discharge the duties of that
oflice,

23
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———
—

Mr. Alexis Dumas, second engineer on board of a dredge, had served the Com-
missioners for a long time, and did his duty well; he was dismissed in the spring
and replaced by another.

Lastly, ocapable men who had long served as rocond engineers, and who
deserved to be promoted to be first engineers of the Commissionors’ new dredges
were not so promoted, but strangers wore brought in to fill those places.

It is not surErising. therefore, that with so considerable & number of employees
incapable of discharging their duties, some of whom occupy important positions, the
works do not advance, many and costly accidents happen, tho public is dissatisfied
with the management, and the public interests suffer.

Under these circumstances, the undersigned deem themselves justified, in the
public interest, in laying before you the present address, and in praying you to use
your influence to bring about the holding of an enquiry into the management of the
works of the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal and their employees at Sorel, in
‘order that abuses and faults may be proved, and remedies thereof suggested, in
order to render justice to those to whom it is due, and at the same time protect the
interests of the public and the funds ol the Dominion.

SorerL, August, 1876,

Pierre Coté,
Pierre Beaulac,

88
Théodore X Marcotte, ; (M. C. Blais, witness.)
marque

F. St. Louis,

J. B. Guévrement,

88
Paul X Lamothe, } (M. C. Blais, witness.)
marqne,

J. O. Bellerose,

Théophile Vigneau,

84

J-Bte, X Vigneau, ;} (M. C. Blais, witness.)
marque

Edouard Letendre,

Maxime Rajotte,

N. Beaulac,

A. C. Beaulac,

Clément Liovesque,

Edounard Lussier,

RnEhael Gagné,

Achille Gagné,

Joseph Gagné,

Goorge Veuillette,

Aimé Martel,

Joseph Champagne,

Jean-Jacques Bruneau,

Nazaire Provost,

Louis Allard fils,

Pierre Péloquin,

Ferdinand Quantin, carpenter,

Charles Pager, carpenter,

Pierre Cayer, mariner,

Pierre Hurtean,

Joseph Moysan,

Onésim:‘ B. Mondor,
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P - =
?alixge grédit, N
080 hampagne, machinist,
F Girard, o0

Michel St. Michel,

Prime Dauphinais, shipbuilder,
Modeste Fréchette,

Charles Nault,

D. Guévremont,

sa
Didace X Guévremont\} (M. C. Blais, witness.)
marque.

(B

[Corr.] HarBourR CoMMISSIONERS' OFFICE,
MoNTREAL, 3rd February, 1875.

Sir,-- I am desired by the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal to state, for your
information, that they have recently had under consideration the question of wages,
and among others your name came up, when it was decided that sixty dollars ($60)
a month was, in their opinion, a fair salary, and this amount they aro willing to allow
you hereafter for such period as your services may be required.

Your obedient servant,
(Signed) H. H. WHITNEY,

Mr, Pixrre Corx, Sorel. Secretary.

(Corv.)
SoreL, 8th February, 1875.

Sir,—~I duly received your communication of the 3rd instant, regarding the

uestion of wages, and stating that in the opinion of the Harbour Commissioners sixty
30"&1‘8 u month was a fair salary in any case.

I believe I am {ustiﬁed in considoring {rom the circumatances which attonded my
engagement last fall, my name should not have come up when the Boards deliber-
ation on wages took place, and that I can fairly look for & continuation of the salary
agrecd upon at the time I was enguged, without any abatement.

These are the circumstances I allude to, and which I beg you will kindly lay
before the Board for its favorable consideration:--On or about the 9th Novembor
last, the Hon. John Young, President of the Board, camo to Sorel, and the terms then
settied upon as to my engagement wore that my salary would stand at $30 » month
and I was induced to accopt that salary on the assurance that the engngementf
entered into would last four or five years at the least.

I am to state that it was in consideration of my employment being stamped with
a durable character that at the time 1 abandoned empﬂ)oyment then offering tojme
under much more lucrative inducements as to amount of wages, my services co
readily have commanded 84 a day.

1'am also to observe that aftor my engagement at Sorel, a telogra. dated 13th
November, 1874, reached Sorel from the Harbour Board, with the advice that I should
&o on according to agreement, and that I thereupon procceded to establish the
and assumcd duties generally, since which I have actively executed the service Lh
unde:teken, in full reliance that the salary above-mentioned, of $80 a month, would
oontinue as fixed upon in manner above-mentioned.

have the honour to be, Sir,
Your most obedient servant,
(Signed) = PIERRE COTE.
H, H. Wairney, Esq.
Beoy-Hari)our Commissioners,
Montreal,
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)
{Cory.) Harsour CommissioNERS’ OFFICE,
MonTREAL, 18th Feb., 1870.

8ir,—T have to acknowledge the receipt of your lotter of the 8th inst., which has
been laid before the Commissioners.

There is no certainty that your services will be required after tho 1st of May
next, and I am instructed to notify you accordingly.

The Commissioners make no engagements that may not be terminated by notice
not ?ixceeding three months, and send this communication to prevent any misunder-
standing

I am not aware that any agreoment about wages was made, but until the return
of the Chairman, now absent, no larger sum than $60 por month can be passed in
the pay shoets.

Your obedient servant,
(Bigned) H. H. WHITNEY,
Secretary.

Mg. Pizrre CotE, Sorel.

(E)
HARBOUR COMMISSIONERS OF MONTREAL,
SECRETARY'S OFFICE,
MonTrEAL, 14th April, 1877.

Sir,—I am directed by the Harbour Commissioners of Montreal to acknow
ledge receipt of your communication, dated 13th inst., which reached them this
morning, accompanied by a copy of the petition tv which it rofers.

As you request an answer not later than Monday next, the 16th inst., to the
allegations contained in the said petition, which are not only very numerous, but of a
very general character, affecting the- policy and administration of the Trust., and
extending over a long period ot time, the Commissioners felt that they could not pro-
perly Erepare such a document without much longer dolay.

They direct me to state, therefore, that the Chief Engineer of the Trust, Mr.
Kennedy, who has the principal direction under them, of tﬁe works more especially
referred to, is ordered to proceed to Ottawa on Monday, and to appear
before the Committee of the Senate, to give every information required respecting
the details of management at Sorel and elsewhere.

I am further to add that with reference to the dismissals of Pierre Coté and P,
Oharbonneau, referred to in the petition, the Commissioners addrcssed a communioa-
tion on the Gth instant to the Minister of Marine and Fisherias for tho information
of the Senate.

I have the honour to be, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
(Signed) H. H. WHITNEY,
Assistant Secretary.
Hox. J. B. GutvreMONT, Senator,
Chairman of Committee.

26



40 Victoria. Appendix (No. 2.) A 18717

(F)

Province of Quebec, SupmrioR COURT.

CANADA, }
District of Richelieu.

DipAcs GUEVREMONT,
Riaintiff,

No 1274. }

vs.
Dame MArY EMMA TUNSTALL, et al,,
Defendants.

I, tho undersigned, Prothonotary of the Superior Court, in the District of
Richelieu, certify that Colbert Paulet, shipbuilder, of the Town of Sorel, did in this
cause make a deposition for the Defendants, on the second day of June, eighteen
hundred and sevonty-five, which was filed the same day, as appears by the record,
and another for the Plaintiff, which appears by the record to have been made on the
fifth day of November, eighteen hundred and seventy-four, and filed on the same day.
Witness my hand and the seal of tho said Court at Sorel, this cighth day of April,
sighteen hundred and seventy-seven.

(LS. A. N. GOUIN,
P.S.C.

G

Province of Quebec, Suprrior COURT.

District of Richelieu.
' Present :=The Honorable I. J. J. LoraNaEr, J. S. C.

Dipaox GugvrEMONT,

CANADA, }

No. 1274 } ve. Plaintif.

Daux M. E. TunsraLL, ef, al.,
Defendants.

On the fourth day of November, in the year of our Lord eighteen hundred and
seventy-four, appears Colbert Paulet% ship-builder, of the Town ot Sorel, agod thirty-
three years, a witness produced on behalf of the Plaintiff, who, after having been
sworn on the Holy Evangelists, daposes and says:—I am not interested in the event
of this suit. I know the parties to this suit. I remember the election in eighteen
hundred and sixty-seven, at which the late Thomas McCarthy was elected. I was
then in the employ of the firm of D. & J. McCarthy, of which the said late Thomas
MoCarthy was & member.

Q. Is it to your knowledge that the said late Thomas McCarthy gave a banquet
to his electors after his election; where did he give that banquet; whom did he
employ to prepare that banquet for him,and tell us all the circumstances with regard
to that banquet which have come to your knowledge ?—What I know of that banquet
is, that some days before, the late Thomas McCarthy sent me to the Plaintiff ’s to see
if all was ready for it. I went there, and saw Mr. gean Baptiste Guévremont there.
They were occupied in preparing the banquet, that is to say, the Plaintiff s family,
and there were some other persons there also. I think one of Mr. Jean Baptiste
Guévreront's ﬂ\milgewu there, but I cannot swear to that. The Plaintiff told me

then that all would be roady for the appointed day.
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Q. Is it to your knowledge that the said late Thomas McCarthy employed the
Plaintiff to prepare the said banquet for him, and what was said with re to that
fn your presence ?—I know that the late Thomas McCarthy asked the Plaintiff to
prepare the banquet for him. Mr. Guévremont, the Plaintiff, said: “That will be &
great strain upon us, but we will do what we can.” In answer to that, Mr. McCarth
said, “Make all the outlay; I am able to ptg, and I will pay you.” He did not tell
him in what way to prepare the banquet. Ha told him to prepare the banquet on a
Jarge scale—to omit nothing, At first the Plaintiff was not willing to prepare the
banquet. Mr. McCarthy spoke to Mr. Jean Baptiste Guévremont, who made Mr.
Didace Guévremont, the Plaintiff, consent. The late Thomas McCarthy told some
person of St. Robert or of Sainte Victorie, to cause notice of the banquet to be given
at the doors of the Churches there on the same Sunday that he caused notice of it to
be given here, It was Mr. Thomas McCarthy himself who gave notice of the banquet
at the Church door in Sorel, from the hustings, after Mass one Sunday. I know that
he invited his people to come and make merry with him at his banquet at the house
of Mr. Didace Guévremont, the Plaintiff. I was present at the late Mr. Thomas
McCarthy’s triumphal procession, who had hired me to escort him on horseback and
follow his carriage. \I:o were ten horsemen escorting his carriage. L' escort the
lato Thomus McCarthy's carriage I hired a horse from one Cournoyer.

Q. Who promised you to pay that expense, and who paid it?—It was Mr.
Thomas McCarthy who promised to pay that expense, but it was I who paid it. I
did not ask it back from Mr. McCarthy ; the triumphal procession was a fine one,
according to my taste. I took the said late Thomas McCarthy for a very rich man,
and he was reputed to be so. Mr. Jean Baptiste Guévremont said before Mr. Me-
Carthy that he, the former, would help the Plainti.t to prepare the banquet, in order
to induce him to prepare it. Mr. McCarthy spoko about it to Mr. Joan Baptiste Gué-
vremont in tho first instance, and the latter iuude the Plaintiff consent, which he
would not do at tirst, by promising to help him,

Cross-Examined.

Q. Was it before or after the election that this conversation between the late
Thomas McCarthy and tho Plaintiff, and his brother and Mr. Jean Baptiste Guévre-
mont with regard to the preparation of the banauet took place ?—1t was after the
election, L cannot say how many days; it was betwoen the election and the tri-
umphal Iu-ocension.

Q. Did thatconversation take place at the Plaintiff's residence, or at that of the
late 'Thomas McCarthy ?—It took place in the street, in the town of Sorel, just op
site to the late Thomas McCarthy's residence, where the latter happoned to meet the
Plaintift and his brother, Jean Baptiste Guévremont one evening.

Q. How did it happen that you were present at thai interview and at that con-
versation ?—It happened because 1 was present there. I came up while two Mesars.
Guévremont and the late Mr. McCarthy were talking together, and 1 sto Ped to
speak to them. We were but four persons, that is to sa Sxe late Thomus Mcl(),art.hy,
the Plaintiff, his brother, the Honorable Jean Baptiste Guévremont and myself, when
the conversation in question, respecting the preparation of the banquet, took plac
and when the Plaintiff agreed with the late 'homas McCarihy to prepare it, as
have mentioned in my examination in chief. I am neither related to, nor connected
by marriage with the Guévremont family.

And further the deponent saith not; and this deposition having been read to
him he declares that it contains the truth, that he persists therein and that he cannot
sign his name.

Sworn to, and taken, and acknowledged
- the day, the month and year above
- mentioned, sitting the Court.

A. N. Gouin,
P. 8 O '
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I, the undersigned, Prothonotary of the Superior Court in_the District of Riche-
lieu, certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the original deposited of record in
the office of the said Court.

Witness my hand and the seal of the said Court, at Sorel, this twenty-sixth day
of the month of April, eighteen hundred and seventy-seven. :

[L.8.] A. N. GOUIN,
P. 8. C

(H.)

Province of Quebec, SupkrioR COURT.

District of Richelieu.
Present :—The Honorable T. J. J. LoraNGgER, J. S, C.
Dipaox GUEVREMONT,

No. 1214 } o

CANADA, }

Plaintif.

Daur EmMma Mary TuNsTALL, et.al.,
Defendants.

On the second day of June, in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred
and seventy-five, appears Colbert Paulet, ship-builder, of the Town of Sorel, a§ed_
thirty-throe years, & witness produced on behalf of the befendants, who, after having
been sworn on the Holy Evangelists, deposes and says :—I am not interosted in the
event of this suit; I know the parties to this suit.

. Had you n knowledge of the banquet which took place in Mr. Didace Guévre-
mont, the Plaintiff’s, grounds, in eighteen hundred and sixty-seven, on the occasion
of an election 7—Yes.

Q. Did you know of any arrangements or agreements between the late Thomas
McCarthy, Mr. Didace Guévremont, the Plaintiff, and the Honorable Jean Baptiste
Guévremont, relative to the preparation and cost of that banquet, and say what you
know on the subject ? )

(This quostion objected to as illegal, as heing a repetition of the same question

ut to the witness during his examination on the fifth of November last, and as tend-
an to make him contradict himself. ~Objection overruled by the Court. The
Plaintiff excepts from the judgment overruling the objection to tho above question.)
ban Q. Had you a knowledge of any conversation between them with respect to that
‘ uet ? ‘
1 The same objection as before, reserved by the parties-)

g. 1 had no knowledge; I do not rememier.

Q. After Mr. McCarthy’s election, did you happen to meet him any whore with
the two Messrs. Guévremont, the Plaintiff, and Jean Baptiste.

(Same objection as above; same reserve.)

A. I do not romember to have met them. I may have met them in the street,
bat I do not recollect having done so.

“ Q. Do you remember having often met them together bofore or during the elec-
on ?—Yes.

Q. Did you ever hear the late Thomas McCarthy tell Didace Guévremont, the
Plaintiff, to propare the banquet for him, and he would pay him well for it, er say
other words to him having the same meaning?

'"&S,ame objection as above; same reserve.) -

. No. 20
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Q. Did you ever hear the Honorable Jean Baptiste Guéyremont, in the presence
of the late Thomas McCarthy, ask or tease his brother, the Plaintift, to prepare that
banquet for Mr. McCarthy ? .

(Same objection as agove; same reserve.)

A. I have not had any knowledge of that.

Q. Did you ever meet those three gentlemen in the street when they were talk-
ing together about the preparation and the cost of that banquet?

gSame objection as above; same reserve.)
. No, I have not bad any knowledge of that; it may have been said, but I have

no recollection of that. If that was said it was after the eloction, and after the elec-
tion I did not go about with them any more, apart from the banquet, at which I was
present, as well as at the trip to 8t. Victoire.

Q. Between the day of the election and that of the banquet, did you happen to
meet these three gentlemen together ?

gSame objection as above ; same reserve,)

I had no knowledge of it.
Q. Did you know that the late Thomas McCarthy and the Honorable Jean

Baptiste Guovremont spoke before you of him who was to prepare that banquet ?
SSsme objection as above ; same reserve.)
. No

Q. Did the Honorable Jean Baptiste Guévremont ever sponk before you of
assisting the Plaintiff, in order to induce him to prepare that banquet ?

(Same objection as above ; same reserve.)

A. T had no knowledge of that.

Q. On the fifth of November last, by whom were you employed, and at whose
flace were you working ?—1 was working at Mr. Didace Guévremont’s the Plaintiff.

was making some repairs to his house.

Cross-questioned, reserving the above objections.

Q. Do you remember having mado a deposition here in Court in this cause on
the 6th November last ?—Yes.

Q. Does that deposition contain the truth; and when you made it, did you
relate the facts as you understood them ?—I think so.

Q. You said in your deposition of the fifth of last November that the late
Thomas McCarthy in the street before you, in the town of Sorel, opposite the said
late Thomas McCarthy's residence, ordered the Plaintiff to prepare the banquet for
him, and told him that he would pay him well for it; in saying that did you tell the
truth 7—If 1 said that, of course 1 told the truth; but I do not think it was asked of
me in that way.

Q. You suid in that deposition that that conversation had taken place opposite
the late Thomas McCarthy's residence, one evening, some days after the eloction; in
saying that, did you tell the truth ?—1 do not remember that; perhaps1 said it; if it
is put down, it is because I said it, and if I said it, it was because it is the truth.

Q. During and aftor the election in 1867, were you not employed by Mr. Mc-
Carthy, aud were you not employed by him for a long time after the election ?-—Yes.

Q. At the timo of the banquet were you not one of the principal officials in
authority at it; and at Mr. McCarthy’s election were you not one of his chief confi-
dential men ?—I was like all the rest; T was on horseback, ar fifty others, and more,
were, 1 think there were others over me during the election, but I was one of his

chief confidential men. ,
Q. Ilow long were you employed by the Plaintiff last autumn ?—I think it was

8ix or seven weoks,

Q. Is it not true that it was your fathor, Leander Raulet, who had the contract
for preparing the Plaintiff’s house last autumn, and that you worked for your father
at the Plaiutifi's house ; that it was your father who engaged you, and not the
Plaintiff 7—1 suppose 'that as my father and I were in partnership, one as well as the
other worked for the Defendant. 20
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Q. Who asked you to work at repairing Plaintiff’s house; was it not your
father ?-—My father came to my house and asked me if I would take the job in part-
nership with him sayingl.,. that if I would not he would not take it, and I consented.

Q. 1s it not true that it was your father alone, without you, who made the
bargain with the Plaintiff and laid down the conditions of it ?P~—Yes.

Q. On the fifth of November last did you mako your deposition freely, without
compulsion, and without any tpromise on’ the Plaintiff's part ?---Yes; the Plaintiff
did not make me any promise for my first deposition.

Q. When you say in your deposition that you did not know the facts as to which
you wero interrogated, do you not thereby mean to say that you do not remember
those facts?---When I said that I no longer remembered anything, it was a thing I
had forgotten.

Q. When you said that you did not know them, did you mean to say that you
no longer remembered them ?~-It was that I did not know them.

Q. How does it happen that you do not know now facts that you knew and that
you affirmed in your deposition of the 5th of November last?-—-All that I told you
was what I thought about it; I know nothing more.

Q. Did not the Detendants, the Messrs. MoCarthy, employ you for a very lon
tin}Ye, and did they not enable you to earn your livelihood for a great number of years
—-Yos.

Q. Are you not now, and have you not been since the month of March last,
employed by them in the building or repairing of vessels ?---No.

Q. For whom have you becn working since the month of March last?--For the
Government, at the llarbour ship-yard, opposite the Town of Sorel, on the Messrs.
McCarthiy’s land, which they have leased to the Commissioners of tho Harbour of
Montreal. ’

Q. Who is the Superintendentor the Director of those works i-—I know Mr. John
McCarthy, who is Inspector or Superintendent ; but it is not he who conducts the
work ; we have nothing to do with him, but with the foreman; he only inspeots the
work. It is Mr. Pierre Coté who is the foreman, and he told me he was engaged by
Mr. Young, of Montreal.

Q. Wgas it not Mr. McCarthy who hired you there, or were you not hired there
by his agoney ?---No; because when I was hired there Mr. McCarthy had nothing to
do there; it was earlﬁ last autumn, and he entered into office only in winter; it was
My, Pierre Coté who hired me.

Q. Is it not Mr. McCarthy who fixes tho wages of the men employed i tho said
ship-yard ?-I have not perceived that, because my salary was fixed by the foreman
a.n<{y éapmin Charles Armstrong, last autumn.

Q. Did you receive u subpmna requiring you to come and give evidence to-da ?
I came in the same way as for Mr. Guévremont; I did not receive any subpwna ; Mr,
Guévremont had asked me what I thought about it, and Mr. McCarthy also asked me
to say what I thought about it.

Q. When did Mr. McCarthy ask you to be a witness, and was it not in the ship-
yard that he asked you ?-—It was this morning in his office that Mr. McCarthy asked
me if I had any objection to come and declare what I knew, and we came straight
into Court. It was Mr. Daniel McCarthy, hero present, who asked me. 1lle sont one
of the men to call me to go to his office, which I did, and there he asked me if I had
any objection to relate what 1 knew ; that is all he said to mo then. While crossing he
told me that all he wanted was that I should tell the truth.

(. Did you not tell several persons in Novomber last that you wero present
when the late Thomas McCarthy gave the Plaintiff orders to prepare the banquet,
and among othors your father, f.éandre Paulet ?—I have no knowledge of that.

Q. When you gave your evidence last autumn, had the Plaintiff spoken to you
about it before you camo to give it ?—He often spoke to me about that matter; I
do not_remember all he said to me; he spoke to me about different things in con-
nection with the suit.

81
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Q. Is it not in Mr. McCarthy's office that you are tﬁmd your wages ?—No ; inthe
harbour office, because Mr. McCarthy has lvased it to the harbour; the Messrs. Mo-
Carthy have their office outside the ship-yard.

Re-examined,

Q. If you had been present at any conversation in the street or elsewhere, be-
tweeun the late Thomas McCarthy, Didace Guévremont, the Plaintiff, and the Honor-
able Jean Baptiste Guévremont, with respect to the preparation and cost of the ban-
.quet in 1867, do you not think that you would remember it still ?

(This question objected to on behalf of the Plaintiff as illegal, as not arising out
of the cross-examination, and as being a repetition of questions already put. Objection
reserved by the parties. :

A. T think I would remember it.

Q. When you made your first deposition in this cause in November last, had you
not had a treat or some glasses of liquor with the Plaintiff, and may that not have
affected your memorg?

(This question objected to by the Plaintiff as not arising out of the cross-exami-
nation, as suggestive, and asillegal. Objection reserved by the parties.)

A. T had taken five or six glasses in the course of the day, not all with the
Plaintiff, butI do not tkink that can have affeoted my momory or my testimony. I

- had taken them from morning to one o’clock in the afternoon, at which hoar I began
my evidence. I had taken a couple of glasses with the Plaintiff before my dinner—
wZich I did not take with the Plaintiff~but with my family. When I took those
glasses we were not talking about the suit.

And further the deponent saith not; and this deposition having been read to
him, he declares that it contains the truth, that he persists therein, and that he can-
not sign his name.

Sworn to, taken and acknowledged, sit-
ting in the Court, on the day, month
and first hereinbefore mentioned.
A. N. Gouin,
P. 8 C.
I, the undersigned, Prothonotary of the Superior Court, in the Distriot of

Riochelieu, certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the original deposited of record
in the office of the said Court

Witness my hand and the seal of the said Court, at Sorel, this twenty-sixth day
of April, one thousand eight hundred and seventy-seven.

A. N.GOUIN,
P.8.0.



